TRAL coum’w Central County Fire Department

Serving the communities of Burlingame, Hillsborough and Millbrae

/ rlnrz\.\l

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA

Monday January 25, 2021
1 p.m. by Teleconference/Zoom

On March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the
Ralph M. Brown Act in order to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings telephonically
or by or by other electronic means. Pursuant to the Shelter-in-Place Order issued by the San Mateo County
Health Officer on March 16, 2020, the statewide Shelter-in-Place Order issued by the Governor in
Executive Order N-33-20 on March 19, 2020, and the CDC’s social distancing guidelines which discourage
large public gatherings, the Council Chambers at Burlingame City Hall and Hillsborough Town Hall are
closed to the public.

This meeting will be conducted via Zoom, an independent virtual meeting platform. To maximize public
safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public can observe the
meeting by using the information below.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82125957780?pwd=S2tzY1 MwLzhwUjAvOVZXMDUvN2RpUT09
Meeting ID: 821 2595 7780
Passcode: 027908
One tap mobile
+16699006833,,82125957780# US (San Jose)
+12532158782,,82125957780# US (Tacoma)
Dial by your location

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

+1 2532158782 US (Tacoma)

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington D.C)

+1312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
Meeting ID: 821 2595 7780

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kmbh2p647Z

TELECONFERENCE PARTICIPANTS

Board Members Ricardo Ortiz, Michael Brownrigg, Marie Chuang, and Sophie Cole will participate by
teleconference pursuant to Governor Newsom'’s Executive Order N-25-20

Pursuant to Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953, all votes shall be by roll call due to
Board Members Ricardo Ortiz, Michael Brownrigg, Marie Chuang, and Sophie Cole participating by
teleconference.

Any requests for reasonable accommodation should be addressed to Rubina Ellam at

publiccomment@ccfd.org or 650-558-7600.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82125957780?pwd=S2tzY1MwLzhwUjAvOVZXMDUvN2RpUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kmbh2p64Z
mailto:publiccomment@ccfd.org

Central County Fire Department Board of Directors Special Meeting Agenda - January 25, 2021

Page 2

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION
a. Reportout from closed session of December 9, 2020

PUBLIC COMMENTS

The Ralph M. Brown Act (the State local agency open meeting law) prohibits the Board from acting
on any matter which is not on the agenda. It is the policy of the Board to refer such matters to staff
for investigation and/or action. For purposes of this teleconference meeting, members of the
public may provide written comments by email to publiccomment@ccfd.org. Emailed comments
should include the specific agenda item on which you are commenting on or note that your
comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. The length of the emailed comment should be
commensurate with the three minutes allowed for verbal comments, which is approximately 250-
300 words.

During the Meeting: Live verbal public comments may be made by members of the public joining the
meeting via Zoom. Zoom access information is provided above. Use the “raise hand” feature (for those
joining by phone, press *9 to “raise hand”) during the public comment period for the agenda item you
wish to address. The Zoom Host will call on people to speak by name provided or last 4 digits of phone
number for dial-in attendees. Please clearly state your full name for the record at the start of your
public comment.

Before the Meeting: Written public comments for the record may be submitted in advance by 3:00
p-m. on the meeting date by email to: publiccomment@ccfd.org and will be made part of the written
record and will be read verbally at the meeting. Written public comments submitted by email should
adhere to the following:

O Clearly indicate the Agenda Item No. or specify “Public” in the Subject Line for items not on
the agenda
O Include the submitter’s full name

Written public comments received by 3:00 p.m. on the meeting date will be provided in their entirety
to the Board prior to the meeting and will be made part of the written record and will be read

verbally at the meeting.

NEW BUSINESS
a. Resolution Authorizing the Chief Administrative Officer or Her Designee to Enter into a
Purchase Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. for the Purchase of One Aerial
Ladder Truck

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (via teleconference)

CLOSED SESSION


mailto:publiccomment@ccfd.org
mailto:publiccomment@ccfd.org

CENTRAL COCATY

Z\ Central County Fire Department Board of Directors Special Meeting Agenda - January 25, 2021

Page 3

a. Conference with Labor Negotiator for Central County Firefighters Union (Fire
Captains, Firefighters, Fire Inspector and Deputy Fire Marshal) and Fire
Administrators (Battalion Chiefs and Fire Marshal), Unrepresented Clerical (Sr.
Accounting Technician, Accounting Technician, Management Assistant, Administrative
Assistant, Office Assistant and Fire Prevention Specialist), Unrepresented Mechanics
(Emergency Vehicle Technicians), Unrepresented Community Risk and Resiliency
Specialist, and Unrepresented Management (Fire Chief, Deputy Fire Chief, and
Administrative Services Manager)(GC#54957.6(a)). Agency Negotiator: Kristin
Armbruster, HR Manager, Town of Hillsborough.

10. ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION
11. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

12. ADJOURNMENT



S8  Central County Fire Department

7 nre ) m&md%wm

-

Piive Chi

o

AGENDA ITEM: __6a STAFF REPORT MTG. DATE: _January 25, 2021

TO: Board of Directors
DATE: January 25, 2021
FROM: Bruce Barron, Fire Chief

APPROVED BY: __( Aee . /&( _

Ann Ritzma, CAO

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Chief Administrative Officer or Her Designee to Enter into a
Purchase Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. for the Purchase of One
Aerial Ladder Truck

Recommendation:
Adopt a resolution authorizing the Chief Administrative Officer or her designee to enter into a

purchase agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. for the purchase of one aerial ladder
truck (apparatus) in fiscal year 2020-21.

Background:
The Department identified and budgeted for the replacement of one aerial ladder truck in fiscal

year 2020-21. The determination is made based upon age, mileage (or hours), and usage.
Apparatus are also reviewed for safety history and operating performance. The aerial ladder truck
identified for replacement has exceeded the recommended lifespan for frontline service in
accordance with the vehicle and apparatus lifespan schedule for San Mateo County agencies
(Attachment 3). The new apparatus will be assigned to Fire Station 34 which places the newer
aerial ladder truck as the frontline and rotates the current aerial truck to the reserve position.

The new aerial ladder truck, similar to existing fire department apparatus, will be purchased from a
vendor who manufactures the complete apparatus. All systems are designed and integrated as one
composite unit without making any compromises to the integrity of the apparatus. Should a a
customer warranty or service-related problem arise, there is only one call to make. The Proposal
from Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. (Attachment 2) includes the purchase of one fire aerial
ladder truck (105’ Arrow XT Ladder Truck)

The proposal has two options for payment - 1) Pre-pay with a discount or 2) Payment at delivery.
The original base price of the aerial ladder truck(before taxes) is $1,264,358.00 and with a pre-pay
option there are two discounts. One in the amount of $52,008.00 (H-GAC contract discount) and a
second in the amount of $47,350.00 if payment is made in full upon execution of the contract. The
final price for pre-payment including taxes will be $1,275,692.50 as shown in the proposal
(Attachment 2). Staff recommends that the Department take advantage of the lower pricing
provided for by paying in full upon execution of the contract. The aerial ladder truck will be
delivered within 385 to 445 days of the effective date of the agreement. If the Department



terminates the contract in a pre-payment option, Section 6 (Cancellation/Termination) of the
proposal (Attachment 2), a cancellation fee would apply which ranges between 10-50% of the cost
of the apparatus.

Once delivered, the Department has 15 days to inspect the aerial ladder truck to ensure that it is in
substantial conformance with the mutual specifications. Any deficiencies are required to be
remedied within 30 days.

The proposed acquisition utilizes a cooperative inter-agency agreement known as “piggy back”.
Through such a cooperative agreement, the Department is able to “piggy back” on the base price bid
awarded by Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) to Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. and has
the ability to add or subtract options based on Central County Fire Department’s requirements. This
makes the cooperative inter-agency purchase agreement process very cost-effective in terms of
both staff time and purchase price. As a unit of local government, H-GAC strives to make the
governmental procurement process more efficient by establishing competitively priced contracts
for goods and services, and providing the customer service necessary to help the collaborative
agencies achieve their procurement goals. All contracts available to participating members of H-
GAC have been awarded through a public competitive procurement process that complies with
state statutes.

Fiscal Impact:

The adopted budget for FY2020-21 includes $1.2million for the purchase of replacement ladder
truck. There are sufficient funds in the asset replacement reserve fund for the additional $75k. A
budget amendment of $75k will be required for the full purchase and is available in the asset
replacement reserve fund.

Attachments:

1. Resolution Authorizing the Chief Administrative Officer or Her Designee to Enter into a
Purchase Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. for the Purchase of one aerial
ladder truck in the amount of $1,275,692.50 (pre-payment)

2. Proposal from Golden State Fire Apparatus for Pierce Fire Apparatus dated December 23,
2020

3. Vehicle and Apparatus Replacement Schedule



RESOLUTION NO. 21-01

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CENTRAL COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT

AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER OR HER DESIGNEE TO ENTER INTO A

PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH GOLDEN STATE FIRE APPARATUS, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE
OF ONE AERIAL LADDER TRUCK

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Central County Fire Department, County of San Mateo,
State of California that,

WHEREAS, one existing aerial ladder truck is scheduled for replacement in the FY 2020-21
budget; and

WHEREAS, CCFD desires to use the cooperative purchasing method, utilizing the bidding
process through Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) program and bid awarded to Golden
State Fire Apparatus, Inc., to purchase one aerial ladder truck in the most cost effective and efficient
manner; and

WHEREAS, CCFD wishes to enter into a purchase agreement with Golden State Fire
Apparatus, Inc., to purchase one ladder truck; and

WHEREAS, funding for this purchase, in the amount of $1,200,000, was approved in the
FY 2020-2021 CCFD budget; and

WHEREAS, an additional $75,000 is available in the asset replacement reserve fund
through a budget amendment.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Central County
Fire Department adopts this resolution to authorize the Chief Administrative Officer or her
designee to enter into a purchase agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. for the purchase
of one aerial ladder truck for the contract price of $1,275,692.50.

Approved at a special meeting of the Board of Directors at a special meeting held by teleconference
this 25t day of January, 2021.

Signed:

Ricardo Ortiz, Chair

Attest:
Rubina Ellam, Secretary

[ hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution 21-01 adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Central County Fire Department, San Mateo County, California, at a special
meeting held by teleconference this 25t day of January, 2021 by the following vote of the members
thereof:

AYES: Board Members:
NOES: Board Members:
ABSENT: Board Members:

ABSTAIN: Board Members:




PROPOSAL PREPARED FOR
Central County Fire Department
Pierce Manufacturing, Inc.

105’ Arrow XT Ladder Truck
HGAC FS12-19, Code FS19VAO08
December 23,2020

GOLDEN
STATE

FIRE APPARATUS

SALES CONSULTANT

Rich Myers

Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc.
7400 Reese Road

Sacramento, CA 95828

(831) 251-8931 Cell
rich@goldenstatefire.com

PARTS, SERVICE & SUPPORT

Golden State Emergency Vehicle Service, Inc.
7400 Reese Road

Sacramento, CA 95828

916.330.1638 Office

parts@goldenstatefire.com



mailto:rich@goldenstatefire.com
mailto:parts@goldenstatefire.com

7400 Reese Road

Sacramento, CA 95828
Office 916.330.1638
Fax 916.330.1649

FIRE APPARATUS

PROPOSAL PREPARED FOR:

Submitted Date: December 23,2020
Central County Fire Department
1399 Rollins Road Proposal Number: 41223-20

Burlingame, CA 94010

Expiration Date: January 31,2021

Sales Consultant: Rich Myers

We hereby propose and agree to furnish, after your acceptance of this proposal and the proper execution by the CENTRAL
COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT, hereinafter called “Customer” and an officer of Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc., hereinafter
called “GSFA”, the following fire apparatus and equipment, hereinafter called “Product”:

A | One (1) Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. 105’ Arrow XT Ladder Truck 1,264,358.00
B Discount for HGAC FS12-19, Product Code FS19VAO8 (52,008.00)
C | Discount For 100% Pre-Payment at Time of Order (47,350.00)

SUBTOTAL 1,165,000.00

HGACBuy " Siforna TreFee | 1750

GRAND TOTAL 1,275,692.50

PROPOSAL SUMMARY

This proposal includes the following items in accordance with the specifications hereto attached:
=  Fire apparatus and equipment =  Final delivery from service center to Customer
= Pre-delivery inspection/services by GSFA =  Demonstration and familiarization of the Product
=  Delivery to GSFA service center in Sacramento =  California Tire Fee

PRODUCT COMPLETION

Product shall be built in accordance with the specifications hereto attached, delays due to acts of God, strikes, war, or
intentional conflict, failures to obtain chassis, materials, unusual weather conditions or other causes beyond GSFA’s control not
preventing, within approximately 385 to 445 CALENDAR DAYS after receipt of this order and the acceptance thereof at our
Sacramento, California office. Within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of this order and acceptance thereof, GSFA shall
submit to Customer a production schedule including tentative pre-construction conference, final inspection and final delivery
dates.

DELIVERY LOCATION

Product shall be shipped in accordance with the specifications hereto attached and be delivered to you at BURLINGAME
CALIFORNIA. Proof of insurance must be demonstrated by the Customer to GSFA prior to transferring of the Product(s).

Page 2 of 3



ACCEPTING THIS PROPOSAL

In the event Customer wishes to purchase the Product described in this Proposal and the attached specifications, then, prior to the expiration
date listed on page 2 of this Proposal, Customer shall sign and return this Proposal. Thereafter, GSFA and Customer will endeavor to enter into
a purchase agreement incorporating this Proposal and including additional terms (a “Purchase Agreement”). If Customer returns a signed copy
of this Proposal alone, GSFA will send Customer its form of Purchase Agreement for Customer’s review and signature. If Customer desires to
use its standard form of purchase order as the Purchase Agreement, then Customer should return a signed copy of this Proposal along with a
copy of such purchase order. All purchase orders shall be made out to GSFA. GSFA will review such purchase order and contact the Customer
regarding any required revisions. Only upon a full execution of a Purchase Agreement shall GSFA and Customer be obligated to purchase and

sell the Product set forth in this Proposal.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following Terms and Conditions are hereby made part of this Proposal:

1. Payment Terms (100% Pre-Payment at Time of Order) -
Customer shall pay the amount listed on page one of this
Proposal, which includes: (i) the total price for the Product (the
“Purchase Price”), (ii) the estimated state sales tax on the Product,
and (iii) the California tire fee (together with the Purchase Price
and estimated state sales tax, the “Grand Total”) within fifteen
(15) calendar days from the date on which the Purchase
Agreement is fully executed. The proposed delivery timeframe for
the Product, which is outlined on page one of this Proposal, shall
not begin until full payment of the Grand Total is received. In the
event Customer does not pay GSFA the Grand Total in the
timeframe set forth in this Section 1, GSFA may, in its sole
discretion, cancel the Purchase Agreement entered into between
the parties.

2. Multiple Unit Purchase - If the Purchase Price includes pricing
for multiple units, the price stated on this Proposal shall only be
valid if the quantity of Products being proposed are purchased at
the same time, pursuant to the same Purchase Agreement.

3. Stock / Demo Units - If applicable, any stock/demo units,
including those identified by this Proposal, are available for sale
on an as-is, first-come and first served-basis. Regardless of this
Proposal, the first Customer to enter into a Purchase Agreement
identifying any such stock/demo unites shall obtain said units.

4, Order Changes - The Customer may request that GSFA
incorporate a change to the Product or the Specifications for the
Product by delivering a written change order to GSFA, which shall
include a description of the proposed change sufficient to permit
GSFA to evaluate the feasibility of such change (a “Change
Order”). GSFA will provide Customer a written response (a
“Response”) stating (i) whether GSFA will accommodate such
Change Order (which GSFA may decide in its sole and absolute
discretion) and (ii) the terms of the modification to the order,
including any increase or decrease in the Purchase Price resulting
from such Change Order, and any effect on production scheduling
or Delivery resulting from such Change Order. Customer shall
have seven (7) days after receipt of the Response to notify GSFA
as to whether Customer desires to make the changes GSFA has
approved in the Response. In the event Customer counter-signs
GSFA'’s Response, Customer shall pay the increase (or be
refunded the decrease) in the Purchase Price prior to final
delivery to Customer location.

5. Force Majeure - GSFA shall not be responsible nor deemed to
be in default on account of delays in performance due to causes
which are beyond GSFA’s and manufacturer’s control and which
make GSFA'’s performance impracticable, including but not limited
to wars, insurrections, strikes, riots, fires, storms, floods, other
acts of nature, explosions, earthquakes, accidents, any act of
government, delays in transportation, inability to obtain
necessary labor supplies or manufacturing facilities, allocation
regulations or orders affecting materials, equipment, facilities or
completed products, failure to obtain any required license or
certificates, acts of God or the public enemy or terrorism, failure
of transportation, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, failure of
vendors (due to causes similar to those within the scope of this
clause) to perform their contracts or labor troubles causing
cessation, slowdown, or interruption of work.

6. Cancellation/Termination - In the event Customer and GSFA
enter into a Purchase Agreement and Customer thereafter
cancels or terminates the Purchase Agreement, GSFA will charge
a cancellation fee as follows: (a) 10% of the Purchase Price after
order is accepted and entered by GSFA; (b) 20% of the Purchase
Price after completion of the pre-construction phase of the order
process; and (c) 50% of the Purchase Price after the requisition of
any materials or commencement of any manufacturing or
assembly of the Product by either GSFA or the manufacturer of
the Product. The tier of cancellation fee applicable to any
cancellation shall be in the sole and absolute discretion of GSFA.

7. State Sales Tax - Customer shall be responsible for the cost of
state sales tax associated with, or attributable to the Product. The
taxes owed by Customer for the Product is subject to adjustment
for the applicable state sales tax rate in effect when the Product is
delivered to the Customer. Therefore, the sales tax will be
increased or decreased at the time of delivery if a change in the
sales tax rate has occurred, in which case Customer shall pay
GSFA (or be refunded by GSFA) the applicable change in sales tax.

8. Proposal Expiration — After the Expiration Date shown on page
one of this Proposal, Customer shall require GSFA’s written
consent to accept this Proposal.

9. Governing Law - This Proposal is to be governed by and under
the laws of the state of California.

Thank you for providing Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. with the opportunity to provide this proposal. If you have any questions regarding

the options presented or need additional options, please contact me.

authorized representative of

CENTRAL COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT agrees to purchase the proposed Product(s) and

agree to the terms and conditions of this proposal and the specifications hereto attached.

Sincerely, |
(Ko X Vi
Rich Myers SIGNATURE:
Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc.
TITLE:

DATE:

7400 Reese Road, Sacramento, CA 95828 | Office 916.330.1638 | Fax 916.330.1649

Page 30of 3



GSFA is pleased to submit a proposal to the Central County Fire Department for a Pierce®105' Heavy
Duty Aerial Ladder per your request for quotation. The following paragraphs will describe in detail the
apparatus, construction methods, and equipment proposed. This proposal will indicate size, type,
model and make of components parts and equipment, providing proof of compliance with each and
every item (except where noted) in the departments advertised specifications.

PIERCE MANUFACTURING was founded in 1913. Since then we have been building bodieg'with one
philosophy, "BUILD THE FINEST". Our skilled craftsmen take pride in their work, which issteflected) in
the final product. We have been building fire apparatus since the early "forties" giving Plerce
Manufacturing over 75 years of experience in the fire apparatus market. Pierce Manufacturingghas built
and put into service more than 62,500 apparatus, including more than 33,900 on Pierge custom chassis
designed and built specifically for fire and emergency applications. Our Appleter, Wisconsin facility
has over 870,000 total square feet of floor space situated on approximately, 205 acres of land. Our
Bradenton, Florida facility has 300,000 square feet of floor space situated on,approximately 38 acres of
land.

Our beliefs in high ethical standards are carried through in all of our'eommitments and to everyone with
whom we do business. Honesty, Integrity, Accountability and Citizenship are global tenets by which we
all live and work. Consequently, we neither engage in, nof have we ever been convicted of price fixing,
bid rigging, or collusion in any domestic or international fire appatatus market.

Pierce has only one brand of fire apparatus "Piercé®, epsuring you are receiving top of the line product
that meets your specification.

In accordance with the current edition of NERA 1901¢standards, this proposal will specify whether the
fire department, manufacturer, or apparatus dealership will provide required loose equipment.

Images and illustrative material indhis proposal are as accurate as known at the time of publication, but
are subject to change without noticed Images and illustrative material is for reference only, and may
include optional equipment and aceessories and may not include all standard equipment.

GENERAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

To control quality, ensurefcompatibility, and provide a single source for service and warranty, the
custom cab, chassis;pump module and body will be entirely designed, assembled/welded and painted
in Pierce owned'manufacturing facilities. This includes, but not limited to the cab weldment, the
pumphouse moduléyassembly, the chassis assembly, the body and the electrical system.

QUALITY"AND WORKMANSHIP

PierCeshas set'the pace for quality and workmanship in the fire apparatus field. Our tradition of building
the highest'quality units with craftsmen second to none has been the rule right from the beginning and
we demonstrate that ongoing commitment by: Ensuring all steel welding follows American Welding
Society D1.1-2004 recommendations for structural steel welding. All aluminum welding follows
American Welding society and ANSI D1.2-2003 requirements for structural welding of aluminum. All
sheet metal welding follows American welding Society B2.1-2000 requirements for structural welding of
sheet metal. Our flux core arc welding uses alloy rods, type 7000 and is performed to American
Welding Society standards A5.20-E70T1. Furthermore, all employees classified as welders are tested

1o0f 113



and certified to meet the American welding Society codes upon hire and every three (3) years
thereafter. Pierce also employs and American Welding Society certified welding inspector in plant
during working hours to monitor weld quality.

Pierce Manufacturing operates a Quality Management System under the requirements of ISO 9001.
These standards sponsored by the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) specify the
guality systems that are established by the manufacturer for design, manufacture, installationfand
service. A copy of the certificate of compliance is included with this proposal.

In addition to the Quality Management system, we also employ a Quality Achievement'Supplier.
program to insure the vendors and suppliers that we utilize meet the high standar@dS'we demand. That
is just part of our overall "Quality at the Source" program at Pierce.

To demonstrate the quality of our products and services, a list of at least twenty five (25) fire
departments/municipalities that have purchased vehicles for a second gime iS,provided.

DELIVERY

The apparatus will be delivered under its own power to insure proper‘break-in of all components while
the apparatus is still under warranty. A qualified delivery representative'shall deliver the apparatus and
remain for a sufficient length of time to instruct personnelfin proper operation, care and maintenance of
the equipment delivered.

MANUAL AND SERVICE INFORMATION

At time of delivery, complete operation and maintenancefmanuals covering the apparatus will be
provided. A permanent plate will be mounted in‘the driver's compartment specifying the quantity and
type of fluids required including engine ail, engine“€oolant, transmission, pump transmission lubrication,
pump primer and drive axle.

SAFETY VIDEO

At the time of delivery Piercefwill'alsosprovide one (1) 39-minute, professionally produced apparatus
safety video, in DVD formati\ This video will address key safety considerations for personnel to follow
when they are driving,0peratingsand maintaining the apparatus, including the following: vehicle pre-
trip inspection, chassis,operation, pump operation, aerial operation, and safety during maintenance.

PERFORMANCE TESTS

A road test will be*'eonducted with the apparatus fully loaded and a continuous run of no less than ten
(10) miles. During that time the apparatus will show no loss of power nor will it overheat. The
transmission drive shaft or shafts and the axles will run quietly and be free of abnormal vibration or
noiseémyl hetapparatus when fully loaded will not have less than 25 percent nor more than 50 percent on
the fremt axle, and not less than 50 percent nor more than 75 percent on the rear axle. The apparatus
will meet NFPA 1901 acceleration and braking requirements.

SERVICE AND WARRANTY SUPPORT

Pierce dealership support will be provided by GSEVS by operating a Pierce authorized service center.
The service center will have factory-trained mechanics on staff versed in Pierce fire apparatus. The
service facility will be located within seventy five (75) miles of the fire department.

2 of 113



In addition to the dealership, Pierce has service facilities located in both, Weyauwega, Wisconsin and
Bradenton, Florida. Pierce also maintains a dedicated parts facility of over 100,000 square feet in
Appleton, Wisconsin. The parts facility stocks in excess of $5,000,000 in parts dedicated to service and
replacement parts. The parts facility employs a staff dedicated solely for the distribution and shipment
of service and replacement parts.

Service parts for the apparatus being proposed can be found via Pierceparts.com which, is an
interactive online tool that delivers information regarding your specific apparatus as well as;the
opportunity to register for training classes.

As a Pierce customer you have the ability to view the complete bill of materials fog¥/our Specific
apparatus, including assembly drawings, piece part drawings, and beneficial parts' notations. You will
also have the ability to search the complete Pierce item master through a pafrts searchgunction which
offers all Pierce SKU's and descriptions offered on all Pierce apparatus. Published.omponent
catalogs, which include proprietary systems along with an extensive operators manual library is
available for easy reference.

Pierce Manufacturing maintains a dedicated service and warranty staffiof over 35 personnel, dedicated
to customer support, which also maintains a 24 hour 7 daygamweek toll free hot line, four (4) on staff
EVTs, and offers hands-on repair and maintenance training classes multiple times a year.

LIABILITY

The successful bidder will defend any and all suits, and asstéime all liability for the use of any patented
process including any device or article forming a partyof the apparatus or any appliance furnished under
the contract.

INSURANCE PROVIDED BY BIDDER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIBITY INSURANCE
The successful biddefwilladuring the performance of the contract and for three (3) years
following acceptance of the product, keep in force at least the following minimum limits of
commercial geperal liability'insurance:

Each Occuffence$1,000,000

Products/@ompleted Operations Aggregate$1,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury$1,000,000

General Aggregate$2,000,000

Coverage will be written on a Commercial General Liability form. The policy will be written on
an occurrence form and will include Contractual Liability coverage for bodily injury and property
damage subject to the terms and conditions of the policy. The policy will include Owner as an
additional insured when required by written contract.

30f 113



COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE
The successful bidder will, during the performance of the contract, keep in force at least the
following minimum limits of commercial automobile liability insurance and coverage will be
written on a Commercial Automobile liability form:

Each Accident Combined Single Limit:$1,000,000

UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY INSURANCE
The successful bidder will, during the performance of the contract and for three (3) years
following acceptance of the product, keep in force at least the following minimum limits of
umbrella liability insurance:

Aggregate:$3,000,000
Each Occurrence:$3,000,000

The umbrella policy will be written on an occurrence basis and‘at a mipimum provide excess to
the bidder's General Liability and Automobile Liability policies:

The required limits can be provided by one (1) or mereypolicies provided all other insurance
requirements are met.

Coverage will be provided by a carrier(s) rated A¢or better by A.M. Best.

All policies will provide a 30-day notice‘of cancellation to the named insured. The Certificate of
Insurance will provide the following.cancellation clause: Should any of the above described
polices be cancelled before the eéxpiration date thereof, notice will be delivered in accordance
with the policy provisions.

Bidder agrees to furnish owmesf'with a current Certificate of Insurance with the coverages listed
above along with theid. “Gheteertificate will show the purchaser as certificate holder.

INSURANCE PROVIDEDIB YaMANUFACTURER

PRODUCT LIAB Ui YANSURANCE
The manufacturerwill, during the performance of the contract and for three (3) years following
acceptance'of the product, keep in force at least the following minimum limits of Product Liability
insurance:

Each Oc¢currence$1,000,000
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate$1,000,000

Coverage will be written on a Commercial General Liability form. The policy will be written on
an occurrence form. The manufacturer's policy will include the owner as additional insured
when required by written contract between the Owner and a Pierce authorized dealer.

4 of 113



UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY INSURANCE
The manufacturer will, during the performance of the contract and for three (3) years following
acceptance of the product, keep in force at least the following minimum limits of umbrella liability
insurance:

Each Occurrence:$25,000,000
Aggregate:$25,000,000

The umbrella policy will be written on an occurrence basis and provide excess to'the
manufacturer's General Liability/Products policies.

The required limits can be provided by one (1) or more policies providedwall othergnsurance
requirements are met.

Coverage will be provided by a carrier(s) rated A- or better by A.M.\Best.

All policies will provide a 30-day notice of cancellation to the\nameddnsured. The Certificate of
Insurance will provide the following cancellation clause: Shouldyany of the above described
polices be cancelled before the expiration date thereg@fynotice will be delivered in accordance
with the policy provisions.

Manufacturer agrees to furnish owner with a curent Certificate of Insurance with the coverages
listed above along with the bid. The cegifieate\will show the purchaser as the certificate holder.

SINGLE SOURCE MANUFACTURER

Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. provides an integrated approach to the design and manufacture of our
products that delivers superior apparatus,and a dedicated support team. From our facilities, the
chassis, cab weldment, cab, pumg house (including the sheet metal enclosure, valve controls, piping
and operators panel) body and.aerial’ device will be entirely designed, tested, and hand assembled to
the customer's exact specificationsy The electrical system either hardwired or multiplexed, will be both
designed and integrated.by Rierce Manufacturing. The warranties relative to these major components
(excluding component'warranties such as engine, transmission, axles, pump, etc.) will be provided by
Pierce as a single.soureé manufacturer. Pierce's single source solution adds value by providing a fully
engineered product that offers durability, reliability, maintainability, performance, and a high level of
quality.

Your apparatus,will be manufactured in Appleton, Wisconsin.

NERAW20168STANDARDS
This upit will comply with the NFPA standards effective January 1, 2016, except for fire department
directed exceptions. These exceptions will be set forth in the Statement of Exceptions.

Certification of slip resistance of all stepping, standing and walking surfaces will be supplied with
delivery of the apparatus.

All horizontal surfaces designated as a standing or walking surface that are greater than 48.00" above
the ground must be defined by a 1.00" wide line along its outside perimeter. Perimeter markings and

50f 113



designated access paths to destination points will be identified on the customer approval print and are
shown as approximate. Actual location(s) will be determined based on materials used and actual
conditions at final build. Access paths may pass through hose storage areas and opening or removal
of covers or restraints may be required. Access paths may require the operation of devices and
equipment such as the aerial device or ladder rack.

A plate that is highly visible to the driver while seated will be provided. This plate will show the overall
height, length, and gross vehicle weight rating.

The manufacturer will have programs in place for training, proficiency testing and perfosmance fer any
staff involved with certifications.

An official of the company will designate, in writing, who is qualified to witness and cetrtify test results.

NFPA COMPLIANCY

Apparatus proposed by the bidder will meet the applicable requirements of the,National Fire Protection
Association (NFPA) as stated in current edition at time of contract @xecutiong Fire department's
specifications that differ from NFPA specifications will be indicated'in‘the proposal as "non-NFPA".

VEHICLE INSPECTION PROGRAM CERTIFICATION

To assure the vehicle is built to current NFPA standards, the apparatus, in its entirety, will be third-
party, audit-certified through Underwriters Laboratory (UL) thatdt is built and complies to all applicable
standards in the current edition of NFPA 1901. The'eertification will include: all design, production,
operational, and performance testing of not only the;apparatus, but those components that are installed
on the apparatus.

A placard will be affixed in the driver's side areastating the third party agency, the date, the standard
and the certificate number of the whole\vehiele audit.

INSPECTION CERTIFICATE

A third party inspection certificate for the aerial device will be furnished upon delivery of the aerial
device. The certificate wilhbeyUnderwriters Laboratories Inc. Type 1 and will indicate that the aerial
device has been inspected-on the production line and after final assembly.

Visual structuralinspections will be performed on all welds on both aluminum and steel ladders.
On criticalweld areas, or on any suspected defective area, the following tests will be conducted:

o Magnetic particle inspection will be conducted on steel aerials to assure the integrity of the
weldments and to detect any flaws or weaknesses. Magnets will be placed on each side of the
weld while iron powder is placed on the weld itself. The powder will detect any crack that may
exist. This test will conform to ASTM E709 and be performed prior to assembly of the aerial
device.

e Aliquid penetrant test will be conducted on aluminum aerials to assure the integrity of the
weldments and to detect any flaws or weaknesses. This test will conform to ASTM E165 and be
performed prior to assembly of the aerial device.

6 of 113



e Ultrasonic inspection will conducted on all aerials to detect any flaws in pins, bolts and other
critical mounting components.

In addition to the tests above, functional tests, load tests, and stability tests will be performed on all
aerials. These tests will determine any unusual deflection, noise, vibration, or instability characteristics
of the unit.

GENERATOR TEST

If the unit has a generator, the generator will be tested, approved, and certified by Undenwriters
Laboratories at the manufacturer's expense. The test results will be provided to the Fire Department at
the time of delivery.

BREATHING AIR TEST

If the unit has breathing air, Pierce Manufacturing will draw an air sample frgm the air System and
certify that the air quality meets the requirements of NFPA 1989, Standard on, Breathing Air Quality for
Fire and Emergency Services Respiratory Protection.

PRE-CONSTRUCTION, FACTORY TRIP

A pre-construction trip to the manufacturing facility will be provided for four (4) Customer
representative(s). The intent of this trip is to review and finalize \in detail, the specifications prior to the
start of production. The pre-construction trip will havega duration/of four (4) days and three (3) nights
and be scheduled at times mutually agreed upon bétween Golden State Fire Apparatus (GSFA). and
the Customer. Costs for airfare, lodging, meals@nd greund‘transportation while at the manufacturers
location will be the responsibility of GSFA. Airitravelwill'be from one of the following airports:
Sacramento, San Francisco or San Jose,

Costs such as Customer ground transpoftation/in California, Customer airport parking, Customer
luggage fees and Customer incidentals while traveling to the factory will be the responsibility of the
Customer. Flight reservations_are nen-refundable and in the event of a cancellation after booking, the
Customer will be responsiblg for allicosts associated with this cancellation, which may include not only
the original ticket cost but also any,change or cancellation fees imposed by the airline and/ or travel
agency. Flight reservations are also non-transferable.

FINAL INSPECTION\FAETORY TRIP

A final inspectiontrip to the manufacturing facility will be provided for four (4) Customer
representative(s). The intent of this trip is to ensure that the apparatus is built to specification and to
detect any defigiencies that require correction. The final inspection trip will have a duration of four (4)
days and three/(3) nights and be scheduled at times mutually agreed upon between Golden State Fire
Apparatus, (GSFA). and the Customer. Costs for airfare, lodging, meals and ground transportation while
at theimanufacturers location will be the responsibility of GSFA. Air travel will be from one of the
following airports: Sacramento, San Francisco or San Jose.

Costs such as Customer ground transportation in California, Customer airport parking, Customer
luggage fees and Customer incidentals while traveling to the factory will be the responsibility of the
Customer. Flight reservations are non-refundable and in the event of a cancellation after booking, the
Customer will be responsible for all costs associated with this cancellation, which may include not only

7 of 113



the original ticket cost but also any change or cancellation fees imposed by the airline and/ or travel
agency. Flight reservations are also non-transferable.

MIDPOINT, FACTORY TRIP

A midpoint inspection trip to the manufacturing facility will be provided for four (4) Customer
representative(s). The intent of this trip is to monitor the progress of construction. The midpoint
inspection trip will have a duration of three (3) days and two (2) nights and be scheduled at times
mutually agreed upon between Golden State Fire Apparatus (GSFA) and the Customer. Castsyfor
airfare, lodging, meals and ground transportation while at the manufacturers location will be the
responsibility of GSFA. Air travel will be from one of the following airports: Sacramento,\San Francisco
or San Jose.

Costs such as Customer ground transportation in California, Customer airport parking,s/Customer
luggage fees and Customer incidentals while traveling to the factory will be the responsibility of the
Customer. Flight reservations are non-refundable and in the event of @ camcellation after booking, the
Customer will be responsible for all costs associated with this cancellation, which may include not only
the original ticket cost but also any change or cancellation fees imposed by‘the airline and/ or travel
agency. Flight reservations are also non-transferable.

PRODUCT CHANGES AND IMPROVEMENTS

Our components and processes, as described in thisfproposal document, are as accurate as known at
the time of bid submission, but are subject to change fer the, purpose of product or process
improvements, or changes in industry standards providing‘the change does not affect the meaning or
definition of the bid specifications.

AFTERMARKET SUPPORT WEBSITE

Pierceparts.com will provide Pierce@authorized/dealer access to comprehensive information pertaining
to the maintenance and service of.their customer's apparatus. This tool will provide the Pierce
authorized dealer the ability terservice and support their customers to the best of their ability with
factory support at their fingertips.

Pierceparts.com is algsd aceessible to the end user through the guest login. Limited access is available
and vehicle specific,parts information accessible by entering a specific VIN number. All end users
should see theirflocallautherized Pierce dealer for additional support and service.

The website will consist of the following screens at the dealer level:
My FleetsScreen

The My Fleet screen will provide access to truck detail information on the major components of the
vehicle, warranty information, available vehicle photographs, vehicle drawings, sales options,
applicable vehicle software downloads, etc.

Parts Screens

The Parts screens will provide parts look-up capability of Pierce Manufacturing sourced items, with the
aid of digital photographs, part drawings and assembly drawings. The parts search application will

8 of 113



permit the searching of parts by item description or function group (major system category). The parts
application will provide the ability to submit electronically a parts order, parts quote, or parts return
request directly to Pierce Manufacturing for processing.

Warranty Screen

The Warranty screens will provide dealers the ability to submit electronically warranty claims directly to
Pierce Manufacturing for reimbursement.

My Reports Screens

The My Reports screens will provide access to multiple dealer reports to allow the dealershipto
maintain communication with the customer on the status of orders, claims, and*phone contacts.

Technical Support Screens

The Technical Support screens will provide access to all currently published Operation and
Maintenance and Service Publications. Access to Pierce Manufacturing Sefvice Bulletins and Work
Instructions, containing information on current service topics and recommendations will be provided.

Training

The Training screens will provide access to upcoming trainings€lasses offered by Pierce Manufacturing
along with interactive electronic learning modules (Opérators Guides) covering the operation of major
vehicle components will be provided. Access(to trainingymanuals used in Pierce Manufacturing training
classes will be provided.

About Pierce

Access to customer service articles, corporate news, quarterly newsletters, and key contacts within the
Customer Service Departmept*Will be,provided. The current Customer Service Policy and Procedure
Manual, detailing the operation of the Customer Service group will also be accessible.

BID BOND NOT REQUESTED
A bid bond will natsbe m€luded. If requested, the following will apply:

All bidders will previde a bid bond as security for the bid in the form of a 5% bid bond to accompany
their bid. JEhis bid bend will be issued by a Surety Company who is listed on the U.S. Treasury
Departmentsdlist of acceptable sureties as published in Department Circular 570. The bid bond will be
issued by an authorized representative of the Surety Company and will be accompanied by a certified
power ofattorney dated on or before the date of bid. The bid bond will include language, which
assures that the bidder/principal will give a bond or bonds as may be specified in the bidding or contract
documents, with good and sufficient surety for the faithful performance of the contract, including the
Basic One (1) Year Limited Warranty, and for the prompt payment of labor and material furnished in the
prosecution of the contract.

Notwithstanding any document or assertion to the contrary, any surety bond related to the sale of a
vehicle will apply only to the Basic One (1) Year Limited Warranty for such vehicle. Any surety bond

9 of 113



related to the sale of a vehicle will not apply to any other warranties that are included within this bid
(OEM or otherwise) or to the warranties (if any) of any third party of any part, component, attachment or
accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle. In the event of any contradiction or
inconsistency between this provision and any other document or assertion, this provision will prevail.

PERFORMANCE BOND

Notwithstanding any document or assertion to the contrary, any surety bond related to the sale ofya
vehicle will apply only to the Basic One (1) Year Limited Warranty for such vehicle. Any sufety,bond
related to the sale of a vehicle will not apply to any other warranties that are included within this bid
(OEM or otherwise) or to the warranties (if any) of any third party of any part, component, attachment or
accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle. In the event of any/Contradiction or
inconsistency between this provision and any other document or assertion, thissprovisionswill prevail.

APPROVAL DRAWING

A drawing of the proposed apparatus will be prepared and provided tofthepurchaser for approval
before construction begins. The Pierce sales representative will also be provided with a copy of the
same drawing. The finalized and approved drawing will become partof the‘contract documents. This
drawing will indicate the chassis make and model, location of the lightsasiren, horns, compartments,
major components, etc.

A "revised" approval drawing of the apparatus will befpreparted and submitted by Pierce to the
purchaser showing any changes made to the approvaldrawing.

ELECTRICAL WIRING DIAGRAMS
Two (2) electrical wiring diagrams, preparedifor the model of chassis and body, will be provided.

ARROW XT CHASSIS

The Pierce Arrow XT™ is the custom chassiS developed exclusively for the fire service. Chassis
provided will be a new, tilt-type custem fire apparatus. The chassis will be manufactured in the
apparatus body builder's fagility eliminating any split responsibility. The chassis will be designed and
manufactured for heavy-dutyaservice, with adequate strength, capacity for the intended load to be
sustained, and the type of service required. The chassis will be the manufacturer's heavy-duty line tilt
cab.

MAXIMUM OVERALL HEIGHT
The maximum overall height of the apparatus will be 11'4".

WHEELBASE
Thé wheelbase of the vehicle will be 245.50.

GVWRATING
The gross vehicle weight rating will be 66,800.

FRAME

The chassis frame will be built with two (2) steel channels bolted to five (5) cross members or more,
depending on other options of the apparatus. The side rails will have a 13.38" tall web over the front
and mid sections of the chassis, with a continuous smooth taper to 10.75" over the rear axle. Each rail

10 of 113



will have a section modulus of 25.992 cubic inches and a resisting bending moment (rbm) of 3,119,040
in-Ib over the critical regions of the frame assembly, with a section modulus of 18.96 cubic inches with
an rbm of 2,275,200 in-Ib over the rear axle. The frame rails will be constructed of 120,000 psi yield
strength heat-treated 0.38" thick steel with 3.50" wide flanges.

FRAME REINFORCEMENT

In addition, a full-length mainframe internal "C" liner will be provided. The liner will be an intefnalkiC"
design that steps to a smaller internal "C" design over the rear axle. It will be heat-treated,steel
measuring 12.50" x 3.00" x 0.25" through the front "C" portion of the liner, stepping to 9.88" x 3.00*
0.25" through the rear "C" portion of the liner. Each liner will have a section modulus of{13.58 gubic
inches, yield strength of 110,000 psi, and rbm of 857,462 in-Ib. Total rom at wheglbase center will be
4,391,869 in-Ib.

The frame liner will be mounted inside of the chassis frame rail and extend the full length of the frame.

FRONT NON DRIVE AXLE
The Oshkosh TAK-4® front axle will be of the independent suspension design with a ground rating of
22,800 Ib.

Upper and lower control arms will be used on each side @f the axle. Upper control arm castings will be
made of 100,000 psi yield strength 8630 steel and theflower. control arm casting will be made of 55,000
psi yield ductile iron.

The center cross members and side plates will be censtrécted out of 80,000 psi yield strength steel.

Each control arm will be mounted to the enterseetion using elastomer bushings. These rubber
bushings will rotate on low friction plain bearings and be lubricated for life. Each bushing will also have
a flange end to absorb longitudinalfimpactieads, reducing noise and vibrations.

There will be nine (9) greasedittings‘'supplied, one (1) on each control arm pivot and one (1) on the
steering gear extension.

The upper control arpwill\be shorter than the lower arm so that wheel end geometry provides positive
camber when deflectedbelow rated load and negative camber above rated load.

Camber at load willdbe 0 degrees for optimum tire life.

The ballgoint bearing will be of low friction design and be maintenance free.

Toenlinks thatare adjustable for alignment of the wheel to the center of the chassis will be provided.
The wheel ends will have little to no bump steer when the chassis encounters a hole or obstacle.

The steering linkage will provide proper steering angles for the inside and outside wheel, based on the
vehicle wheelbase.

The axle will have a third party certified turning angle of 45 degrees. Front discharge, front suction, or
aluminum wheels will not infringe on this cramp angle.

11 of 113



FRONT SUSPENSION
Front Oshkosh TAK-4™ independent suspension will be provided with a minimum ground rating of
22,800 Ib.

The independent suspension system will be designed to provide maximum ride comfort. The design
will allow the vehicle to travel at highway speeds over improved road surfaces and at moderate speeds
over rough terrain with minimal transfer of road shock and vibration to the vehicle's crew compartment.

Each wheel will have torsion bar type spring. In addition, each front wheel end will also have energy
absorbing jounce bumpers to prevent bottoming of the suspension.

The suspension design will be such that there is at least 10.00" of total wheel travel and ayminimum of
3.75" before suspension bottoms.

The torsion bar anchor lock system allows for simple lean adjustments, without thefuse of shims. One
can adjust for a lean within 15 minutes per side. Anchor adjustment design istsuch that it allows for ride
height adjustment on each side.

The independent suspension was put through a durability test that simulated 140,000 miles of inner city
driving.

FRONT SHOCK ABSORBERS
KONI heavy-duty telescoping shock absorbers will'he provided on the front suspension.

FRONT OIL SEALS
Oil seals with viewing window will be prowided,on.the’front axle.

FRONT TIRES
Front tires will be Goodyear® 425/65R22.50 radials, 20 ply G296 MSA tread, rated for 22,800 Ib
maximum axle load and 68 mph,maximum speed.

The tires will be mounted on'Alcoa 22.50" x 12.25" polished aluminum disc type wheels with a ten
(10)stud, 11.25" bolt circle.

REAR AXLE
The rear axle will befa Meritor™, Model RT-46-160, tandem axle assembly with a capacity of 48,000 Ib.

An inter-axle differential, which divides torque evenly between axles, will be provided with an indicator
light mounted op the cab instrument panel.

TOR\SPEED OF VEHICLE
A rear axle ratio will be furnished to allow the vehicle to reach a top speed of 60 mph.

SUSPENSION, REAR
Rear suspension will be Link® Air Link™ combination air ride and walking beam with a ground rating of
48,000 pounds.

REAR OIL SEALS
Oil seals will be provided on the rear axle(s).

12 of 113



REAR TIRES
Rear tires will be eight (8) Goodyear 12R22.50 radials, load range H, all position, G751 MSA tread,
rated for 54,240 Ib maximum axle load and 68 mph maximum speed.

The tires will be mounted on Alcoa®© 22.50" x 8.25" polished aluminum disc wheels with a ten (10) stud
11.25" bolt circle.

TIRE BALANCE
All tires will be balanced with Counteract balancing beads. The beads will be inserted into the tirg,and
eliminate the need for wheel weights.

TIRE PRESSURE MANAGEMENT

There will be a RealWheels LED AirSecure™ tire alert pressure management system provided, that will
monitor each tire's pressure. A sensor will be provided on the valve stem of €ach tire for a total of 10
tires.

The sensor will calibrate to the tire pressure when installed on the alve stemfor pressures between 10
and 200 psi. The sensor will activate an integral battery operated LED,when the pressure of that tire
drops 5 to 8 psi.

Removing the cap from the sensor will indicate the functiepality of the sensor and battery. If the sensor
and battery are in working condition, the LED will immediately.start to flash.

FRONT HUB COVERS
Stainless steel hub covers will be provided on‘the’front axle. An oil level viewing window will be
provided.

REAR HUB COVERS
Stainless steel, high hat, hub covers will be provided on the rear axle hubs.

WHEEL CHOCKS
There will be one (1) pair,0f folding/Ziamatic, Model SAC-44-E, aluminum alloy, Quick-Choc wheel
blocks, with easy-gripfhandle provided.

Wheel Chock Bfackets

There will be oney(¥) pair of Zico, Model SQCH-44-H, horizontal mounting wheel chock brackets
provided ferthe Ziamatic, Model SAC-44-E, folding wheel chocks. The brackets will be made of
aluminum aneseonsist of a quick release spring loaded rod to hold the wheel chocks in place. The
brackets will be'mounted forward of the left side rear tire.

ANTRKOCK BRAKE SYSTEM

The vehicle will be equipped with a Wabco 4S4M, anti-lock braking system. The ABS will provide a
four (4) channel anti-lock braking control on both the front and rear wheels (rear tandem wheels). A
digitally controlled system that utilizes microprocessor technology will control the anti-lock braking
system. Each wheel will be monitored by the system. When any particular wheel begins to lockup, a
signal will be sent to the control unit. This control unit then will reduce the braking of that wheel for a

13 of 113



fraction of a second and then reapply the brake. This anti-lock brake system will eliminate the lockup of
any wheel thus helping to prevent the apparatus from skidding out of control.

BRAKES
The service brake system will be full air type.

The front brakes will be Knorr/Bendix disc type with a 17.00" ventilated rotor for improved stopping
distance.

The brake system will be certified, third party inspected, for improved stopping distance.
The rear brakes will be Meritor™ 16.50" x 8.63" cam operated with automatic sla¢k adjusters.

BRAKE SYSTEM AIR COMPRESSOR
The air compressor will be a Cummins/WABCO with 18.7 cubic feet per minute autput.

BRAKE SYSTEM
The brake system will include:

o Bendix dual brake treadle valve

¢ Heated automatic moisture ejector on air dryer

e Total air system capacity of 6,653 cubic inches

e Two (2) air pressure gauges with a red warfiinggdight and an audible alarm, that activates when
air pressure falls below 60 psi

e Spring set parking brake system

e Parking brake operated by a push-pullstyles€ontrol valve

e A parking "brake on" indicator light on instrument panel

e Park brake relay/inversion@and antifeempounding valve, in conjunction with a double check
valve system, will be providedswith an automatic spring brake application at 40 psi

e A pressure protectiopn valveywilhbe provided to prevent all air operated accessories from drawing
air from the air system when/the system pressure drops below 80 psi (550 kPa).

e Quarter turn drain valves®en each air tank

The air tank will be primed and painted to meet a minimum 750 hour salt spray test.
To reduce the effects of corrosion, the air tank will be mounted with stainless steel brackets.

BRAKE SYSTEM AIR DRYER
Theyair dryer will be a Bendix AD-SP, with heater.

BRAKE LINES
Color-eoded nylon brake lines will be provided. The lines will be wrapped in a heat protective loom in
the chassis areas that are subject to excessive heat.

AIR INLET
One (1) air inlet with 3D series male coupling will be provided. It will allow station air to be supplied to
the apparatus brake system through a shoreline hose. The inlet will be located forward in the driver

14 of 113



side lower step well of cab. A check valve will be provided to prevent reverse flow of air. The inlet will
discharge into the "wet" tank of the brake system. A mating female fitting will also be provided with the
loose equipment.

AIR OUTLET

One (1) air outlet will be installed with a female coupling located TBD. This system will tie into the "wet"
tank of the brake system, include an 85 psi pressure protection valve in the outlet line to prevéntithe
brake system from losing all air, and include a quarter turn shut off valve mounted at the tankyThe
valve and hoses will be mounted to the tank as high as possible to ensure maximum clearance and
protect the lines from being damaged by brush and rocks during off-road operations.

ALL WHEEL LOCK-UP
An all wheel lock-up system will be installed which applies air to the front brakes'and uses the spring
brake at the rear.

Front brakes will apply with the standard parking brake control.

The all wheel lock-up system will be operational only when the parking,brake is applied, the truck
transmission is in neutral and engine is running.

LABEL, AIR TANKS
There will be a stick-on style label provided on all ofithe ghassis air tanks to identify the function a
particular tank provides to the chassis (quick build upyisolated, chassis air supply, etc.).

COMPRESSION FITTINGS
Any nylon tube on the apparatus that is pheumatieswill be plumbed with compression type fittings where
applicable.

ENGINE

The chassis will be powered by"an electronically controlled engine as described below:

Make: Cummins®

Model: X5

Power: 605yhp at 1800 rpm

Torque: 1850 th-ft at 2000 rpm

Governed 2100 rpm

Speed:

Emissionsleével: | EPA 2021

Fuel Diesel

Cylinders: Six (6)

Displacement: 912 cubic inches (14.9L)

Starter: Delco 39MT™

Fuel Filters: Spin-on style primary filter with water separator and water-in-fuel sensor.
Secondary spin-on style filter.

15 of 113




The engine will include On-board diagnostics (OBD), which provides self diagnostic and reporting. The
system will give the owner or repair technician access to state of health information for various vehicle
sub systems. The system will monitor vehicle systems, engine and after treatment. The system will
illuminate a malfunction indicator light on the dash console if a problem is detected.

REMOTE MOUNTED ENGINE FILTERS
The engine fuel and oil filters will be remote mounted for ease of maintenance.

HIGH IDLE

A high idle switch will be provided, inside the cab, on the instrument panel, that will autematically
maintain a preset engine rpm. A switch will be installed, at the cab instrument papélifor
activation/deactivation.

The high idle will be operational only when the parking brake is on and thetruck transmission is in
neutral. A green indicator light will be provided, adjacent to the switchsgsThe lightiwill illuminate when
the above conditions are met. The light will be labeled "OK to Engage*High Idle."

ENGINE BRAKE
A Jacobs® engine brake is to be installed with the controls located on the instrument panel within easy
reach of the driver.

The driver will be able to turn the engine brake systém op/offi@nd have a high, medium and low setting.
The engine brake will activate when the systeptis on andsthe throttle is released.

The high setting of the brake application williactivatesand work simultaneously with the variable
geometry turbo (VGT) provided on the engine.

The engine brake will be installeddn such a'manner that when the engine brake is slowing the vehicle
the brake lights are activated.

The ABS system will automatically disengage the auxiliary braking device, when required.

CLUTCH FAN
A Horton® fan clutchywill,be provided. The fan clutch will be automatic when the pump transmission is
in "Road" position, and fully engaged in "Pump" position.

ENGINEAIR INTAKE

The air intake with an ember separator will be mounted high on the passenger side of the cab, to the
frontef the crew cab door. The ember separator is designed to prevent road dirt and recirculating hot
air framsentering the engine. The ember separator will be easily accessible through a hinged stainless
steel grille, with one (1) flush quarter turn latch.

EXHAUST SYSTEM

The exhaust system will include a Single Module™ aftertreatment device to meet current EPA
standards. The exhaust system will be stainless steel from the turbo to the inlet of the aftertreatment
device, and will be 5.00" in diameter. An insulation wrap will be provided on all exhaust pipes between
the turbo and aftertreatment device to minimize the heat loss to the aftertreatment device.

16 of 113



The tailpipe will be flush with the side of the body, and will discharge the exhaust horizontally. The last
4.00" of the tail pipe will be free of any restriction of hangers or clamps to ensure an easy deployment
of an exhaust extraction hose. A tailpipe diffuser will be provided to reduce the temperature of the
exhaust as it exits. The diffuser will include a 5.00" diameter tip for connection to an exhaust extraction
system.

Heat deflector shields will be provided to isolate chassis and body components from the heatfof the
tailpipe diffuser.

RADIATOR
The radiator and the complete cooling system will meet or exceed NFPA and engifnefymanufacturer
cooling system standards.

For maximum corrosion resistance and cooling performance, the entire radiator core,will be constructed
using long life aluminum alloy. The core will be made of aluminum finsghaving aiserpentine design,
brazed to aluminum tubes. The tubes will be brazed to aluminum headers! TRe radiator core will have
a minimum frontal area of approximately 1,352 square inches. Supply tankgnade of glass-reinforced
nylon and a return tank of cast aluminum alloy will be crimped on to the,core assembly using header
tabs and a compression gasket to complete the radiator copemassembly. The radiator will be compatible
with commercial antifreeze solutions.

There will be a full steel frame around the entire radiatogfcoret@ssembly. The radiator core assembly
will be isolated within the steel frame by rubberdnserts.to enhance cooling system durability and
reliability. The radiator will be mounted in such amanner as to prevent the development of leaks
caused by twisting or straining when the apparatus operates over uneven ground. The radiator
assembly will be isolated from the chassis frame rails with rubber isolators.

The radiator assembly will includefan integral"de-aeration tank permanently mounted to the top of the
radiator framework, with a readily aeccessible remote-mounted overflow tank. For visual coolant level
inspection, the radiator will have a'built-in sight glass. The radiator will be equipped with a 15 psi
pressure relief cap.

A drain port will be locatedatthe lowest point of the cooling system and/or the bottom of the radiator to
permit completedlushingief the coolant from the system.

A heavy-duty fan will draw in fresh, cool air through the radiator. Shields or baffles will be provided to
prevent ygecirculation of hot air to the inlet side of the radiator.

COOLANTLLINES
Gates, or'Goodyear, rubber hose will be used for all engine coolant lines installed by Pierce
Manufacturing.

Hose clamps will be stainless steel constant torque type to prevent coolant leakage. They will expand
and contract according to coolant system temperature thereby keeping a constant clamping pressure
on the hose.

17 of 113



FUEL TANK

A 65 gallon fuel tank will be provided and mounted at the rear of the chassis. The tank will be
constructed of 12-gauge, hot rolled steel. It will be equipped with swash partitions and a vent. To
eliminate the effects of corrosion, the fuel tank will be mounted with stainless steel straps.

A 0.75" drain plug will be located in a low point of the tank for drainage.

A fill inlet will be located on the left hand side of the body and is covered with a hinged, spring)Joaded,
stainless steel door that is marked "Ultra Low Sulfur - Diesel Fuel Only."

A 0.50" diameter vent will be installed from tank top to just below fuel fill inlet.

The fuel tank will meet all FHWA 393.67 requirements including a fill capacity,0f95 percent of tank
volume.

All fuel lines will be provided as recommended by the engine manufagturer.

DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID TANK
An 8.0 gallon diesel exhaust fluid (DEF) tank will be provided and mounted in the left side body forward
of the rear axle.

A 0.50" drain plug will be provided in a low point of the"tankyfor drainage.

A fill inlet will be provided and marked "Diesel Exhaust FluidOnly". The fill inlet will be located behind
a, painted door on the left side of the vehicle.

The tank will meet the engine manufacturers requirement for 10 percent expansion space in the event
of tank freezing.

The tank will include an integratethheater unit that utilizes engine coolant to thaw the DEF in the event
of freezing.

FUEL SHUTOFF
A fuel line shutoff valye will be installed on both the inlet and outlet of the primary fuel filter. Fuel line
shutoff valves willbe, installed in the suction fuel line and the return fuel line at the fuel tank.

FUEL COOLER
An air to fuel coolerwill be installed in the engine fuel return line.

FUEL/WATER SEPARATOR SHUTOFF

Two'(2)'shutoff valves will be installed at the fuel/water separator filter to allow the fuel filter to be
changed without the loss of fuel to the fuel pump.

FUEL FILL DOOR
Fuel fill door will be painted job color.

FUEL DOOR LABEL
There will be a label provided fuel fill door, to read "Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel Fuel Only".

18 of 113



FUEL SEPARATOR
The engine will be equipped with a Racor in-line spin-on fuel and water separator in addition to the
engine fuel filters.

TRANSMISSION
An Allison 5th generation, model EVS 4500P, electronic, torque converting, automatic transmission will
be provided.

The transmission will be equipped with prognostics to monitor oil life, filter life, and transmissionthgalth.
A wrench icon on the shift selector's digital display will indicate when service is due.

Two (2) PTO openings will be located on left side and top of converter housing (pesitions'8 o'clock and
1 o'clock).

A transmission temperature gauge with red light and buzzer will be installed‘on thef€ab instrument
panel.

TRANSMISSION SHIFTER
A six (6)-speed push button shift module will be mounted to right of driver on console. Shift position
indicator will be indirectly lit for after dark operation.

The transmission ratio will be 1st - 4.70 to 1.00, 2nd#2.21 t0.1.00, 3rd - 1.53 to 1.00, 4th - 1.00 to 1.00,
5th - 0.76 to 1.00, 6th - 0.67 to 1.00, R - 5.55 to 1.00.

TRANSMISSION COOLER

An externally mounted Modine bar plate ransmission oil cooler will be provided using engine coolant to
control the transmission oil temperature.. The internal bar plates will be constructed of stainless steel.
The cooler's housing will be construeted ‘of 1020 steel, coated to protect from corrosion. The cooler will
be tagged with information includiag OEM part number, vendor serial number and date / lot code.

DOWNSHIFT MODE (W/ENGINE BRAKE)
The transmission will be provided with an aggressive downshift mode.

This will provide earlier, tsansmission downshifts to 3rd gear from 6th gear, resulting in improved engine
braking performance.

TRANSMISSION ELUID
The trangmission will be provided with TranSynd, or other Allison approved TES-295 heavy duty
syntheticttfansmission fluid.

DRIVELINE
Drivelines will be a heavy-duty metal tube and be equipped with Spicer® 1810 universal joints.

The shafts will be dynamically balanced before installation.

A splined slip joint will be provided in each driveshaft where the driveline design requires it. The slip
joint will be coated with Glidecoat® or equivalent.

19 of 113



STEERING

Dual Sheppard, Model M110, steering gears, with integral heavy-duty power steering, will be provided.
For reduced system temperatures, the power steering will incorporate an air to oil cooler and an Eaton,
Model VN20, hydraulic pump with integral pressure and flow control. All power steering lines will have
wire braded lines with crimped fittings.

A tilt and telescopic steering column will be provided to improve fit for a broader range of driver
configurations.

STEERING WHEEL
The steering wheel will be 18.00" in diameter, have tilting and telescoping capabilities, and a4-spoke
design.

LOGO AND CUSTOMER DESIGNATION ON HORN BUTTON

The steering wheel will have an emblem containing the Pierce logo andseustoemermame. The emblem
will have three (3) rows of text for the customer's department name. There wilhbe a maximum of eight
(8) characters in the first row, 11 characters in the second row and &1 chara€ters in the third row.

The first row of text will be;: CENTRAL
The second row of text will be: COUNTY
The third row of text will be: FIRE DEPT

BUMPER
A one (1) piece, ten (10) gauge 304-2B peolished stainless steel bumper, minimum of 10.00" high, will
be attached to the front of the chassis frame.

A 9.00" formed steel channel willgge mounted directly behind bumper for additional strength.

Gravel Pan
A gravel pan, constructed of bright aluminum treadplate, will be furnished between the bumper and cab
face.

LIFT AND TOW MOUNTLS
Mounted to the"frame extension will be lift and tow mounts. The lift and tow mounts will be designed
and positioned to adapt to certain tow truck lift systems.

The lift apdstowimounts with eyes will be painted the same color as the frame.

TOW EYES
Two (2) chrome tow eyes will be mounted through the front face of the bumper.

The inner and outer edges of the tow eyes will have a .25" radius.
Tow eyes will be mounted directly to the bumper frame.

Cutouts will be provided in the front face of stainless steel bumper to allow tow eyes to extend out the
front.

20 of 113



The tow eyes will be designed and positioned to allow up to a 9,000 Ib straight horizontal pull in line
with the centerline of the vehicle. The tow eyes will not be used for lifting of the apparatus.

CAB
The Arrow XT cab will be designed specifically for the fire service and will be manufactured by the
chassis builder.

The cab will be built by the apparatus manufacturer in a facility located on the manufacturer'sipremises.

For reasons of structural integrity and enhanced occupant protection, the cab will be of,heavy duty
design, constructed to the following minimal standards.

The cab will have 12 main vertical structural members located in the A-pillar (frent cab cerner posts), B-
pillar (side center posts), C-pillar (rear corner posts) and rear wall areas. The A-pillarwill be
constructed of solid A356-T5 aluminum. The B-pillar and C-pillar will be ,constructed from 0.25" heavy
wall extrusions. The rear wall will be constructed of two (2) 4.00" x 2.00" Quter aluminum extrusions
and two (2) 3.00" x 2.00" inner aluminum extrusions. All main vertieal structural members will run from
the floor to 6.50" x 4.875" x 0.1875" thick roof extrusions to provide a‘cage-like structure with the A-
pillar and roof extrusions being welded into a 0.36" thick corner casting at each of the front corners of
the roof assembly.

The front of the cab will be constructed of a 0.25" thick gussetplate, covered with a 0.090" front skin
(for a total thickness of 0.34"), and reinforced with a'95.00" wide x 11.13" deep x 0.50" thick cross-cab
support located just below the windshield. Thé crass-cab support will run the full width of the cab and
weld to each A-pillar, the 0.25" thick gusset plate and'the front skin.

The cab floors will be constructed of 0.1875" thick aluminum plate and reinforced at the firewall with an
additional 0.50" thick cross-floor support previding a total thickness of 0.6875" of structural material at
the front floor area. The front floorareéa will also be supported with one (1) 0.50" plate bolted to one (1)
0.78" plate that also provideg'the ' mounting point for the cab lift. This tubing will run from the front of the
cab to the 0.187" thick engine tunnel, creating the structure to support the forces created when lifting
the cab.

The cab will be 94¥75" wide (outside door skin to outside door skin) to maintain maximum
maneuverability.

The forwar@rcab section will have an overall height (from the cab roof to the ground) of approximately
103.00"5, Lhe crew cab section will have a 10.00" raised roof, with an overall cab height of
appreximately#13.00". The overall height listed will be calculated based on a truck configuration with
the lowestisuspension weight ratings, the smallest diameter tires for the suspension, no water weight,
no loose equipment weight, and no personnel weight. Larger tires, wheels, and suspension will
increase the overall height listed.

The raised roof section of the crew cab will have a 58.00" wide x 10.00" high square notch in the center
section of the roof. This will allow the aerial device to be bedded in the same location as a non-raised
roof.

21 of 113



The floor to ceiling height inside the crew cab will be 54.00" in the center and 69.25" in the outboard
positions.

The crew cab floor will measure 54.12" from rear wall to the back side of engine tunnel.
The engine tunnel, at the rearward highest point (knee level), will measure 61.75" to the back wall.

The crew cab will be of the totally enclosed design with access doors constructed in the same manner
as the driver and passenger doors.

The cab will be a full tilt cab style.

A 3-point cab mount system with rubber isolators will improve ride quality by isolating chassis vibrations
from the cab.

CAB ROOF DRIP RAIL

For enhanced protection from inclement weather, a drip rail will be furnished on the sides of the cab.
The drip rail will be constructed of bright polished extruded aluminum, and be bonded to the sides of
the cab. The drip rail will extend the full length of the cab roof.

INTERIOR CAB INSULATION
The cab will include 1.50" insulation in the ceiling andgSide'walls; and 2.00" insulation in the rear wall to
maximize acoustic absorption and thermal insulatien.

FENDER LINERS
Full circular inner fender liners in the wheelwells will be provided.

WINDSHIELD

A curved safety glass windshield will be previded with over 2,754 square inches of clear viewing area.
The cab windshield will have brightittim inserts in the rubber molding holding the glass in place.
Economical windshield replacement glass will be readily available from local auto glass suppliers.

All cab glass will be tinteeh

WINDSHIELD WIRERS
Two (2) electriefwindshiel@dwipers with washer will be provided that meet FMVSS and SAE
requirements.

The washerseservoir will be able to be filled without raising the cab.

GLOVE.BOX
A glove box with a drop-down door will be installed in the front dash panel in front of the officer's
position.

ENGINE TUNNEL
Engine hood side walls will be constructed of 0.50" aluminum. The top will be constructed of 0.19"
aluminum and will be tapered at the top to allow for more driver and passenger elbow room.

22 of 113



The engine hood will be insulated for protection from heat and sound. The noise insulation keeps the
dBA level within the limits stated in the current NFPA 1901 standards.

CAB REAR WALL EXTERIOR COVERING
The exterior surface of the rear wall of the cab will be overlaid with bright aluminum treadplate except
for areas that are not typically visible when the cab is lowered.

CAB LIFT
A hydraulic cab lift system will be provided consisting of an electric powered hydraulic pdmpy dual lift
cylinders, and necessary hoses and valves.

The hydraulic pump will have a manual override for backup in the event of electrical failure,
Lift controls will be recessed in the left side step well.

In addition to the panel controls, a 15' remote control will be provided for raising and lowering the cab.
The remote control will be stored in the cab. The receptacle for the remote centrol will be located next
to the master controls in the driver's step well.

The engine will be easily accessible and capable of being semeved with the cab tilted. The cab will be
capable of tilting 45 degrees and 90 degrees with crane‘assist.

Cab will be locked down by a two (2)-point automatic spfing-leaded hook mechanism that actuates after
the cab has been lowered.

The hydraulic cylinders will be equipped with avelocity fuse that protects the cab from accidentally
descending when the control is located in the tilt position.

For increased safety, a redundantymechanieal’stay arm will be provided that must be manually put in
place on the driver side between the ghassis and cab frame when cab is in the raised position. This
device will be manually stowéd to'its ariginal position before the cab can be lowered.

Cab Lift Interlock

The cab lift system will befinterlocked to the parking brake. The cab tilt mechanism will be active only
when the parkinggbrake'is set and the ignition switch is in the on position. If the parking brake is
released, the cab tilty/mechanism will be disabled.

GRILLE
A bright'inished aluminum mesh grille screen, inserted behind a bright finished grille surround, will be
provided on,thé front center of the cab.

SCURFPLATE
A brushed stainless steel scuffplate will be provided on the entire rear vertical surface of the engine
tunnel.

DOOR JAMB SCUFFPLATES
All cab door jambs will be furnished with a polished stainless steel scuffplate, mounted on the striker
side of the jamb.

23 of 113



MIRRORS

A Retrac Aerodynamic, Model 613295, dual vision, motorized, west coast style mirror with chrome
finish will be mounted on each side of the front cab door with spring loaded retractable arms. The flat
glass and convex glass will be adjustable with a remote control within reach of the driver.

DOORS

To enhance entry and egress to the cab, the forward cab doors will be a minimum of 37.50" widewx
74.25" high. The crew cab doors will be located on the sides of the cab and will be constructed in the
same manner as the forward cab doors. The crew cab doors will measure a minimum,of 34.88" wite x
84.25" high.

The forward cab and crew cab doors will be constructed of extruded aluminum with alhominal material
thickness of 0.125". The exterior door skins will be constructed from 0.090" aluminum.

A flush mounted, chrome plated paddle type door handle will be providedyon'the exterior of each cab
door. Each door will also be provided with an interior flush paddle handle.

The cab doors will be provided with both interior (rotary knob) and‘exterior/(keyed) locks as required by
FMVSS 206. The locks will be capable of activating when the doors are open or closed. The doors will
remain locked if locks are activated when the doors are @penedythen closed.

A heavy duty, stainless steel, piano type hinge with@ 0.38" pindand 11 gauge leaf will be provided on all
cab doors. There will be double automotive type rubbér seals around the perimeter of the door framing
and door edges to ensure a weather tight fit.

A chrome grab handle will be provided oft thetinsideof each cab and crew cab door.

The cab steps at each cab door location Wwill be'located inside the cab doors to protect the steps from
weather elements.

Door Panels
There will be a full height,brushed stainless steel door panel installed on the inside of all cab doors.
The cab door panelswill be removable without disconnecting door and window mechanisms.

MANUAL CAB DOOR WINDOWS
All cab entry doorsawill contain a conventional roll down window.

CAB STEPS

The forward cab and crew cab access steps will be a full size two (2) step design to provide largest
possible, stépping surfaces for safe ingress and egress. The bottom steps will be designed with a grip
pattern‘punched into bright aluminum treadplate material to provide support, slip resistance, and
drainage. The bottom steps will be a bolt-in design to minimize repair costs should they need to be
replaced. The forward cab steps will be a minimum 24.75" wide, and the crew cab steps will be 21.25"
wide with an 8.00" minimum depth. The inside cab steps will not exceed 18.00" in height and be limited
to two (2) steps.

24 of 113



CAB EXTERIOR HANDRAILS
A 1.25" diameter slip-resistant, knurled aluminum handrail will be provided adjacent to each cab and
crew cab door opening to assist during cab ingress and egress.

STEP LIGHTS

For reduced overall maintenance costs compared to incandescent lighting, there will be four (4) white
LED step lights provided. The lights will be installed at each cab and crew cab door, one (1) persstep.
The lights will be located in the driver side front doorstep, driver side crew cab doorstep, passenger:
side front doorstep and passenger side crew cab doorstep.

In order to ensure exceptional illumination, each light will provide a minimum of 25/%0et-candles (fc)
covering an entire 15.00" x 15.00" square placed 10.00" below the light and a minimum of'1.5 fc
covering an entire 30.00" x 30.00" square at the same 10.00" distance below the light.

The lights will be activated when the adjacent door is opened.

FENDER CROWNS

Stainless steel fender crowns will be installed at the cab wheel openings. The fender crowns will have
a radius outside corner that will allow the fender crown to extend out further than the standard width
crown, thus extending beyond the sidewall of the front tires andiallow the crew cab doors to open fully.

HANDRAILS BELOW CAB WINDSHIELD

A 10.00" long x 1.25" diameter handrail will be mounted belew the front cab windshield, one (1) on each
side. The handrails will be extruded aluminum with.a ribbed design to provide a positive gripping
surface.

CREW CAB WINDOWS
One (1) fixed window with tinted glass will‘eesprovided on each side of the cab, to the rear of the crew
cab door. The windows will measuge6.50" wide x 21.88" high.

WINDOW PROTECTOR BARS, CREW CAB DOORS

A knurled window proteeter bar will’be installed on each crew cab door, 2.00" above the bottom of the
window opening. Theé bagwill extend from the front of the crew cab door to the rear of the crew cab
door, mounted ass€leseto the door frame as possible.

STORAGE COMRARTMENT

Providedginder the forward facing crew cab seats will be a transverse compartment. The compartment
will be divided tato upper and lower sections by a removable divider located at the cab floor. The upper
section will be24.75" wide x 13.12" high x 26.50" deep (driver side) and 22.50" deep (passenger side).
The'top/7988" of the upper compartment will be full width (transverse) of the crew cab. The lower
section on both sides will be 24.75" wide x 16.75" high x 16.50" deep. The front of the driver side lower
compartment will have a 6.00" wide x 5.00" deep blister to provide clearance to the cab lift pump. The
compartment will extend from the bottom of the cab to top of the seat riser.

There will be an access door on both sides of the cab with double pan doors.

25 of 113



Doors will be latched with recessed, polished stainless steel "D" ring handles and Eberhard 106 latch.
The doors will include gas shock style positive door holders.

There will be one (1) drop down door, single pan construction, on the forward face of the seat riser.
Drop down door will include two (2) flush quarter turn latches.

The crew cab door grab handles will be located above the side compartment doors. The cab side
access doors will be painted to match the cab exterior and the drop down door inside thes€ab will be
constructed of polished stainless steel.

The compartment interior will be painted to match the cab interior.

EXTERIOR ACCESS LIGHTING
Exterior compartment access lighting will consist of eight (8) white LED strip\lights, @nhe (1) each side of
lower and upper exterior compartment door opening.

FASTENERS
All nut and washer combinations used on the engine tunnel mounting plate will be replaced with AVK
nutcerts.

SPECIAL TAG
There will be one (1) special tag(s) provided., The tag(s) will read OAH, OAL, GVWR, to be placed in
clear view of the driver, mount to the left side of,switch panel #1.

SCREW INSERTS ON CAB DOORS
All removable panels for the cab and€rew cab doors will be mounted with inserts. Self tapping screws
will not be used.

MOUNTING PLATE ONENGINEFUNNEL
Equipment installation, pravisions will be installed on the engine tunnel.

A .188" alumingm plate will be bolted to the top the engine tunnel match 33579. The plate will be
spaced off the engine tunnel 1.00" to allow for wire routing below the plate. The size of the plate will be
approximately match*33579. The mounting surface will be painted to match the cab interior.

CAB INTERIOR
The'leftiand right side dash and center console will be a flat faced design to provide easy maintenance
and will be constructed out of painted aluminum.

The engine tunnel will be padded and covered with leather grain vinyl resistant to oil, grease and
mildew.

For durability and ease of maintenance, the cab interior side walls will be painted aluminum. The rear
wall will be painted aluminum.

26 of 113



The headliner will be installed in both forward and rear cab sections. Headliner material will be vinyl. A
sound barrier will be part of its composition. Material will be installed on aluminum sheet and securely
fastened to interior cab ceiling.

Forward portion of cab headliner will provide easy access for servicing electrical wiring or for other
maintenance needs without removing the entire unit.

CAB INTERIOR UPHOLSTERY
The cab interior upholstery will be 36 oz dark silver gray vinyl.

CAB INTERIOR PAINT
The following metal surfaces will be painted black, vinyl textured paint:

e Modesty panel in front of driver

e Vertical surface of dash in front of the officer (not applicable for recessed dash)
e Power distribution in front of the officer

e Rear heater vent panels

The remaining cab interior metal surfaces will be painted gray, vinyl texture paint.

CAB FLOOR
The cab and crew cab floor areas will be covered with Palydamp™ acoustical floor mat consisting of a
black pyramid rubber facing and closed cell foam deeatplers

The top surface of the material has a series of faised pyramid shapes evenly spaced, which offer a
superior grip surface. Additionally, the material hass@ 0.25" thick closed cell foam, no water absorption,
which offers a sound dampening material for reducing sound levels.

CAB DEFROSTER
There will be a 41,000 BTU defrester.in the cab located under the engine tunnel.

The defroster ventilation willlbe built into the design of the cab dash instrument panel and will be easily
removable for maintepance.

The defroster will’have ax3-speed blower and temperature controls accessible to the driver and officer.

The defroster ducts,will be designed to provide maximum defrosting capabilities for the front cab
windowsf

CABICREW CAB HEATER

Two(2)sauxiliary heaters with 32,000 BTU each will be provided in the cab. The heaters will have a 3-
speed blower and temperature controls accessible to the driver and officer. There will also be louvers
located below the rear facing seat riser and below the driver and officer positions for airflow.

The heaters will be mounted, one (1) within each rear facing seat riser.

27 of 113



AIR CONDITIONING
A high-performance, customized air conditioning system will be furnished inside the cab and crew cab.
A 13.10 cubic inch compressor will be installed on the engine.

The air conditioning system will be capable of cooling the average cab temperature from 100 degrees
Fahrenheit to 72 degrees Fahrenheit at 50 percent relative humidity within 30 minutes. The cooling
performance test will be run only after the cab has been heat soaked at 100 degrees Fahrenheitfer a
minimum of 4 hours.

A roof-mounted condenser that meets and exceeds the performance specification will be installed on
the cab roof. The condenser cover and mounting legs to be painted white as proyideéd by, the’A/C
manufacturer.

An evaporator unit that meets and exceeds the performance specification will'be installed in the cab,
located in the center of the cab ceiling over the engine tunnel. The evaperater willfinclude two (2) high
performance cores and plenums with multiple outlets, one (1) plenum'directedto the front and one (1)
plenum directed to the rear of the cab.

The evaporator unit will be provided with adjustable air outlets strategically located to direct air flow to
the driver, officer and crew cab area.

All hose used will be class 1 type to reduce moisture'ingression’'into the air conditioning system.
The air conditioner refrigerant will be R-134A and will Be installed by a certified technician.

The air conditioner will be controlled by agsingle electronic control panel. For ease of operation, the
control panel will include variable adjustment for temperature and fan control and be conveniently
located on the dash in clear view ofsthe, driver.

GRAVITY DRAIN TUBES
Two (2) condensate drain tubes will be»provided for the air conditioning evaporator. The drip pan will
have two (2) drain tubes plumbed separately to allow for the condensate to exit the drip pan.

SUN VISORS
Two (2) smokeddexan ™ysun visors provided. The sun visors will be located above the windshield with
one (1) mountedienfeach side of the cab.

There will' be a black plastic thumb latch provided to help secure each sun visor in the stowed position.

GRAB HANDIE

A blacksrubber covered grab handle will be mounted on the door post of the driver and officer's side cab
door to assist in entering the cab. The grab handle will be securely mounted to the post area between
the door and windshield.

The driver's grab handle will be 3.00" higher than the officer's grab handle, to allow additional clearance
between the steering wheel and grab handle.

28 of 113



ENGINE COMPARTMENT LIGHTS
There will be one (1) Truck-Lite Model 44308C 4.00" white LED light(s) with Model 40700 grommet(s)
installed under the engine hood for use as engine compartment illumination.

These light(s) will be activated automatically when the cab is raised and deactivated when the cab is
lowered.

ACCESS TO ENGINE DIPSTICKS
For access to the engine oil and transmission fluid dipsticks, there will be a door on the éngine tunnel,
inside the crew cab. The door will be on the rear wall of the engine tunnel, on the vertieal surface.

The engine oil dipstick will allow for checking only. The transmission dipstick will'allow forboth
checking and filling.

The door will have a rubber seal for thermal and acoustic insulation. One (1), flushdatch will be
provided on the access door.

SEATING CAPACITY
The seating capacity in the cab will be four (4).

DRIVER SEAT

A USSC, Model P1A, air suspension seat will be proyided inthe'cab for the driver. For increased
convenience, the seat will include a manual control'to adjust the height (2.50" travel) and horizontal
position (6.00" travel). To provide flexibility fogmultipleydriver configurations, the seat will have a
reclining back, adjustable from 90 degrees to 45s@egrees rearward. To ensure safe operation, the seat
will be equipped with seat belt sensors igfthe 'seatsetishion and belt receptacle that will activate an
alarm indicating a seat is occupied but not buckled.

The seat will be furnished with a 8-point, shoulder type seat belt. The seat belt will be furnished with
dual automatic retractors thatsWillypravide ease of operation in the normal seating position.

OFFICER SEAT

A USSC, air suspension sgat will'be provided in the cab for the officer. The seat will have a reclining,
R-back style seat backydFor inCreased convenience, the seat will include a manual control to adjust the
height (3.00" travel) and herizontal position (6.00" travel). To ensure safe operation, the seat will be
equipped with seat’belt sensors in the seat cushion and belt receptacle that will activate an alarm
indicatings@®seat is oecupied but not buckled.

The, seat will be furnished with a 3-point, shoulder type seat belt. The seat belt will be furnished with
dualautematic retractors that will provide ease of operation in the normal seating position.

There'will be no additional contaminant mitigation vinyl covers shipped loose with the seat.

REAR FACING LEFT SIDE CABINET
A rear facing cabinet will be provided in the crew cab at the left side outboard position with exterior
access only.

The cabinet will be 26.00" wide x 30.00" high x 23.00" deep.

29 of 113



The cabinet will include no adjustable shelves or traysin the cabinet interior.
The cabinet will include no louvers.

The cabinet will have exterior access only with one (1) reverse hinged double pan door painted to
match the cab exterior with a non-locking D-ring latch. The clear door opening will be 14.00" wide x
26.50" high. The door will be located on the side of the cab over the wheelwell. A pneumatic stay arm
will be used as a door stop.

The exterior access will be provided with a polished stainless steel scuffplate on the lower d@or frame.

The cabinet will be constructed of smooth aluminum and painted to match the caly interiot.

Cabinet Light
There will be one (1) white LED strip light installed on the right side of the exterior cabinet door

opening. The lights will be controlled by an automatic door switch.

REAR FACING RIGHT SIDE CABINET
A rear facing cabinet will be provided in the crew cab at the right side Gutboard position.

The cabinet will be 24.00" wide x 30.00" high x 20.00" deép.
The cabinet will include no adjustable shelves or traysin the ‘cabinet interior.
The cabinet will include no louvers.

The cabinet will also provide access fromsotitside,the’cab with one (1) reverse hinged double pan door
painted to match the cab exterior with alhon-locking D-ring latch. A pneumatic stay arm will be
provided as a door stop. The exteriorielear door opening will be 10.25" wide x 26.75" high.

The exterior access will be providedwith a polished stainless steel scuffplate on the lower door frame.

The cabinet will be constructed of smooth aluminum, and painted to match the cab interior.

Cabinet Light
There will be onefThwhite LED strip light installed on the left side of the exterior cabinet door opening.

The lights will beycontrolled by an automatic door switch.

FORWARD'FACING' DRIVER SIDE OUTBOARD SEAT

There willbe one (1) forward facing, USSC Valor SCBA seat provided at the driver side outboard
positien in thes€rew cab. For optimal comfort, the seat will be provided with 17.00" deep cushion and
an adjustable recline back. To ensure safe operation, the seat will be equipped with a sensor in the
seat cushion and belt receptacle that will activate an alarm indicating the seat is occupied but not
buckled.

The seat will be furnished with a 3-point, shoulder type seat belt. The seat belts shall be furnished with
dual automatic retractors that shall provide ease of operation in the normal seating position.

30 of 113



FORWARD FACING CENTER CABINET
A forward facing cabinet will be provided in the crew cab at the center position.

The cabinet will be 38.00" wide x 38.00" high x 22.50" deep with one (1) Amdor rollup door with
anodized finish, non-locking. The frame to frame opening of the cabinet will be 35.50" wide x 32.75"
high. The minimum clear door opening will be 32.75" wide x 26.87" high.

The cabinet will include one (1) infinitely adjustable shelf with a 1.25" up-turned lippainted to matchithe
cab interior.

The cabinet will include no louvers.

The cabinet will be constructed of smooth aluminum, and painted to match the*eab interior.

Cabinet Light
There will be one (1) white LED strip light installed on the right side ofgtheiinterior‘cabinet door opening

and one (1) white LED strip light installed on the left side of the interior caBinet'door opening. The
lighting will be controlled by an automatic door switch.

FORWARD FACING PASSENGER SIDE OUTBOARD SEAT

There will be one (1) forward facing, USSC high back se€at provided in the passenger side outboard
position in the crew cab. The seat back will be a R-back style with an adjustable recline angle. For
optimal comfort, the seat will be provided with 17.00% deep cushion. To ensure safe operation, the seat
will be equipped with a sensor in the seat cushion'andbelt receptacle that will activate an alarm
indicating the seat is occupied but not buckled:

The seat will be furnished with a 3-point, shoulder type seat belt. The seat belt will be furnished with
dual automatic retractors that will provideleasefof operation in the normal seating position.

SEAT UPHOLSTERY
All seat upholstery will be leather graindgray vinyl resistant to oil, grease and mildew. The cab will have
four (4) seating positions:

SEAT BELTS
All seating positions in the, cab, crew cab and tiller cab (if applicable) will have red seat belts.

To provide quick, easy use for occupants wearing bunker gear, the female buckle and seat belt
webbingflength will meet or exceed the current edition of NFPA 1901 and CAN/ULC - S515 standards.

Thex3:-pointy,shoulder type seat belts will also include the ReadyReach D-loop assembly to the shoulder
belt system» The ReadyReach feature adds an extender arm to the D-loop location placing the D-loop
in a closer, easier to reach location.

Any flip up seats will include a 3-point shoulder type belts only.

SHOULDER HARNESS HEIGHT ADJUSTMENT
All seating positions furnished with 3-point shoulder type seat belts will include a height adjustment.
This adjustment will optimize the belts effectiveness and comfort for the seated firefighter.

31 of 113



HELMET STORAGE PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 14.1.7.4.1 requires a location for helmet storage be provided.

There is no helmet storage on the apparatus as manufactured. The fire department will provide a
location for storage of helmets.

CAB DOME LIGHTS

There will be six (6) dual LED dome lights with black bezels provided. Two (2) lights will be mounted
above the inside shoulder of the driver and officer and four (4) lights will be installed andflocatedstwo
(2) on each side of the crew cab.

The color of the LED's will be red and white.
The white LED's will be controlled by the door switches.
The color LED's will be controlled by the lens switch.

In order to ensure exceptional illumination, each white LED dome light will provide a minimum of 10.1
foot-candles (fc) covering an entire 20.00" x 20.00" square seating position when mounted 40.00"
above the seat.

MAP LIGHT

There will be one (1) Sunnex®, HS76*-00, halogenimapflight(s) with swivel joint base provided in the
cab and located per direction over the officer leftsshoulder#Each map light will have a square base with
an on/off switch.

The light(s) will also be provided with a red lens.
The light switch(es) will be connected directlysto the battery switched power.

HAND HELD LIGHT

There will be four (4) Streamlight, Fire Vulcan, Model #44451, hand lights provided with a vehicle
mount with 12VDC direetwireascharging rack and quick release buckle strap mounted match 33579, pics
provided.

Each light housing will be'erange in color and be provided with a C4, LED and two (2) "ultra bright blue
tail light LEDs". The tail light LEDs will have a dual mode of blinking or steady.

CAB INSTRUMENTATION

The,cab instrument panel will consist of gauges, an LCD display, telltale indicator lights, alarms, control
switchespand a diagnostic panel. The function of instrument panel controls and switches will be
identified by a label adjacent to each item. Actuation of the headlight switch will illuminate the labels in
low light conditions. Telltale indicator lamps will not be illuminated unless necessary. The cab
instruments and controls will be conveniently located within the forward cab section directly forward of
the driver. Gauge and switch panels will be designed to be removable for ease of service and low cost
of ownership.

32 of 113



Cab Interior

The wrap-around style high impact ABS plastic cab dash fascia will be designed to provide
unobstructed visibility to instrumentation. The dash layout will provide the driver with a quick reference
to gauges that allows more time to focus on the road.

Gauges
The gauge panel will include the following ten (10) ivory gauges with chrome bezels to monitgr vehicle

performance:

¢ Voltmeter Gauge (Volts):
o0 Low volts (11.8 VDC)
= Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm
o0 High volts (15 VDC)
= Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm
o Very low volts (11.3 VDC)
= Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm
o Very high volts (16 VDC)
= Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm
e Tachometer (RPM)
e Speedometer (Primary (outside) MPH, Secondary«(inside) Km/H)
e Fuel Level Gauge (Empty - Full in fractions):
o Low fuel (1/8 full)
= Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm
o Very low fuel (1/32) fuel
= Amber indicator gh gauge assembly with alarm
¢ Engine Oil Pressure Gauge (PSI):
o0 Low oil pressure t@ activate engine warning lights and alarms
* Red indieatori@n gauge assembly with alarm
e Front Air Pressure Gauge (RSIY:
0 Low air pressure to activate warning lights and alarm
» {Red indicator on gauge assembly with alarm
e Rear Air Pressure Gauge (PSI):
o Low air pressure to activate warning lights and alarm.
= Red indicator on gauge assembly with alarm
e Transmission Oil Temperature Gauge (Fahrenheit):
¢ High'transmission oil temperature activates warning lights and alarm
o= Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm
¢ #Engine Coolant Temperature Gauge (Fahrenheit):
o0 High engine temperature activates an engine warning light and alarm
= Red indicator on gauge assembly with alarm
e Diesel Exhaust Fluid Level Gauge (Empty - Full in fractions):
o Low fluid (1/8 full)
= Amber indicator on gauge assembly with alarm

33 of 113



All gauges and gauge indicators will perform prove out at initial power-up to ensure proper
performance.

Indicator Lamps

To promote safety, the following telltale indicator lamps will be integral to the gauge assembly and are
located above and below the center gauges. The indicator lamps will be "dead-front" design that is only
visible when active. The colored indicator lights will have descriptive text or symbols.

The following amber telltale lamps will be present:

e Low coolant

e Trac cntl (traction control) (where applicable)

e Check engine

e Check trans (check transmission)

e Aux brake overheat (Auxiliary brake overheat)

e Air rest (air restriction)

e Caution (triangle symbol)

e Water in fuel

e DPF (engine diesel particulate filter regeneration)

e Trailer ABS (where applicable)

e Wait to start (where applicable)

e HET (engine high exhaust temperature)where applicable)
e ABS (antilock brake system)

e MIL (engine emissions system malfanction indicator lamp) (where applicable)
e SRS (supplemental restraint system) fault (where applicable)
e DEF (low diesel exhaust fluidevel)

e The following red telltale lamps'will be present:

e Warning (stop sign symbal)

e Seat belt

e Parking brake

e Stop engine

e Rack down

The following greenytelltale lamps will be provided:

o [efisturn
oy, Rightturn
e\ 4Battery on

The following blue telltale lamp will be provided:

e High beam

34 of 113



Alarms
Audible steady tone warning alarm: A steady audible tone alarm will be provided whenever a warning
message is present.

Audible pulsing tone caution alarm: A pulsing audible tone alarm (chime/chirp) will be provided
whenever a caution message is present without a warning message being present.

Alarm silence: Any active audible alarm will be able to be silenced by holding the ignition switch atithe
top position for three (3) to five (5) seconds. For improved safety, silenced audible alarms will
intermittently chirp every 30 seconds until the alarm condition no longer exists. The intermittentgchirp
will act as a reminder to the operator that a caution or warning condition still exists® Anymew,warning
or caution condition will enable the steady or pulsing tones respectively.

Indicator Lamp and Alarm Prove-Out
Telltale indicators and alarms will perform prove-out at initial power-upgeensure proper performance.

Control Switches
For ease of use, the following controls will be provided immediately adjacent to the cab instrument
panel within easy reach of the driver:

¢ Emergency master switch: A molded plastic pushibutton'switch with integral indicator lamp will
be provided. Pressing the switch will activate emergency response lights and siren control. A
green lamp on the switch provides indication‘that the*emergency master mode is active.
Pressing the switch again disables thefemergeney master mode.

e Headlight / Parking light switch: A three (3)-position maintained rocker switch will be provided.
The first switch position will deactivate all parking lights and the headlights. The second switch
position will activate the parking lights. /The third switch position will activate the headlights.

e Panel back lighting intensity control switch: A three (3)-position momentary rocker switch will be
provided. The first switeh, position decreases the panel back lighting intensity to a minimum
level as the switch is held. Sfhe*second switch position is the default position that does not
affect the back lighting, intensity. The third switch position increases the panel back lighting
intensity to aaximum level as the switch is held.

The following standard controls will be integral to the gauge assembly and are located below the right
hand gauges. AllsWwitches have backlit labels for low light applications:

¢ High idle engagement switch: A two (2)-position momentary rocker switch with integral indicator
lamp will be provided. The first switch position is the default switch position. The second switch
position will activate and deactivate the high idle function when pressed and released. The "Ok
To Engage High Idle" indicator lamp must be active for the high idle function to engage. A
green indicator lamp integral to the high idle engagement switch will indicate when the high idle
function is engaged.

e "Ok To Engage High Idle" indicator lamp: A green indicator light will be provided next to the
high idle activation switch to indicate that the interlocks have been met to allow high idle
engagement.

35 of 113



e The following standard controls will be provided adjacent to the cab gauge assembly within easy
reach of the driver. All switches will have backlit labels for low light applications.

¢ Ignition switch: A three (3)-position maintained/momentary rocker switch will be provided. The
first switch position will deactivate vehicle ignition. The second switch position will activate
vehicle ignition. The third momentary position will disable the Command Zone audible alarm if
held for three (3) to five (5) seconds. A green indicator lamp will be activated with vehicle
ignition.

e Engine start switch: A two (2)-position momentary rocker switch will be provideds The figst
switch position is the default switch position. The second switch position will aGtivate the
vehicle's engine. The switch actuator is designed to prevent accidental activation.

e 4-way hazard switch: A two (2)-position maintained rocker switch will be provided:, The first
switch position will deactivate the 4-way hazard switch function. The@econd switch position will
activate the 4-way hazard function. The switch actuator will be red and includes the
international 4-way hazard symbol.

e Turn signal arm: A self-canceling turn signal with high beam headlight and windshield
wiper/washer controls will be provided. The windshield wipercontrel'will have high, low, and
intermittent modes.

e Parking brake control: An air actuated push/pull parkbrake control valve will be provided.

e Chassis horn control: Activation of the chassis,horn control will be provided through the center
of the steering wheel.

Custom Switch Panels

The design of cab instrumentation will allow foemergency lighting and other switches to be placed
within easy reach of the operator thus improving saféty. There will be positions for up to three (3)
switch panels in the overhead console an the driver's side, up to four (4) switch panels in the engine
tunnel console facing the driver, upfto three(3) switch panels in the overhead console on the officer's
side and up to three (3) switch panelsgin the engine tunnel rear facing console accessible to both driver
and officer. All switches willfraveybacklit labels for low light applications.

Diagnostic Panel

A diagnostic panel will be accessible while standing on the ground and located inside the driver's side
door left of the steering'€olumn. The diagnostic panel will allow diagnostic tools such as computers to
connect to varigus vehicle'systems for improved troubleshooting providing a lower cost of ownership.
Diagnostic switches will allow ABS systems to provide blink codes should a problem exist. The
diagnosti€ panel will'include the following:

e, Engineddiagnostic port

e, Jramsmission diagnostic port

¢ L\ ABS diagnostic port

e SRS diagnostic port (where applicable)

e Command Zone USB diagnostic port

e ABS diagnostic switch (blink codes flashed on ABS telltale indicator)
¢ Diesel particulate filter regeneration switch (where applicable)

¢ Diesel particulate filter regeneration inhibit switch (where applicable)

36 of 113



Cab LCD Display

A digital four (4)-row by 20-character dot matrix display will be integral to the gauge panel. The display
will be capable of showing simple graphical images as well as text. The display will be split into three
(3) sections. Each section will have a dedicated function. The upper left section will display the outside
ambient temperature. The upper right section will display odometer, trip mileage, PTO hours, fuel
consumption, engine hours, and other configuration specific information. The bottom section will
display INFO, CAUTION, and WARNING messages. Text messages will automatically activate to
describe the cause of an audible caution or warning alarm. The LCD will be capable of displaying
multiple text messages should more than one caution or warning condition exist.

AIR RESTRICTION INDICATOR
A high air restriction warning indicator light LCD message with amber warninggindicator and audible
alarm will be provided.

"DO NOT MOVE APPARATUS" INDICATOR

There will be a Whelen, Model VTX609R, red LED indicator light with chrame,trim located in the driving
compartment. This light will be illuminated automatically per the current NEPA requirements. The light
will be labeled "Do Not Move Apparatus If Light Is On."

The same circuit that activates the Do Not Move Apparatus indicator will activate a steady tone alarm
when the parking brake is released.

DO NOT MOVE TRUCK MESSAGES

Messages will be displayed on the Command(Zone™, color display located within sight of the driver
whenever the Do Not Move Truck light is@aetive. The'messages will designate the item or items not in
the stowed for vehicle travel position (parking brake disengaged).

The following messages will be displayed (Where applicable):

e Do Not Move Truck

e DS Cab Door Open (Driver Side Cab Door Open)

e PS Cab Door @pen(Passenger's Side Cab Door Open)

e DS Crew Cab'Baeor Open (Driver Side Crew Cab Door Open)
e PS Crew'Cab Door,Open (Passenger's Side Crew Cab Door Open)
e DS Body Door Open (Driver Side Body Door Open)

e PS"Body Door Open (Passenger's Side Body Door Open)

e Rear'Bady Door Open

®y, DS Ladder Rack Down (Driver Side Ladder Rack Down)

o) PSadder Rack Down (Passenger Side Ladder Rack Down)
e \Deck Gun Not Stowed

e Lt Tower Not Stowed (Light Tower Not Stowed)

e Fold Tank Not Stowed (Fold-A-Tank Not Stowed)

¢ Aerial Not Stowed (Aerial Device Not Stowed)

e Stabilizer Not Stowed

e Steps Not Stowed

37 of 113



¢ Handrail Not Stowed

Any other device that is opened, extended, or deployed that creates a hazard or is likely to cause major
damage to the apparatus if the apparatus is moved will be displayed as a caution message after the
parking brake is disengaged.

SWITCH PANELS

The emergency light switch panel will have a master switch for ease of use plus individual switchesyfor
selective control. Each switch panel will contain up to six (6) rocker-type switches each fated fontwo
hundred thousand (200,000) cycles. Panels with less than six (6) switches will includetindicators or
blanks. The switch panel(s) will be located in the "overhead" position above the windshield an the
driver side overhead to allow for easy access.

The switches will be rocker-type and include an integral indicator light. Foriguick; visual indication the
switch will be illuminated whenever the switch is active. A 2-ply, scratelesistantdaser engraved
Gravoply label indicating the use of each switch will be placed below the switches. The label will allow
light to pass through the letters for improved visibility in low light conditions#Switches and light source
are integral to the switch panel assembly.

WIPER CONTROL

For simple operation and easy reach, the windshield wiperieontrol will be an integral part of the
directional light lever located on the steering columf. The wiper control will include high and low wiper
speed settings, a one (1)-speed intermittent wipemcontrol and windshield washer switch. The control
will have a "return to park" provision, which allowssthe, wipers to return to the stored position when the
wipers are not in use.

HOURMETER - AERIAL DEVICE
An hourmeter for the aerial devicewill be provided and located within the cab display or instrument
panel.

AERIAL MASTER
There will be a masteg@witch ferthe aerial operating electrical system provided.

AERIAL PTO SWITEH
A PTO switch for the'aerial with indicator light will be provided.

SPARE @IRCUIT
There will.betwo (2) pair of wires, including a positive and a negative, installed on the apparatus.

Thetabowe wires will have the following features:

e The positive wire will be connected directly to the battery power
e The negative wire will be connected to ground

o Wires will be protected to 15 amps at 12 volts DC

e Power and ground will terminate officer side dash area

e Termination will be with heat shrinkable butt splicing

e Wires will be sized to 125 percent of the protection

38 of 113



The circuit(s) may be load managed when the parking brake is set.

STEREO RADIO

A Jensen, heavy duty AM/FM/CD/Weatherband stereo radio, with front auxiliary input will be installed
per switch panel layout . There will be 5.25" speakers installed one (1) pair of 5.25" speakers in the
cab and one (1) pair of 5.25" speakers in the crew cab. The antenna will be a roof-mounted rubber
antenna located in an open space, on the cab roof .

The following features will be included:

e CD Player with Electronic Skip Protection (ESP)

e Full 7-Channel NOAA Weatherband Tuner with SAME technology

e Built-in Clock

¢ Audio CD, CD-R, R/W, MP3 CD compatible

e Radio Broadcast Data System Text Display

e Front panel USB input

e Front and Rear Auxiliary Audio Input

¢ Receives audio (A2DP/AVRCP) from Bluetooth enabled device

e Supports Bluetooth HFP to receive phone calls fram BTsenabled phones

e Low battery alert (&It;10.8Vdc)

e Heavy Duty design with Conformal Coated £ircuit Boards for maximum durability under all
conditions

RADIO ENCLOSURE
There will be an aluminum enclosure prgvidediforthe AM/FM radio. The enclosure will be painted
black.

INFORMATION CENTER
An information center employing‘a,7.00" diagonal touch screen color LCD display will be encased in an
ABS plastic housing.

The information center will have the following specifications:

e Operatedin temperatures from -40 to 185 degrees Fahrenheit

e An OpticahGel will be placed between the LCD and protective lens

o Fiveweatheriresistant user interface switches

o Grey'with black accents

o, Sunlight Readable

e, dintix operating system

e \WMinimum of 1000nits rated display

e Display can be changed to an available foreign language

e A LCD display integral to the cab gauge panel will be included as outlined in the cab
instrumentation area.

e Programmed to read US Customary

39 of 113



General Screen Design

Where possible, background colors will be used to provide "At a Glance" vehicle information. If
information provided on a screen is within acceptable limits, a green background will be used.

If a caution or warning situation arises the following will occur:

An amber background/text color will indicate a caution condition

A red background/text color will indicate a warning condition

The information center will utilize an "Alert Center" to display text messages for audible alarm
tones. The text messages will be written to identify the item(s) causing the audible alarpt to
sound. If more than one (1) text message occurs, the messages will cyclefevery 'second until
the problem(s) have been resolved. The background color for the "Alert,Center" will change to
indicate the severity of the "warning" message. If a warning and a caution condition occur
simultaneously, the red background color will be shown for all alert center méssages.

A label for each button will exist. The label will indicate the function fog each active button for
each screen. Buttons that are not utilized on specific screens will have a button label with no
text or symbol.

Home/Transit Screen

This screen will display the following:

Vehicle Mitigation (if equipped)

Water Level (if the water level system imcltdesieompatible communications to the information
center)

Foam Level (if the foam level system iacludeS compatible communications to the information
center)

Seat Belt Monitoring Screen Seat BeltsMonitoring Screen

Tire Pressure Monitoring (ifeguipped)

Digital Speedometer,

Active Alarms

On Scene Screen

This screen will display the following and will be auto activated with pump engaged (if equipped):

Battery Voltage

Fuel

OilPressure

Coolant Temperature

RPM

Water Level (if equipped)
Foam Level (if equipped)
Foam Concentration (if equipped)
Water Flow Rate (if equipped)
Water Used (if equipped)
Active Alarms

40 of 113



Virtual Buttons
There will be four (4) virtual switch panel screens that match the overhead and lower lighting and HVAC
switch panels.

Page Screen
The page screen will display the following and allow the user to progress into other screens for further

functionality:

e Diagnostics
o Faults
» Listed by order of occurrence
= Allows to sort by system
o Interlock
= Throttle Interlocks
= Pump Interlocks (if equipped)
= Aerial Interlocks (if equipped)
=  PTO Interlocks (if equipped)
0 Load Manager
= Alist of items to be load managed will bgyprovided. The list will provide a
description of the load.
= The lower the priority numbess theyearlief the device will be shed should a low
voltage condition occur.
= The screen will indicatefif a load*has been shed (disabled) or not shed.
= "At a glance" color features are utilized on this screen.
0 Systems
= Command Zone
e Module type and ID number
e Meodulg Version
e [ Inputior eutput number
e \Circuit number connected to that input or output
e _Status of the input or output
e Power and Constant Current module diagnostic information
= /'Foam (if equipped)
= Pressure Controller (if equipped)
= ¥ Generator Frequency (if equipped)
0 Live Data
= General Truck Data
o\ JMaiftenance
o Engine oil and filter
0 Transmission oil and filter
o0 Pump oil (if equipped)
o0 Foam (if equipped)
0 Aerial (if equipped)

41 of 113



o Clock Setup
o Date & Time

12 or 24 hour format

Set time and date

0 Backlight

O 0O 0O 0O

Daytime
Night time
Sensitivity

Unit Selection

Home Screen

Virtual Button Setup

On Scene Screen Setup
Configure Video Mode

Set Video Contrast
Set Video Color
Set Video Tint

e Do Not Move
0 The screen will indicate the approximate locatien and type of item that is open or is not
stowed for travel. The actual status of theffollowing devices will be indicated

= Driver Side Cab Door
= Passenger's Side Cab Door
= Driver Side Crew Cab Dgor
= Passenger's Side Crew'€ab Daor
= Driver Side Body Doors
= Passenger's Side Body Doors
= Rear Body Door(s)
» Ladder Racky(iff/applicable)
» Deck @unif. applicable)
= LightTower (if applicable)
= Hatch Deewd(if applicable)
= W Stabilizers (if applicable)
=) Steps (if applicable)

¢ Notifications

0 ViewpActive Alarms
= Shows a list of all active alarms including date and time of the occurrence is
shown with each alarm

» Silence Alarms - All alarms are silenced

o \('Timer Screen

o VHVAC (if equipped)

e Tire Information (if equipped)

¢ Ascendant Set Up Confirmation (if equipped)

Button functions and button labels may change with each screen.

42 of 113



VEHICLE DATA RECORDER
There will be a vehicle data recorder (VDR) capable of reading and storing vehicle information
provided.

The information stored on the VDR can be downloaded through a USB port mounted in a convenient
location determined by cab model. A USB cable can be used to connect the VDR to a laptop to retrieve
required information. The program to download the information from the VDR will be availablé to
download on-line.

The vehicle data recorder will be capable of recording the following data via hardwired'and/or CAN
inputs:

¢ Vehicle Speed - MPH

e Acceleration - MPH/sec

o Deceleration - MPH/sec

e Engine Speed - RPM

e Engine Throttle Position - % of Full Throttle

e ABS Event - On/Off

e Seat Occupied Status - Yes/No by Position

e Seat Belt Buckled Status - Yes/No by Position
e Master Optical Warning Device Switch - On/Off
e Time - 24 Hour Time

e Date - Year/Month/Day

Seat Belt Monitoring System

A seat belt monitoring system (SBMS) will be provided on the Command Zone™ color display. The
SBMS will be capable of monitoring up to T@Seating positions indicating the status of each seat
position per the following:

e Seat Occupied & Bugkled =|Green LED indicator illuminated

e Seat Occupiedd& Unbuekled = Red LED indicator with audible alarm
¢ No Occupant'& Buckled = Red LED indicator with audible alarm

¢ No Occupantj& Unbuckled = No indicator and no alarm

The seat belt monitering screen will become active on the Command Zone color display when:

e Therhome screen is active:
@and there is any occupant seated but not buckled or any belt buckled with an occupant.
© and there are no other Do Not Move Apparatus conditions present. As soon as all Do
Not Move Apparatus conditions are cleared, the SBMS will be activated.

The SBMS will include an audible alarm that will warn that an unbuckled occupant condition exists and
the parking brake is released, or the transmission is not in park.

43 of 113



INTERCOM SYSTEM

There will be a four (4) position David Clark, Model U3800, intercom system with single radio interface
capability at the driver and officer positions and remote radio push to talk buttons located per switch
panel layout. Two (2) crew cab outboard seats will have intercom only capability.

The following components will be provided:

e One (1) U3805 Radio Cord Junction Module

e Two (2) U3815 Radio interface modules (Driver, Officer)

e Two (2) Remote Push To Talk Button Kits

e One (1) U3800 Master station (1 Crew)

¢ One (1) U38B01 Remote headset intercom station (1 Crew)
e One (1) C3820 Power cord

¢ All necessary station cables and connectors

RADIO / INTERCOM INTERFACE INCLUDED
All radio interfaced stations will have universal radio interfaces installed. The interface wiring will be
routed within the cab to behind the officer seat .

UNDER THE HELMET HEADSET
There will be four (4) under the helmet, headset(s) providedidriver, officer, 2 crew cab.

Each David Clark, Model H3442, headset will feature:

e 5'Coiled cord

¢ Noise cancelling electric microphone

e Flexible microphone boom retates,200 degrees for left or right dress
e Microphone on/off button

e Comfort Gel Earseals

e 23 dB noise reduction

HEADSET HANGERS

There will be four (4) headset hanger(s) installed driver's seat, officer's seat, driver's side inboard
forward facing s€at and passenger's side inboard forward facing seat. The hanger(s) will meet
CAN/ULC-S515, edrrent edition, section 13.2.4 requirement for equipment mounting.

GPS / MULTIMODE ANTENNA INSTALLATION

There will'be ope (1) customer supplied GPS / Multimode antenna(s) with stud mount for thick roof
materialte be installed on the roof. The antenna coax cable(s) will be run per the packing list /
instrugtions provided to the third party installer.

Specific shipping requirements will be followed. The GPS / Multimode antenna will be sent to the
apparatus manufacturers preferred installer prior to cab fabrication.

RADIO ANTENNA MOUNT
There will be six (6) Maxrad, Model BMATM, antenna-mounting base(s) with 17.00' coax cable and

weatherproof cap provided.

44 of 113



The mount(s) will be located on the cab roof best available.
The cable will be routed to behind the officer's seat.

VEHICLE CAMERA SYSTEM
There will be a color vehicle camera system provided with the following:

¢ One (1) camera located at the rear of the apparatus, pointing rearward, displayed autematieally
with the vehicle in reverse.

¢ One (1) camera located on the right side of the apparatus, pointing rearward, displayed
automatically with the right side turn signal.

e One (1) camera located on the left side of the apparatus, pointing rearward, displayed
automatically with the left side turn signal.

The camera images will be displayed on the driver's vehicle informatiopseenter display. Audio from the
microphone on the rear camera will be emitted by an amplified speaker with velume control located
behind the driver seat.

The following components will be included:

e One (1) SV-CW134639CAl Camera

o Two (2) CS134404CI Side cameras

e One (1) Amplified speaker (if applicable)
e All necessary cables

VEHICLE CAMERA GUARD
There will be one (1) aluminum treadplate guard(s) fastened over the vehicle camera(s) located center
rear .

ELECTRICAL POWER CONTROL SYSTEM

The primary power distribution will be located forward of the officer's seating position and be easily
accessible while standim@wenthe ground for simplified maintenance and troubleshooting. Additional
electrical distributionécenters.will be provided throughout the vehicle to house the vehicle's electrical
power, circuit protéétion,,and control components. The electrical distribution centers will be located
strategically threughout the vehicle to minimize wire length. For ease of maintenance, all electrical
distribution centersywill be easily accessible. All distribution centers containing fuses, circuit breakers
and/or rglays will be easily accessible.

Distribution,centers located throughout the vehicle will contain battery powered studs for supplying
customerinstalled equipment thus providing a lower cost of ownership.

Circuit'protection devices, which conform to SAE standards, will be utilized to protect electrical circuits.
All circuit protection devices will be rated per NFPA requirements to prevent wire and component
damage when subjected to extreme current overload. General protection circuit breakers will be Type-I
automatic reset (continuously resetting). When required, automotive type fuses will be utilized to
protect electronic equipment. Control relays and solenoid will have a direct current rating of 125
percent of the maximum current for which the circuit is protected per NFPA.

45 of 113



SOLID-STATE CONTROL SYSTEM

A solid-state electronics based control system will be utilized to achieve advanced operation and
control of the vehicle components. A fully computerized vehicle network will consist of electronic
modules located near their point of use to reduce harness lengths and improve reliability. The control
system will comply with SAE J1939-11 recommended practices.

The control system will operate as a master-slave system whereas the main control module instructs all
other system components. The system will contain patented Mission Critical software thatimnaintains
critical vehicle operations in the unlikely event of a main controller error. The system will utilize a*Real
Time Operating System (RTOS) fully compliant with OSEK/VDX™ specifications providing a lower cost
of ownership.

For increased reliability and simplified use the control system modules will in€lude theféllowing
attributes:

o Green LED indicator light for module power

e Red LED indicator light for network communication stability Status

e Control system self test at activation and continually throughoutwehicle operation
e No moving parts due to transistor logic

e Software logic control for NFPA mandated safety‘interlocks and indicators

e Integrated electrical system load management without additional components

¢ Integrated electrical load sequencing systemiwithoubadditional components

e Customized control software to the vehicle's,configuration

e Factory and field re programmable te,acCommodate changes to the vehicle's operating
parameters

e Complete operating and troubleshooting manuals
e USB connection to the main control module for advanced troubleshooting

To assure long life and operation i, a‘broad range of environmental conditions, the solid-state control
system modules will meet the following specifications:

e Module circuitiboardmwill meet SAE J771 specifications
e Operating'temperature from -40C to +70C

e Storage temperature from -40C to +70C

e Vibration to'60g

IP67 rated’enclosure (Totally protected against dust and also protected against the effect of temporary
immersion Between 15 centimeters and one (1) meter)

Operating voltage from eight (8) volts to 16 volts DC

The main controller will activate status indicators and audible alarms designed to provide warning of
problems before they become critical.

46 of 113



CIRCUIT PROTECTION AND CONTROL DIAGRAM

Copies of all job-specific, computer network input and output (I/0O) connections will be provided with
each chassis. The sheets will indicate the function of each module connection point, circuit protection
information (where applicable), wire numbers, wire colors and load management information.

ON-BOARD ADVANCED/VISUAL ELECTRICAL SYSTEM DIAGNOSTICS
The on-board information center will include the following diagnostic information:

e Text description of active warning or caution alarms
¢ Simplified warning indicators

e Amber caution indication with intermittent alarm

¢ Red warning indication with steady tone alarm

All control system modules, with the exception of the main control module, will cantain on-board visual
diagnostic LEDs that assist in troubleshooting. The LEDs will be enclgSed within‘the sealed,
transparent module housing near the face of the module. One LED for each input or output will be
provided and will illuminate whenever the respective input or output'is active. Color-coded labels within
the modules will encompass the LEDs for ease of identification. The LED indicator lights will provide
point of use information for reduced troubleshooting time witheut the need for an additional computer.

TECH MODULE WITH WIFI

An in cab module will provide WiFi wireless interfaée and data’logging capability. The WiFi interface
will comply with IEEE 802.11 b/g/n capabilitiesg#hile communicating at 2.4 Gigahertz. The module will
provide an external antenna connection allowingg'line of site communication range of up to 300 feet
with a roof mounted antenna.

The module will transmit a passwordsprotected/web page to a WiFi enabled device (i.e. most smart
phones, tablets or laptops) allowig two levels of user interaction. The firefighter level will allow vehicle
monitoring of the vehicle and firefighting systems on the apparatus. The technician level will allow
diagnostic access to inputs @nd outputs installed on the Command Zone™, control and information
system.

The data logging capability wilPrecord faults from the engine, transmission, ABS and Command
Zone™, control@nd information systems as they occur. No other data will be recorded at the time the
fault occurs. Theydata logger will provide up to 2 Gigabytes of data storage.

A USB c¢onnection will be provided on the Tech Module. It will provide a means to download data
logger information and update software in the device.

PROGNOSTICS
A software based vehicle tool will be provided to predict remaining life of the vehicles critical fluid and
events.

The system will send automatic indications to the Command Zone, color display and/or wireless
enabled device to proactively alert of upcoming service intervals.

Prognostics will include:

47 of 113



o Engine oil and filter

e Transmission oil and filter

o Pump oil (if equipped)

e Foam oil (if equipped)

o Aerial oil and filter (if equipped)

ADVANCED DIAGNOSTICS

An advanced, Windows-based, diagnostic software program will be provided for this controhsystem.
The software will provide troubleshooting tools to service technicians equipped with a Windows-based
computer or wireless enabled device.

The service and maintenance software will be easy to understand and use andshave theability to view
system input/output (I/O) information.

INDICATOR LIGHT AND ALARM PROVE-OUT SYSTEM
A system will be provided which automatically tests basic indicator, lights and alarms located on the cab
instrument panel.

VOLTAGE MONITOR SYSTEM

A voltage monitoring system will be provided to indicate¢he status of the battery system connected to
the vehicle's electrical load. The system will providegfisual®and@udible warning when the system
voltage is below or above optimum levels.

The alarm will activate if the system falls below 11«8wolts DC for more than two (2) minutes.

DEDICATED RADIO EQUIPMENT CONNECTION'POINTS
There will be three (3) studs provided.in‘the primary power distribution center located in front of the
officer for two-way radio equipment.

e The studs will consist/of the, following:
e 12-volt 40-amp battery switched power
e 12-volt 60-ampfignition‘switched power
e 12-volt 60-ammdirectbattery power

There will also be ag2-volt 100-amp ground stud located in or adjacent to the power distribution center.

ENHANGED SOFTWARE
The solidsstate control system will include the following software enhancements:

All perimeter lights and scene lights (where applicable) will be deactivated when the parking brake is
released.

Cab and crew cab dome lights will remain on for ten (10) seconds for improved visibility after the doors
close. The dome lights will dim after ten (10) seconds or immediately if the vehicle is put into gear.

48 of 113



Cab and crew cab perimeter lights will remain on for ten (10) seconds for improved visibility after the
doors close. The dome lights will dim after ten (10) seconds or immediately if the vehicle is put into
gear.

EMI/RFI PROTECTION

To prevent erroneous signals from crosstalk contamination and interference, the electrical system will
meet, at a minimum, SAE J551/2, thus reducing undesired electromagnetic and radio frequency
emissions. An advanced electrical system will be used to ensure radiated and conducted
electromagnetic interference (EMI) or radio frequency interference (RFI) emissions are suppressed at
their source.

The apparatus will have the ability to operate in the electromagnetic environment typically found in fire
ground operations to ensure clean operations. The electrical system will meget, withoutéexceptions,
electromagnetic susceptibility conforming to SAE J1113/25 Region 1, Class\C EMRgfor 10KHz-1GHz to
100 Volts/Meter. The vehicle OEM, upon request, will provide EMC teSting reports from testing
conducted on an entire apparatus and will certify that the vehicle meets SAE 4551/2 and SAE J1113/25
Region 1, Class C EMR for 10KHz-1GHz to 100 Volts/Meter requirements.

EMI/RFI susceptibility will be controlled by applying appropriate circuit designs and shielding. The
electrical system will be designed for full compatibility with low-level control signals and high-powered
two-way radio communication systems. Harness and cableyouting will be given careful attention to
minimize the potential for conducting and radiated EMI/RFI susceptibility.

ELECTRICAL

All 12-volt electrical equipment installed bysthe appasatus manufacturer will conform to modern
automotive practices. All wiring will be high temperature crosslink type. Wiring will be run, in loom or
conduit, where exposed and have grammets where wire passes through sheet metal. Automatic reset
circuit breakers will be provided which/onform to SAE Standards. Wiring will be color, function and
number coded. Function andsmumber codes will be continuously imprinted on all wiring harness
conductors at 2.00" intervals. Extefior exposed wire connectors will be positive locking, and
environmentally sealeddeywithstand elements such as temperature extremes, moisture and automotive
fluids.

Electrical wiringfand gquipment will be installed utilizing the following guidelines:

1. AlLholes made in the roof will be caulked with silicon. Large fender washers, liberally caulked,
will besused when fastening equipment to the underside of the cab roof.

2. Any elegtrical component that is installed in an exposed area will be mounted in a manner that
will not allow moisture to accumulate in it. Exposed area will be defined as any location outside
of the cab or body.

3. VElectrical components designed to be removed for maintenance will not be fastened with nuts
and bolts. Metal screws will be used in mounting these devices. Also a coil of wire will be
provided behind the appliance to allow them to be pulled away from mounting area for
inspection and service work.

49 of 113



4. Corrosion preventative compound will be applied to all terminal plugs located outside of the cab
or body. All non-waterproof connections will require this compound in the plug to prevent
corrosion and for easy separation (of the plug).

5. All lights that have their sockets in a weather exposed area will have corrosion preventative
compound added to the socket terminal area.

6. All electrical terminals in exposed areas will have silicon (1890) applied completely over the
metal portion of the terminal.

All lights and reflectors, required to comply with Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard #108, will*be
furnished. Rear identification lights will be recessed mounted for protection. Lights andwwiring mounted
in the rear bulkheads will be protected from damage by installing a false bulkhead inside the rear
compartments.

An operational test will be conducted to ensure that any equipment that is permaneptly attached to the
electrical system is properly connected and in working order.

The results of the tests will be recorded and provided to the purchaser at time of delivery.

BATTERY SYSTEM
Six (6) 12 volt, Deka, Model 1231PMF, maintenance fregfgroupi31 batteries that include the following
features, each, will be provided:

e 1000 CCA (cold cranking amps)

e 185 reserve capacity

e High cycle

e Ref CA 1190 at O degrees Fahrenheit
e 185 minutes of reserve capagity

e SAE posts

BATTERY SYSTEM
There will be a single starting, system with an ignition switch and starter button provided and located on

the cab instrument panel.

MASTER BATTERYXSWITCH
There will be a master battery switch provided within the cab within easy reach of the driver to activate
the battery,system.

An indicator light will be provided on the instrument panel to notify the driver of the status of the battery
systeém,

BATTERY COMPARTMENTS

Batteries will be stored in well-ventilated compartments that are located under the cab and bolted
directly to the chassis frame. The battery compartments will be constructed of 0.188" steel plate and
be designed to accommodate a maximum of three (3) group 31 batteries in each compartment. The
battery hold-downs will be of a non-corrosive material. All bolts and nuts will be stainless steel.

The compartments will include stainless steel battery trays for the batteries to sit in.

50 of 113



Heavy-duty battery cables will be used to provide maximum power to the electrical system. Cables will
be color-coded.

Battery terminal connections will be coated with anti-corrosion compound. Battery solenoid terminal
connections will be encapsulated with semi-permanent rubberized compound.

JUMPER STUDS
One (1) set of battery jumper studs with plastic color-coded covers will be installed on the bottom ofithe
driver's side battery box. This will provide for easy jumper cable access.

BATTERY CHARGER
There will be a Blue Sea Model P12, battery charger provided. A LED display will be lincluded with the
installation.

The charger will have a maximum output of 40 amps and a fully automatic regulatien.

The battery charger will be wired to the AC shoreline inlet through an AC receptacle adjacent to the
battery charger.

Battery charger will be located in the cab behind the drivelgseat, on the vertical wall of the EMS
compartment.

The battery charger indicator will be located near the driver's'seat riser with special bracketry.

SHORELINE INLET
There will be one (1) Blue Sea Sure Eject’™ part number 7851, 20 amp 120 volt AC shoreline inlet
provided to operate the dedicated 120 volt AC gircuits on the apparatus.

The shoreline will be connected toattery ‘eharger.

The shoreline inlet cover colgritowe red.

The connector body willbe released from the inlet when the apparatus engine start button is activated.
There will be a matingicenneetor body supplied with the loose equipment.

There will be a'labeliinstalled near the inlet(s) that state the following:

e LineVoltage

o Curfent Ratting (amps)
e Phase

o\ gFrequency

The shoreline receptacle will be located on the driver side of cab, above wheel.

BATTERY CHARGER COVER
A cover with louvers will be fabricated of stainless steel and installed over the battery charger for
protection.

51 of 113



ALTERNATOR

A Delco Remy®, Model 55SlI, alternator will be provided. It will have a rated output current of 430
amps, as measured by SAE method J56. The alternator will feature an integral regulator and rectifier
system that has been tested and qualified to an ambient temperature of 257 degrees Fahrenheit (125
degrees Celsius). The alternator will be connected to the power and ground distribution system with
heavy-duty cables sized to carry the full rated alternator output.

ELECTRONIC LOAD MANAGER

An electronic load management (ELM) system will be provided that monitors the vehicle§ 12-volt
electrical system, automatically reducing the electrical load in the event of a low voltageycondition, and
automatically restoring the shed electrical loads when a low voltage condition expires. This ensures the
integrity of the electrical system.

For improved reliability and ease of use, the load manager system will be an, integral’part of the
vehicle's solid state control system requiring no additional componentgto'performoad management
tasks. Load management systems which require additional compagnents will aot be allowed.

The system will include the following features:

e System voltage monitoring.
e A shed load will remain inactive for a minimum’of five minutes to prevent the load from cycling
on and off.
e Sixteen available electronic load sheddingvevels.
e Priority levels can be set for individual ‘@utputs:
e High Idle to activate before any eléctrig,loads‘are shed and deactivate with the service brake.
o If enabled:
= "Load Man Hi-ldle Or'will display on the information center.
= Hi-ldle will net activate until 30 seconds after engine start up.
Individual switch "onindieatonto flash when the particular load has been shed.
The information center indicates system voltage.

The information centér, whete applicable, includes a "Load Manager" screen indicating the following:

¢ Load managed items list, with priority levels and item condition.
¢ Individuall@ad managed item condition:

0 ON ="not shed

0 SHED = shed

SEQUENEER

A sequencer will be provided that automatically activates and deactivates vehicle loads in a preset
sequence thereby protecting the alternator from power surges. This sequencer operation will allow a
gradual increase or decrease in alternator output, rather than loading or dumping the entire 12 volt load
to prolong the life of the alternator.

52 of 113



For improved reliability and ease of use, the load sequencing system will be an integral part of the
vehicle's solid state control system requiring no additional components to perform load sequencing
tasks. Load sequencing systems which require additional components will not be allowed.

Emergency light sequencing will operate in conjunction with the emergency master light switch. When
the emergency master switch is activated, the emergency lights will be activated one by one at half-
second intervals. Sequenced emergency light switch indicators will flash while waiting for activatien.

When the emergency master switch is deactivated, the sequencer will deactivate the wafthing light
loads in the reverse order.

Sequencing of the following items will also occur, in conjunction with the ignition switch, athalf-second
intervals:

e Cab Heater and Air Conditioning

o Crew Cab Heater (if applicable)

e Crew Cab Air Conditioning (if applicable)
e Exhaust Fans (if applicable)

e Third Evaporator (if applicable)

HEADLIGHTS
There will be four (4) JW Speaker®, Model 8800, 4 64rectangular LED lights mounted in the front
guad style, chrome housing on each side of theseab grille:

¢ the outside light on each side will contain'a part number 055***1 low beam module
o the inside light on each side will €ontaima part number 055***1 high beam module
¢ the headlight to include chrome bezels

The low beam lights will be activated#vhen the headlight switch is on.

The high beam and low beam lights\will be activated when the headlight switch and the high beam
switch is activated.

DIRECTIONAL LIGHTS
There will be two (2)/Whelen 600® series, LED combination directional/marker lights provided. The
lights will be locatéd on the outside cab corners, next to the headlights.

The colar ofdhe,lenses will be clear.

INTERMEDIATE LIGHT
Therewill be two (2) Weldon, Model 9186-8580-29, amber LED turn signal marker lights furnished, one
(1) each side, in the rear fender panel. The light will double as a turn signal and marker light.

CAB CLEARANCE/MARKER/ID LIGHTS
There will be seven (7) amber LED lights provided to indicate the presence and overall width of the
vehicle in the following locations:

53 of 113



Three (3) amber LED identification lights will be installed in the center of the cab above the
windshield.

Two (2) amber LED clearance lights will be installed, one (1) on each outboard side of the cab
above the windshield.

Two (2) amber LED marker lights will be installed, one (1) on each side above the cab doors.

FRONT CAB SIDE DIRECTIONAL/MARKER LIGHTS

There will be two (2) Truck-Lite®, Model 19036Y, amber LED lights installed to the outside=ef the
chrome wrap around bezel, one (1) on each side of the cab.

The lights will activate as marker lights with the headlight switch and directional lightsywith the
corresponding directional circuit.

REAR CLEARANCE/MARKER/ID LIGHTING

There will be three (3) Truck-Lite®, Model 33050R, LED lights used agfidentification lights recessed
and located at the rear of the apparatus per the following:

As close as practical to the vertical centerline

Centers spaced not less than 6.00" or more than 12:00" apart
Red in color

All at the same height

There will be two (2) Truck-Lite, Model 33050Rg#EDightsfrecessed at the rear of the apparatus used
as clearance lights located at the rear of the apparatus per the following:

To indicate the overall width of the vehi¢le
One (1) each side of the vertieal eenterline
As near the top as practical

Red in color

To be visible from the rear

All at the same height

There will be two (2) Truck-Lite, Model 33050R, LED lights recessed on the side of the apparatus as
marker lights ag‘close to the rear as practical per the following:

Tosndicate the overall length of the vehicle
One(I)each side of the vertical centerline
As nearthe top as practical

Red,in color

To be visible from the side

All at the same height

There will be two (2) red reflectors located on the rear of the truck facing to the rear. One (1) each side,
as far to the outside as practical, at a minimum of 15.00", but no more than 60.00", above the ground.

54 of 113



There will be two (2) red reflectors located on the side of the truck facing to the side. One (1) each
side, as far to the rear as practical, at a minimum of 15.00", but no more than 60.00", above the ground.

Per FMVSS 108 and CMVSS 108 requirements.

MARKER LIGHTS

There will be one (1) pair of amber and red LED marker lights with rubber arm, located at the‘rear most
lower corner of the body. The amber lens will face the front and the red lens will face the rear ohthe
truck.

These lights will be activated with the running lights of the vehicle.

REAR FMVSS LIGHTING
The rear stop/tail and directional LED lighting will consist of the following;

e Two (2) Whelen®, Model M6BTT, red LED stop/tail lights
e Two (2) Whelen, Model M6T, amber LED arrow turn lights

The lights will be provided with clear lenses.
The lights will be mounted in a polished combinationaousing.
There will be two (2) Whelen Model M6BUW, LEB, bagkupights provided in the tail light housing.

LICENSE PLATE BRACKET
There will be one (1) license plate brackét mounted“on the rear of the body.

A white LED light will illuminate thedlicense,plate. A stainless steel light shield will be provided over the
light that will direct illumination downward, preventing white light to the rear.

LIGHTING BEZEL
There will be two (2) Whelen,yModel M6FCV4P, four (4) place chromed ABS housings with Pierce
logos provided for the'rear M6 series stop/tail, directional, back up, scene lights or warning lights.

BACK-UP ALARM

A PRECO, Modelh1040, solid-state electronic audible back-up alarm that actuates when the truck is
shifted intesreverse will be provided. The device will sound at 60 pulses per minute and automatically
adjust its volume to maintain a minimum ten (10) dBA above surrounding environmental noise levels.

CAB PERIMETER SCENE LIGHTS

Therewill be four (4) TecNiq Model E10-WS00-1, 6.44" long x 1.38" high x 1.00" deep 12 volt DC
weatherproof LED lights with a fabricated aluminum 45 degree brackets provided under the cab and
crew cab access areas:

o One (1) for the driver's access.
e One (1) for the passenger's side front cab access door.
e One (1) for the passenger's side crew cab access door.

55 of 113



o One (1) for the driver's side crew cab access door.

These lights will be activated automatically when the battery switch is on and the adjacent doors are
opened or by the same means as the body perimeter lights.

BODY PERIMETER SCENE LIGHTS
There will be two (2) TecNig, Model T10-LC00-1, 15.00" 12 volt DC lights with white LEDs ane"45
degree stainless steel brackets provided per the following:

¢ one (1) light under the driver's side turntable access steps
e one (1) light under the passenger's side turntable access steps

The perimeter scene lights will be activated when a switch within reach of thed@fiver is agtivated and the
parking brake is applied.

ADDITIONAL PERIMETER LIGHTS
There will be two (2) TecNiq, Model T10-LCO00-1, 1.25" high x 15.00" long/white LED light(s) provided
under under rear body, one per side.

These additional lights will be controlled with the other body perimeter lights.

STEP LIGHTS
All steps on the apparatus will be illuminated per the,cufrent edition of NFPA 1901 and will match the
turn table access step lights.

12 VOLT LIGHTING
There will be one (1) Whelen® Model PEH2*, 1T%,750 lumens 12 volt DC light(s) with a combination of
flood and spot optics provided on thesfront visor, centered.

The housing(s) painted parts of thisylight assembly to be white.

The light(s) will be controlled by a switch at the driver's side switch panel and by a switch at the
passenger's side switchpaneh

These light(s) mayshe l6ad managed when the parking brake is applied.

12 VOLT DC SCENE LIGHTS
There willsbe one (IWWhelen® Model PCPSM1*, 8,000 lumens 12 volt DC powered light(s) with white
LEDs installed®n the cab located, behind the crew cab doors, LS as high as possible.

Theisurface mount housing(s) will be provided with a chrome cover.

The light(s) will be activated by a switch at the driver's side switch panel and by a switch at the
passenger's side switch panel.

The light(s) may be load managed when the parking brake is applied.

56 of 113



12 VOLT DC SCENE LIGHTS
There will be one (1) Whelen® Model PCPSM1*, 8,000 lumens 12 volt DC powered light(s) with white
LEDs installed on the cab located, RS cab, behind the crew cab door, as high as possible.

The surface mount housing(s) will be provided with a chrome cover.

The light(s) will be activated by a switch at the driver's side switch panel and by a switch at the
passenger's side switch panel.

The light(s) may be load managed when the parking brake is applied.

12 VOLT LIGHTING

There will be two (2) Whelen® Model P*H2*, 17,750 lumens 12 volt DC LED light(s) withga combination
of flood and spot optics installed on the apparatus located, above the ladder eompartment, one each
side below the turntable.

The painted parts of this light assembly to be white.
The light(s) to be installed with an adjustable locking pedestal mount(sS)with handle(s).

The lights will be controlled by a switch at the driver's sidé switch panel, by a switch at the passenger's
side switch panel and by a switch in a recessed cup lecated, at the driver's side rear bulkhead.

The light(s) may be load managed when the parking'rake s applied.

12 VOLT LIGHTING

There will be two (2) Whelen® Model P¥H2*, 1%, 750" lumens 12 volt DC LED light(s) with a combination
of flood and spot optics installed on the apparatus, located RS body, one above RS5 and one
above/forward of RS2.

The painted parts of this lights@ssembly to be white.
The light(s) to be installed,with an adjustable locking pedestal mount(s) with handle(s).

The lights will be contrelled bysa switch at the driver's side switch panel, by a switch at the passenger's
side switch pangl'and by“a switch in a recessed cup located at the passenger's side rear bulkhead.

The light(s) may beyload managed when the parking brake is applied.

12 VOLTGHTING

Therewill betwo (2) Whelen® Model P*H2*, 17,750 lumens 12 volt DC LED light(s) with a combination
of floedsandspot optics installed on the apparatus, located LS body, one above LS5 and one
abovelforward of LS2.

The painted parts of this light assembly to be white.

The light(s) to be installed with an adjustable locking pedestal mount(s) with handle(s).

57 of 113



The lights will be controlled by a switch at the driver's side switch panel, by a switch at the passenger's
side switch panel and by a switch in a recessed cup located at the driver's side rear bulkhead.

The light(s) may be load managed when the parking brake is applied.

WALKING SURFACE LIGHT
There will be Model FRP, 4" round black 12 volt DC LED floodlight(s) with bolt mount providegste
illuminate the entire designated walking surface on top of the body.

The light(s) will be activated when the body step lights are on.

CARGO AREA
The cargo area will be fabricated of .125" 5052 aluminum with a tensile strengthyrange 0f31,000 to
38,000 psi.

The sides will not form any portion of the fender compartments.

The upper and rear edges of the side panels will have a double break for rigidity.
The cargo area will be located ahead of the ladder turntables

Flooring of the cargo area will be aluminum treadplateg

CARGO AREA COVER

A two (2) section cargo area cover, constructed of .125% bright aluminum treadplate will be furnished
over the cargo area under the aerial device anddbetween the upper body compartments. The cover will
be hinged with full length stainless steelgpianothinge. The sides will be slanted down.

The cover will be reinforced so thatgdt'@an'support the weight of a man walking on the cover.

Chrome grab handles and fouk«(4) gas filled cylinders will be provided to assist in opening and closing
the cover. A handrail is to be providedbat the rear, in the center of the support, to assist in opening the
cover.

TURNTABLE STEPS

Steps to accessgthe turntable from the left and right side will be provided just behind the
compartmentation.#There shall be no bottom flip step provided. The bottom step will have a step
height not,exceeding,24.00" from the ground to the top surface of the step at any time. All steps will
have a heightsno greater than 14.00" from top surface to top surface.

The steps WillFbe a swing-down design, with the stepping area made of Morton Tread-Grip® channel.
The stepwell will be lined with bright aluminum treadplate to act as scuffplates.

The steps will be connected to the "Do Not Move Truck" indicator.

A knurled aluminum handrail will be provided on each side of the access steps.

A hand hold will be provided in the left and right side of each set of access steps.

58 of 113



STEP LIGHTS
There will be three (3) white LED step lights provided for each set of aerial turntable access steps.

In order to ensure exceptional illumination, each light will provide a minimum of 25 foot-candles (fc)
covering an entire 15" x 15" square placed ten (10) inches below the light and a minimum of 1.5 fc
covering an entire 30" x 30" square at the same ten (10) inch distance below the light.

The step lights will be actuated by the aerial master switch in the cab.

SMOOTH ALUMINUM REAR WALL
The rear wall will be smooth aluminum.

TOW EYES
Two (2) rear painted tow eyes will be located at the rear of the apparatus andwill be mounted directly
to the torque box. The inner and outer edges of the tow eyes will be radiused.

COMPARTMENTATION

Compartmentation will be fabricated of 0.125" 5052 aluminum. The'side compartments are an integral
assembly with the rear fenders. Fully enclosed rear wheel housings wilbbe provided to prevent rust
pockets and for ease of maintenance. Due to the severed6ading requirements of this aerial, a method
of compartment body support suitable for the intended,load will be provided.

The backbone of the support system will be the chassis"frame rail, which is the strongest component of
the chassis and is designed for sustaining maximum loads.

A support system will be used which will in€erporatesa floating substructure by using Neoprene
Elastomer isolators to allow the body toremainirigid while the chassis goes through its natural flex.
The isolators will have a broad range"ef proven'viability in vehicular applications, be of a fail safe
design, and allow for all necessafy,movement in three (3) transitional and rotational modes. This will
result in a 500 Ib equipment rating, for,each lower compartment of the body.

The compartmentation infront of the rear axle will include a 3.00" steel support assemblies which are
bolted to the chassisffamg rails.” A steel framework will be mounted to the body above these support
assemblies connegtedto the Support assemblies with isolators. There will be one (1) support assembly
mounted to each chassisframe rail.

The compartmentatien behind the rear axle will include 3.00" steel support assemblies which are bolted
to the chassissframe rails and extend underneath to the outside edge of the body. The support
assembly will be coated to isolate the dissimilar metals before it is bolted to the body. There will be one
(1) suppert. assembly mounted to each chassis frame rail.

Compartment flooring will be of the sweep out design with the floor higher than the compartment door
lip. The compartment door openings are framed by flanging the edges in 1.75" and bending out again
0.75" to form an angle. Drip protection is provided over all door openings by means of bright aluminum
extrusion or formed bright aluminum treadplate. Side compartment tops will be covered with bright
aluminum treadplate with a 1.00" rolled over edge on the front, rear and outward side. The covers are
fabricated in one (1) piece and have the corners welded. A bright aluminum treadplate cover will be

59 of 113



provided on the front wall of each side compartment. All screws and bolts which protrude into a
compartment will have acorn nuts at the ends to prevent injury.

The body design has been fully tested. Proven engineering and test techniques such as finite element
analysis, model analysis, stress coating and strain gauging have been performed with special attention
given to fatigue life and structural integrity of the compartment body and substructure.

AGGRESSIVE WALKING SURFACE
All exterior surfaces designated as stepping, standing, and walking areas will comply with the required
average slip resistance of the current NFPA standards.

LOUVERS

All body compartments will have a minimum of one (1) set of louvers stamped into a wall'to provide the
proper airflow inside the compartment and to prevent water from dripping into the caogipartment. These
louvers will be formed into the metal and not added to the compartmentas a‘separate plate.

COMPARTMENT IN PLACE OF PUMP
A roll-up door compartment will be installed in place of the pump andpump panel.

It will be approximately 54.25" wide x 75.50" high (or equal'to the flat roof cab height) x 24.50" deep in
the lower area and transversed in the top portion of the campartment. The front wall will be notched for
the boom support.

The door opening will be approximately 51.25%wide x'6643" high.
The transverse portion of the compartment'will vary depending on chassis and engine combination.

LEFT SIDE COMPARTMENTATION
A full height double door compartment/ahead of the rear wheels will be approximately 41.75" wide x
64.00" high x 24.25" deep with,a.doer opening of approximately 40.00" wide x 60.50" high.

One (1) lift-up door compartment ahove the fender compartments and over the rear axles will be
provided. The compastment willdb€ approximately 72.13" wide x 33.25" high x 24.25" deep inside with a
door opening of approximately»65.00" wide x 29.62" high.

A compartmentiwithéa single pan stainless steel door will be located above the front stabilizer. The
compartment will be approximately 23.00" high x 18.00" wide x 24.25" deep with a door opening of
approximately 15.75" high x 12.00" wide.

A fulkheight,deuble door compartment behind the rear wheels will be approximately 43.75" wide x
49.25" highex 21.25" deep inside with a door opening of approximately 42.00" wide x 45.75" high.

One (1) compartment below the turntable with a lift-up door will be provided. The compartment will be
approximately 39.38" wide x 18.38" high x 21.25" deep inside with a door opening of approximately
35.00" wide x 14.88" high.

60 of 113



RIGHT SIDE COMPARTMENTATION

A full height double door compartment ahead of the rear wheels will be 41.75" wide x 64.00" high x
24.25" deep inside the lower 29.75" and 12.00" deep inside the upper portion with a door opening of
40.00" wide x 60.50" high.

One (1) lift-up door compartment above the fender compartments and over the rear axles will be 72.13"
wide x 33.25" high x 12.00" deep inside with a door opening of 65.00" wide x 29.62" high.

A compartment with a single pan stainless steel door will be located above the front stabilizes. The
compartment will be 23.00" high x 18.00" wide x 12.00" deep with a door opening of 15.75" highsx
12.00" wide.

A full height double door compartment behind the rear wheels will be 43.75" wide x 49.25" high x 21.25"
deep inside the lower 29.75" and 12.00" in the upper portion with a door openingfof 42.00" wide X
45.75" high.

A compartment below the turntable with a lift-up door will be 39.38%wide x 18:38" high x 12.00" deep
inside with a door opening of 35.00" wide x 14.88" high.

SIDE COMPARTMENT DOORS

All hinged compartment doors will be lap style with doubleypaneliconstruction and fabricated of .09"
5052H32 aluminum. Doors will be a minimum of 1,50" thick®yJ0 provide additional door strength, a "C"
section reinforcement will be installed between the outér and interior panels.

Doors will be provided with a closed cell rubbemgasket around the surface that laps onto the body. A
second heavy-duty automotive rubber meldingywiths& hollow core will be installed on the door framing
that seals onto the interior panel, to ensure a wegather resisting compartment.

All compartment doors will have pelished stainless steel continuous hinge with a pin diameter of .25",
that is bolted or screwed on withestainless steel fasteners. A dielectric substance will be applied to
each hinge fastener.

All door lock mechanisms will be fully enclosed within the door panels to prevent fouling of the lock in
the event equipment inside shifts into the lock area.

Doors will be latehed with recessed, polished stainless steel "D" ring handles and Eberhard 106 locks.

To prevent corrosion caused by dissimilar metals, compartment door handles will not be attached to
outer doorpanel with screws. A rubber gasket will be provided between the "D" ring handle and the
door.

BODY.MODIFICATION FROM STANDARD

The compartment above the stabilizers (if applicable) will be decreased due to deeper stabilizer depth.
The height of the compartment will decrease 4.00" and the compartment door will move up 4.00"
higher. The stabilizer frame opening as well as the stabilizer pan will be increased in height by 6.00".

61 of 113



REAR BUMPER

A 5.00" rear bumper will be furnished. Bumper will be constructed of steel framework and will be
covered with polished aluminum treadplate. The bumper will be 4.00" deep x 5.00" high and will be
spaced away from the body approximately 1.00". It will extend the full width of the body.

DOOR GUARD

two (2) compartment doors will include an L-shaped guard designed to protect the bottom and interior
side of the roll-up door from damage when in the retracted position and contain any waterspray while
the door is being opened. The guard will be fabricated from stainless steel and installed LS6/and*RS6.

COMPARTMENT LIGHTING

There will be ten (10) compartment(s) with two (2) white 12 volt DC LED compartment light strips. The
dual light strips will be centered vertically along each side of the door framing. There\will be two (2)
light strips per compartment.The dual light strips will be in all body compartment(s).

Any remaining compartments without light strips will have a 6.00" diameter Trugk-Lite, Model: 79384
light. Each light will have a number 1076 one filament, two wire bulb.

Opening the compartment door will automatically turn the compartment fighting on.

MOUNTING TRACKS

There will be four (4) sets of tracks for mounting shelf(s).in [S1{ LS4, RS1 and RS4. These tracks will
be installed vertically to support the adjustable shelf(s); andswill be full height of the compartment. The
tracks will be painted to match the compartment interior:

ADJUSTABLE SHELVES
There will be six (6) shelves with a capagity of 500 Ib provided.

The shelf construction will consistief . 188" aluminum painted spatter gray with 2.00" sides.
Each shelf will be infinitely adjustable By means of a threaded fastener, which slides in a track.
The shelves will be held inplacesby .12" thick stamped plated brackets and bolts.

The location(s) willbe iny\RS1 centered between the floor and the ceiling, in RS4 centered between the
floor and the ceéiling#in RS4 in the lower third, in LS1 centered between the floor and ceiling, in LS4
centered betweenthe floor and ceiling and in LS4 in the upper third.

SLIDE-QUIFADJUSTABLE HEIGHT TRAY
There,will be two (2) slide-out trays provided.

Eachttray will have 2.00" high sides and will be half (1/2) the depth of the transverse compartment. The
capacity rating of the tray will be 500 Ib in the extended position.

Each tray will be mounted on a pair of side mounted slides. The slide mechanisms will have ball
bearings for ease of operation and years of dependable service. The slides will be mounted to shelf
tracks to allow the tray to be adjustable up and down within the designated mounting location.

62 of 113



An automatic lock will be provided for both the in and out tray positions. The lock trip mechanism will be
located at the front of the tray and will be easily operated with a gloved hand.

The tray(s) will be located LS6/RS6 to the rear of the vertical partition.

TWO (2) WAY SLIDE-OUT UTILITY TRAY
There will be one (1) slide-out tray provided.

Each tray will be rated for up to 500 Ib in the extended position. The tray(s) will be constricted ef .19"
thick aluminum for the tray bottom and special aluminum extrusions for the tray sides, ends and tracks.
The corners will be welded.

The tray will have 3.00" high sides, will span the full depth of the transverse cempartmentand will be as
wide as possible for the compartment.

The tray will be supported with a minimum of six (6) ball bearing rollers. The tray will slide out two thirds
(2/3) of its length to either side of the apparatus.

Automatic locks will be provided for both the in and out positions. Thetkip mechanism for the locks will
be located at the front of the tray for ease of use with a glovedyhand.

The vertical location of the tray within the compartment willkbe adjustable.
The tray(s) will be located LS6/RS6 to the rear of thewsertical partition.

SLIDE-OUT/TILT-DOWN TRAY
There will be two (2) slide-out trays provided.

The bottom of each tray will constru€ted of,0.188" thick aluminum while special aluminum extrusions
will be utilized for the tray sides, @ndsgand tracks. The corners will be welded to form a rigid unit.

The tray will be half depth of the transverse compartment.

A spring loaded lock will be prowided on each side at the front of the tray. Releasing the locks will allow
the tray to slide out appreximately two-thirds (2/3) of its length from the stowed position and tip 30
degrees down frém horizental. The tray will be equipped with ball bearing rollers for smooth operation.

Rubber padded stops will be provided for the tray in the extended positions.

The capagity rating of the tray will be a minimum of 215 Ib in the extended position.
The'vertieal position of the tray within the compartment will be adjustable.

The tray(s) will be located upper portion of LS6/RS6 to the rear of the vertical partition.

THREE QUARTER DEPTH SLIDE-OUT TOOLBOARD
An aluminum toolboard will be provided for use in a transverse side body compartment. The toolboard
will be constructed of 0.19" thick aluminum that is painted spatter gray to match compartment interior.

63 of 113



The toolboard will be provided with 0.20" diameter holes in a pegboard pattern with 1.00" centers
between holes. A 1.00" x 1.00" aluminum tube frame will be welded to the edge of the pegboard.

The toolboard will be three quarters (3/4) the depth of the transverse compartment and will be designed
to be as tall as possible to fit in the specified mounting location.

The toolboard will be mounted inside a 6.00" wide x 3.00" high, utility style slide-out tray. The dottom of
the tray will be constructed of 0.19" thick aluminum while special aluminum extrusions will betutilized for
the tray sides, ends and tracks. The corners will be welded.

The tray will be supported with a minimum of six (6) ball bearing rollers. The toolboard and tray will
slide out two thirds (2/3) of its length in one (1) direction only. Positive locks will be pravided for
toolboard and tray assembly in both the stowed and extended positions.

Additionally, the toolboard and tray assembly will be mounted on shelf type tracks 40 allow for side to
side adjustment within the compartment.

The toolboard will be rated for a maximum of 500 Ib in the extendedposition.

A total of One (1) toolboard(s) will be provided. The toolboare(s) will be located LS6/RS6 forward of the
partition.

STORAGE COMPARTMENT(S)

There will be two (2) storage compartment(s) previded,ontop of the left and right side compartment(s).
There will be two (2) horizontally hinged, equally_sized lift-up doors with a pneumatic lift cylinder on
each end of each door with a socket andplimger with'a chrome grab handle on each door. All doors
will be hinged on the outside of the apparatus. {The door(s) shall be the maximum size and may require
the aerial device to be unbedded befére opening.

The size of each compartmentwill e approximately 118.00" long x 10.00" high x 12.00" wide and will
be constructed of aluminumftreadplateyand properly reinforced to sustain the weight of a firefighter.
Each compartment will be belted to the top of the body compartment.

There will be a white ' RED striplight installed on the inside edge of the compartment that runs the full
length of the comipartment.

TRANSVERSE COMPARTMENT OVER TORQUE BOX

one (1) ypper forward body compartments will be transverse over the torque box, to the opposite side
of the body.” The transverse area will be as large as possible. The LS3/RS3 will include this transverse
optiom

OlL DRY HOPPER

There will be an oil dry hopper installed in the to be determined compartment. A door will be provided
on the top of the oil dry bin to allow refilling of the bin. The bin will be sized for storage of 250 Ibs or
42.2 gallons (9750 cu in.) of clay-based oil dry absorbent material. The hopper will have a hand valve
on the bottom to control the release of the material. The absorbent material will be discharged through
a PVC tube through the floor of this compartment allowing a bucket to be placed under the truck and
filled..

64 of 113



ADDITIONAL COMPARTMENT LOUVERS
A set of additional louvers will be provided in RS1, LS6, RS6, exact location to be provided at pre con.
The quantity of additional sets of louvers is three (3).

PARTITION IN TRANSVERSE COMPARTMENT
One (1) partition will be bolted in LS6/RS6 34.00" from the rear wall. Each partition will be the full
vertical height of the compartment.

PEGBOARD

There will be 3/16" thick aluminum pegboard spatter gray painted will be installed on the back wall of
six (6) compartments. It will be mounted using two (2) horizontal tracks. Retainerg®Will be used to
mount the pegboard to the tracks. The pegboard installed will be the full height ofthe back wall. The
holes will be .281" diameter, punched 1.00" on center. Pegboard will be provided in the following
compartments: LS1, LS2, LS4, RS1, RS2 and RS4.

AIR BAG STORAGE
There will be a rack installed for storing two (2) air bags in the leaveyloose, mount at final inspection
compartment.

The rack will be fabricated from painted spatter gray .125" aluminum, painted to match the
compartment interior. The fire department will provide®exaet sizes of air bags prior to construction. The
size of the air bags will be Bottom slot=27"W x 29"® x 3"H Tep Slot= 22" W x 20" D x 3" H Stacked
horizontal.

FLOOR EXTENSION

There will be a compartment floor extension pravided. The floor extension will extend from the area
over the frame rails to within an inch.of the compartment door. The floor extension will have a 1.00"
vertical downturned lip and no retdrn flange.

A total of three (3) will be previdedyand, located LS6, LS3, RS6.

RUB RAIL
Bottom edge of the side campartments will be trimmed with a bright aluminum extruded rub rail.

Trim will be 2.12" high with. 1.38" flanges turned outward for rigidity.

The rub rails will notybe an integral part of the body construction, which allows replacement in the event
of damage.

BODYaEENDER CROWNS
Stainless steel fender crowns will be provided around the rear wheel openings.

A rubber welting will be provided between the body and the crown to seal the seam and restrict
moisture from entering.

FOUR AIR BOTTLE STORAGE COMPARTMENT
A total of two (2) air bottle compartments will be provided and located one (1) on the left side and one
(1) on the right side, centered between the tandem rear wheels. The air bottle compartment will consist

65 of 113



of individual bins each designed to hold an air bottle with a maximum diameter of 7.63" and a maximum
depth of 26.00".

Each compartment will hold a total of four (4) air bottles. The compartment will accommodate three (3)
bottles across the top and one (1) centered below. The bottom air bottle will be accessible only when
the top center bottle is removed and the hinged partition over the bottom bottle is lifted up. Each bottle
will be separated by a partition.

Flooring will be rubber lined and have a drain hole. A drop down door with support cabl@s with pairof
flush lift & turn latches will be provided for each compartment. The door will be polished stainless steel.
A dielectric barrier will be provided between the door hinge, hinge fasteners and the"hody, sheet metal.

AIR BOTTLE COMPARTMENT STRAP
Straps will be provided in the air bottle compartment(s) to help contain the top three (3) air bottles. The
straps will wrap around the neck of each bottle and attach to the wall oftthe cempartment.

SINGLE AIR BOTTLE STORAGE COMPARTMENT

A quantity of three (3) air bottle compartments, 7.75" in diameter x'26%00" deep, will be provided on the
left side rearward of the rear wheels, on the right side forward of the rear wheels and on the right side
rearward of the rear wheels. A polished stainless steel déor with a chrome plated flush lift & turn latch
will be provided to contain the air bottle. A dielectric barriegwill be provided between the door hinge,
hinge fasteners and the body sheet metal.

Inside the compartment, black rubber mattingwill be,preyvided.

AIRBOTTLE STORAGE (SINGLE)

A quantity of one (1) air bottle compartment, 7.75" in diameter x 26.00" deep, will be provided on the
left side forward of the rear wheels¢” Atrianguiar, polished stainless steel door with a chrome plated
flush lift & turn latch will be provided to contain the air bottle and also cover the DEF tank opening. A
dielectric barrier will be provided between the door hinge, hinge fasteners and the body sheet metal.

Inside the compartmentgblackrubber matting will be provided.

AIR BOTTLE COMRARTMENT STRAP
Straps will be provided in‘the air bottle compartment(s) to help contain the air bottles. The straps will
wrap around the neck of each bottle and attach to the wall of the compartment.

EXTENSIONgd=ADDER
There will'be two (2) 35' two (2) section aluminum Duo-Safety Series 1200-A extension ladder(s)
provided:

ADDED EXTENSION LADDER
There will be a 45', three (3) section, aluminum, Duo-Safety Series 1525-A extension ladder with poles
provided.

ROOF LADDER
There will be one (1) 16" aluminum Duo-Safety Series 875-A roof ladder(s) provided.

66 of 113



ADDED ROOF LADDER
There will be one (1) 14' roof, aluminum, Series 775-A provided.

ADDED ROOF LADDER
There will be one (1) 20' roof, aluminum, Series 875-A provided.

AERIAL ATTIC EXTENSION LADDERS PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 8.8.1.3 requires two (2) extension ladders.

The extension ladders are not on the apparatus as manufactured. There will be one () ‘extension
ladder(s) provided and installed by the fire department. The ladder(s) will be a Due=Safety 14435-B
Combo.

AERIAL FOLDING LADDER
There will be one (1) 10" aluminum Duo-Safety Series 585-A folding ladder(S) provided and located in
the aerial torque box.

GROUND LADDER STORAGE
The ground ladders are stored within the torque box and are removablesrom the rear.

Ladders will be enclosed to prevent road dirt and debrisftom fouling or damaging the ladders.

The ladders rest in full length stainless steel slides@nd are arfanged in such a manner that any one
ladder can be removed without having to movemremeveg@ny other ladder.

An AMDOR rollup door will be provided at.the rear, double faced, aluminum construction, satin
aluminum and manufactured by AMDOR manufacturing. The latching mechanism will consist of a full
length lift bar lock with latches on thesouter extrusion of the door frame.

A stainless plate with a two bend flange and a stainless steel hinge will be provided to secure the aerial
ladder complement. The plate assembly will be mounted to the bottom of the entrance of the torque
box ladder storage area.

When the plate is vefticalfitwill secure the ladders and prevent them from migrating to the rear of the
apparatus. Wheprthe plate is down and not securing the ladders, the roll-up door can not close, which
will activate the®Open Door Indicator Light" within the cab. The roll-up door together with hinge friction
will secure the plate,in place during driving operations.

A door guard will be provided to prevent tools inside the torque box from damaging the roll-up door.

LADDERS TORAGE LIGHTING
There'will be 21.00" white 12 volt DC LED strip lights in the torque box ladder storage compartment.
One (1) light will be provided on each side of the ladder storage area.

The lights will be activated when the ladder storage compartment door is opened.

PIKE POLES
There will be two (2) 12' Duo Safety pike pole(s) with fiberglass handles provided. The pike pole(s) will
be stored in tubular holders located in the ground ladder storage compartment.

67 of 113



10' PIKE POLE(S)
There will be one (1) 10' pike pole(s) with fiberglass handles provided.

ADDITIONAL PIKE POLE(S)
There will be one (1) 16 foot Nupla YPD-16 "Featherlight" pike pole(s) with fiberglass handles provided.

PIKE POLE STORAGE IN TORQUE BOX/LADDER STORAGE
There will be aluminum tubing provided in the torque box/ladder storage area for a total of two,(2) pike
poles.

If the head of a pike pole can come into contact with a painted surface, a stainless steel'scuffplate will
be provided.

PIKE POLE STORAGE
Smooth aluminum U-shaped trough(s) for the storage of six (6) pike poles, with D-landle style grip, will
be provided and installed inside torque box, refer to #19544.

BELL

A chrome plated, 12.00" bronze cast bell, complete with an eagle, will be mounted on the passenger
side radiused corner of cab face. The cab will be properly‘reinferced to support the weight of the bell.
A rope pull, for the bell, will be installed inside the cab.

AIR HORN SYSTEM

There will be two (2) Grover air horns recessed’in‘the front bumper. The horn system will be piped to
the air brake system wet tank utilizing 0.38" tubing. Ajpressure protection valve will be installed in-line
to prevent loss of air in the air brake system.

Air Horn Location
The air horns will be located on each side of the bumper, just outside of the frame rails.

AIR HORN CONTROL

The air horns will be actuated, by two (2) foot switches, one (1) located on the officer's side and one (1)
on the driver's side. Fhe air horns will also be actuated by horn button in the steering wheel. The
driver will have thegseptien to control the air horns or the chassis horns from the horn button by means of
a selector switch'located on the instrument panel.

ELECTRONIC SIREN
There will begayWhelen Sapphire, Model CCSRNT36 electronic siren, remote head with microphone,
and,a traffic advisor module installed.

The CESRNT36 will have a blue face, a three (3) section control head, with eight (8) push buttons, a
three (8) position slide switch with a seven (7) position rotary knob. The control head will include a
manual button, an air horn button and three (3) traffic advisor switches.

The siren is capable of controlling warning lights. The following lights will be controlled by the siren
switches: Traffic Advisor .

68 of 113



ELECTRIC SIREN, LOCATION,
Siren head will be mounted center engine tunnel.

SIREN CONTROL
The electronic siren will be controllable on the siren head and horn ring only. No foot switches will be
required.

The driver will have the option to control the siren or the chassis horns from the horn button by means
of a selector switch located on the instrument panel.

SPEAKER

There will be one (1) Whelen®, Model SA315P, black nylon composite, 100-watt, speakerwith through
bumper mounting brackets and polished stainless steel grille provided. The speaker will’'be connected
to the siren amplifier.

The speaker will be recessed in the left side of the front bumper, towards the @utside.

AUXILIARY MECHANICAL SIREN

There will be a Federal Signal Model Q2B mechanical siren furnished on the front of the apparatus.
The siren will be energized from a battery direct circuit throughta 2-gauge cable to a solenoid that is
energized from the emergency master switch. Additiopalfeustomer selectable controls will be included
for the momentary activation of this siren.

The mechanical siren will be recessed in the front'bumper‘on the right side. The siren will be properly
supported using the bumper framework.

SWITCHES, MECHANICAL SIREN
The mechanical siren will be actuate@ypenthe following:

e the steering wheel horaing¥¢The driver will have the option to control the mechanical siren or
the chassis horns fram the hormbutton through a selector switch location on the switch panel.

¢ one (1) foot switeh,installed/on the driver's side of the cab.

¢ one (1) foot switch/installed on the passenger's side of the cab.

A momentary switch will'Be included in the right side overhead switch panel to activate the siren brake.

FRONT ZONE'UPPER WARNING LIGHTS
There will'be two (2) 23.00" Whelen® Rota-Beam™ lightbars mounted on the cab roof, one (1) on each
side, above the left side and right side cab doors.

The left side lightbar will include the following:

¢ one (1) red flashing in a semi circle pattern LED module in the outside rear corner position
e one (1) white flashing LED module in the outside end position
e one (1) red flashing in a semi circle pattern LED module in the outside front corner position

69 of 113



e one (1) red flashing in a semi circle pattern LED module in the front position
o one (1) red flashing in a semi circle pattern LED module in the inside front corner position

The right side lightbar will include the following:

e one (1) red flashing in a semi circle pattern LED module in the inside front corner position
e one (1) red flashing in a semi circle pattern LED module in the front position

o one (1) red flashing in a semi circle pattern LED module in the outside front cornerposition
e one (1) white flashing LED module in the outside end position

e one (1) red flashing in a semi circle pattern LED module in the outside rear corner position

There will be clear lenses.
There will be a switch in the cab on the switch panel to control the lightbars:
The white flashing LED modules will be deactivated when the parking brake is\applied.

The red flashing in a semi circle pattern LED module in the front inside corner positions may be load
managed when the parking brake is applied.

CAB FACE WARNING LIGHTS
There will be four (4) Whelen®, warning lights installed on the gab face above the headlights in quad
bezels per the following.

e One (1) Model 6RB**, 4.18" high x 6.56" widex 3.43" deep lights with rotating flash pattern
installed on the left side outside peSition. Jhe'left side outside warning light to include red
LEDs.

¢ One (1) Model M6**, 4.31" highpx 6:75%wide x 1.37" deep lights flashing lights installed on the
left side inside position. The left side inside warning light to include red LEDs.

e One (1) Model M6**, 4:31%high x 6.75" wide x 1.37" deep lights flashing lights installed on the
right side inside position. The right side inside warning light to include red LEDs.

e One (1) Model 6RB**,"4:18" high x 6.56" wide x 3.43" deep lights with rotating flash pattern
installed on the,rightsside outside position. The right side outside warning light to include red
LEDs.

e The warningflight lens color(s) to be clear.
e Thehousingyto be polished and the trim shall be chrome.

There willsbe a switch in the cab, on the switch panel to control the lights.

White LEDs will be deactivated when the parking brake is applied. Amber LEDs will be deactivated
when'the parking brake is released.

Amber, blue, green and red LEDs in the inside positions may be load managed when the parking brake
is applied.

HEADLIGHT FLASHER
The high beam headlights will flash alternately between the left and right side.

70 of 113



There will be a switch installed in the cab on the switch panel to control the high beam flash. This
switch will be live when the battery switch and the emergency master switches are on.

The flashing will automatically cancel when the hi-beam headlight switch is activated or when the
parking brake is set.

SIDE ZONE LOWER LIGHTING
There will be six (6) Whelen® Model M6V2**, 4.32" high x 6.75" long x 2.25" deep flashing LED
warning and scene lights with chrome trim located in the following positions:

¢ Two (2) lights, one (1) each side on the front cab corner. The side front lights,to'be red warning
LEDs.

o Two (2) lights, behind the crew cab doors. The side middle lights to be red warning LEDs.
e Two (2) lights, over the rear tandems. The side rear lights to be redwarningg-EDs.
e The warning light lens color(s) to be clear.

There will be a switch in the cab on the switch panel to control the flashing warning lights.

The scene LEDs will be activated by a switch at the driver's side switch"panel and when the perimeter
lights are activated.

The scene LEDs may be load managed when the parking brake is applied.

INTERIOR CAB DOOR WARNING LIGHTS
There will be four (4) Weldon, Model 8401-0000-20, amber 12 volt DC LED flashing strip lights
provided.

¢ One (1) light on the driver's side ¢ab door over the window.

e One (1) light on the passengers side cab door over the window.

e One (1) light on the pasSenger's side crew cab door over the window.
e One (1) light on the driver's'side crew cab door over the window.

Each light will be activated when the battery switch is on and the adjacent door is opened.
Each light will be"installedyso the flash pattern directs traffic away from the doors.

REAR ZONE LOWER LIGHTING
There will be two (2) Whelen®, Model M6V2*, 4.32" high x 6.75" long x 2.25" deep lights with flashing
and scen€LEDS located at the rear of the apparatus.

e\ gThexdriver's side rear light to be red.
e \The passenger's side rear light to be red.

The lens over the flashing LED's will be clear. The lens over the scene LEDs will be clear.

There will be a switch in the cab, on the switch panel to control the flashing LEDs.

71 of 113



The scene LEDs will be activated by a switch at the driver's side switch panel and by a switch in a
recessed cup located at the driver's side rear bulkhead.

The scene LEDs may be load managed when the parking brake is applied.

WARNING LIGHTS (REAR)

There will be two (2) Whelen Model M9V2**, 6.50" high x 10.35" long x 2.63" deep LED flashing
warning and scene light(s) with chrome trim provided upper rear bulkhead, as high as possible, one
each side.

The color of the warning light LED's will be red.
The lens color will be clear.
The warning light(s) will be controlled with the rear upper warning switch.

The scene lights will be activated by the same switching that has been selected for the other rear scene
light(s) on the apparatus .

The warning LED's and scene LED's may be load managedawhen the parking brake is applied.

REAR OF HOSEBED WARNING LIGHTS
There will be two (2) Whelen®, Model B63M7**, LED Rota-Beam, beacons with Model M7**, lower LED
flashing lights provided in a single polished aluminumghousifg at the rear of the truck.

There will be one (1) installed on the driver's side"withjthe lower light to the rear:

e The driver's side beacon to include red LED's.
e The rear lower light on the driver'sisidefto be red.

There will be one (1) installedsemthe passenger's side with the lower light to the rear:

o The passenger's side\beacon to include red LED's.
e The rear lowerflight'on the passenger' side to be red.

The warning light'lens color(s) to be clear.
There will be a switeh located in the cab on the switch panel to control the lights.
The lower light'may be load managed when the parking brake is applied.

TRAFFIG.DIRECTING LIGHT
Therewill be one (1) Whelen® Model TANF65, 34.00" long x 2.37" high x 2.37" deep, amber LED
traffic directing light installed at the rear of the apparatus.

The Whelen Model TACTLS5 control head will be included with this installation.
The control head will be powered when the battery switch is on.

The auxiliary flash not activated.

72 of 113



This traffic directing light will be mounted on top of the body below the turntable with a treadplate box at
the rear of the apparatus.

The traffic directing light will be controlled by switches only and a control head will not be provided.

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM GENERAL DESIGN FOR ALTERNATING CURRENT
The following guidelines will apply to the 120/240 VAC system installation:

General
Any fixed line voltage power source producing alternating current (ac) line voltage will preduce electric
power at 60 cycles plus or minus 3 cycles.

Except where superseded by the requirements of NFPA 1901, all componentsfeguipment and
installation procedures will conform to NFPA 70, National Electrical Code (herein referred to as the
NEC).

Line voltage electrical system equipment and materials included opn the apparatus will be listed and
installed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. All products will be used only in the
manner for which they have been listed.

Grounding
Grounding will be in accordance with Section 250-6 #Portable and Vehicle Mounted Generators" of the

NEC. Ungrounded systems will not be used. Only'stranded or braided copper conductors will be used
for grounding and bonding.

An equipment grounding means will be previded in accordance with Section 250-91 (Grounding
Conductor Material) of the NEC.

The grounded current carrying canductor (neutral) will be insulated from the equipment grounding
conductors and from the equipmentienclosures and other grounded parts. The neutral conductor will be
colored white or gray in acc@rdance with Section 200-6 (Means of Identifying Grounding Conductors) of
the NEC.

In addition to the bonding‘réquired for the low voltage return current, each body and driving or crew
compartment en¢losure will be bonded to the vehicle frame by a copper conductor. This conductor will
have a minimumiamperage rating of 115 percent of the nameplate current rating of the power source
specification label as,defined in Section 310-15 (amp capacities) of the NEC. A single conductor
properly sizedito meet the low voltage and line voltage requirements will be permitted to be used.

All power source system mechanical and electrical components will be sized to support the continuous
duty ‘na@meplate rating of the power source.

Operation
Instructions that provide the operator with the essential power source operating instructions, including

the power-up and power-down sequence, will be permanently attached to the apparatus at any point
where such operations can take place.

73 of 113



Provisions will be made for quickly and easily placing the power source into operation. The control will
be marked to indicate when it is correctly positioned for power source operation. Any control device
used in the drive train will be equipped with a means to prevent the unintentional movement of the
control device from its set position.

A power source specification label will be permanently attached to the apparatus near the operator's
control station. The label will provide the operator with the following information:

o Rated voltage(s) and type (ac or dc)
e Phase

¢ Rated frequency

e Rated amperage

e Continuous rated watts

e Power source engine speed

Direct drive (PTO) and portable generator installations will comply with’ Article,445 (Generators) of the
NEC.

Overcurrent protection
The conductors used in the power supply assembly betwieen the\output terminals of the power source
and the main over current protection device will not exceedd44400" (3658 mm) in length.

For fixed power supplies, all conductors in the pewersupply assembly will be type THHW, THW, or use
stranded conductors enclosed in nonmetallic liquidstight flexible conduit rated for a minimum of 194
degree Fahrenheit (90 degrees Celsius),

For portable power supplies, conductorsiocated between the power source and the line side of the
main overcurrent protection device willlbe type SO or type SEO with suffix WA flexible cord rated for
600-volts at 194 degrees Fahrenheit{90 degrees Celsius).

Wiring Methods
Fixed wiring systems will be limited to the following:

o Metallic opmenmetallic liquid tight flexible conduit rated at not less than 194 degrees Fahrenheit
(90 degreesLelsius)

e oOr

e Type SO or Type SEO cord with a WA suffix, rated at 600 volts at not less than 194 degrees
Fahrenheit (90 degrees Celsius)

Electrical cord or conduit will not be attached to chassis suspension components, water or fuel lines, air
or air brake lines, fire pump piping, hydraulic lines, exhaust system components, or low voltage wiring.
In addition the wiring will be run as follows.

e Separated by a minimum of 12.00" (305 mm), or properly shielded, from exhaust piping
e Separated from fuel lines by a minimum of 6.00" (152 mm) distance

74 of 113



Electrical cord or conduit will be supported within 6.00" (152 mm) of any junction box and at a minimum
of every 24.00" (610 mm) of continuous run. Supports will be made of nonmetallic materials or
corrosion protected metal. All supports will be of a design that does not cut or abrade the conduit or
cable and will be mechanically fastened to the vehicle.

Wiring Identification

All line voltage conductors located in the main panel board will be individually and permanently
identified. The identification will reference the wiring schematic or indicate the final termination, point.
When prewiring for future power sources or devices, the unterminated ends will be labeled showing
function and wire size.

Wet Locations

All wet location receptacle outlets and inlet devices, including those on hardwired\remote power
distribution boxes, will be of the grounding type provided with a wet locationycover and installed in
accordance with Section 210-7 "Receptacles and Cord Connections" f the NEC!

All receptacles located in a wet location will be not less than 24.00*(610 ma1) from the ground.
Receptacles on off-road vehicles will be a minimum of 30.00" (762 mm),from the ground.

The face of any wet location receptacle will be installed im"a plane from vertical to not more than 45
degrees off vertical. No receptacle will be installed ing face up position.

Dry Locations
All receptacles located in a dry location will befof the,grodnding type. Receptacles will be not less than
30.00" (762 mm) above the interior floor height:

All receptacles will be marked with the type of line voltage (120-volts or 240-volts) and the current rating
in amps. If the receptacles are ditgCt currentz0r other than single phase, they will be so marked.

Listing

All receptacles and electrical inlet devices will be listed to UL 498, Standard for Safety Attachment
Plugs and Receptaclesgonother appropriate performance standards. Receptacles used for direct
current voltages will e rated for the appropriate service.

Electrical Systém Testing
The wiring and associated equipment will be tested by the apparatus manufacturer or the installer of
the line voltage system.

The, wiring and/permanently connected devices and equipment will be subjected to a dielectric voltage
withstanehtest of 900-volts for one (1) minute. The test will be conducted between live parts and the
neutral conductor, and between live parts and the vehicle frame with any switches in the circuit(s)
closed” This test will be conducted after all body work has been completed.

Electrical polarity verification will be made of all permanently wired equipment and receptacles to
determine that connections have been properly made.

75 of 113



Operational Test per Current NFPA 1901 Standard

The apparatus manufacturer will perform the following operation test and ensure that the power source
and any devices that are attached to the line voltage electrical system are properly connected and in
working order. The test will be witnessed and the results certified by an independent third-party
certification organization.

The prime mover will be started from a cold start condition and the line voltage electrical systémeaded
to 100 percent of the nameplate rating.

The power source will be operated at 100 percent of its nameplate voltage for a minimum of twey(2)
hours unless the system meets category certification as defined in the current NFPAW 904 standard.

Where the line voltage power is derived from the vehicle's low voltage system, the minimum continuous
electrical load as defined in the current NFPA 1901 standard will be applied,to the low voltage electrical
system during the operational test.

GENERATOR

The apparatus will be equipped with a complete electrical power system. The generator will be a
Harrison Model MCR Stealth 8.0 kW Hydraulic unit. The witing and generator installation will conform
to the present National Electrical Codes Standards of thefNational Fire Protection Association. The
installation will be designed for continuous operation without overheating and undue stress on
components.

Generator Performance

- Continuous Duty Rating: 8,000 watts

- Nominal Volts: 120/240

- Amperage: 68 @ 120 volts, 34 @%240 volts

- Phase: Single

- Cycles: 60 hertz

- Engine Speedfat Engagement: Any (Field Switch)

- RPM range: 900 10,3,000 (hydraulic pump)

The generator will be driven by a transmission power take off unit, through a hydraulic pump and motor.

The 'generator will include an electrical control inside the cab. The hydraulic engagement supply will be
operational at any time (no interlocks).

An electric/hydraulic valve will supply hydraulic fluid to the clutch engagement unit provided on the
chassis PTO drive.

Generator Instruments and Controls

76 of 113



To properly monitor the generator performance a digital meter panel will be furnished and mounted next
to the circuit breaker panel. The meter will indicate the following items:

- Voltage

- Amperage for both lines

- Frequency

- Generator run hours

- Over current indication

- Over temperature indication

- "Power On" indication

- Two (2) fuse holders with two (2) amp fuses (for indicator light pretection)

The meter and indicators will be installed near eye level in the compartment. Instruments will be flush
mounted in an appropriate sized weatherproof electrical ep€losure. All instruments used will be
accurate within +/- two (2) percent.

Generator Wiring:

The system will be installed by highly qualified electricalitechnicians to assure the required level of
safety and protection to the fire apparatus,eperators./ The wiring, electrical fixtures and components will
be to the highest industry quality standards available on the domestic market. The equipment will be
the type as designed for mobile typesinstallations subject to vibration, moisture and severe continuous
usage. The following electrical camponents will be the minimum acceptable quality standards for this
apparatus:

Wiring:

All electrical wiring will beffine stranded copper type. The wire will be sized to the load and circuit
breaker rating; ten (20) ‘gauge on 30 amp circuits, 12 gauge on 20 amp circuits and 14 gauge on 15
amp circuits. The cable will be run in corner areas and extruded aluminum pathways built into the body
for easy access.

Load Center:
The'maimload center will be a Cutler Hammer with circuit breakers rated to load demand.

Circuit Breakers:

Individual breakers will be provided for all on-line equipment to isolate a tripped breaker from affecting
any other on-line equipment.

GENERATOR LOCATION
The generator will be permanently mounted above the torque box per direction.

77 of 113



GENERATOR START
There will be a switch provided on the cab instrument panel to engage the generator.

GENERATOR REMOTE FIELD SWITCH
A remote switch will be provided in the cab switch panel and at the turntable control panel to engage
the field of the hydraulic generator. A light will be provided to indicate that the generator field is active.

CIRCUIT BREAKER PANEL
The circuit breaker panel will be located high on the left wall of compartment LS6.

ELECTRIC CORD REEL

Furnished with the 120 volt AC electrical system will be a Hannay, Series 1600, cord reel\ The reel will
be provided with a 12-volt electric rewind switch, that is guarded to prevent a¢cidental operation and
labeled for its intended use. The switch will be protected with a fuse and installed at,a height not to
exceed 72.00" above the operators standing position.

The exterior finish of the reel(s) will be painted #269 gray from thefreel manufacturer.

A captive roller assembly to be provided to aid in the payout and loading of the reel. A ball stop will be
provided to prevent the cord from being wound on the reel:

A label will be provided in a readily visible location adjacentio the reel. The label will indicate current
rating, current type, phase, voltage and total cable length.

A total of two (2) cord reels will be provided one (I)*6verithe driver's side front stabilizer compartment
on the body and one (1) in the driver's side"eempartment over the front stabilizer.

The cord reel will be configured with.three (3) conductors.

CORD

Provided for electric distribution will be,two (2) lengths, one (1) for each reel, of 200 feet of black 10/3
electrical cord. A Hubbell L5-20, 20'amp, 120 volt, twist lock connector body will be installed on the
end of the cord.

120 VOLT RECEPTACLE

There will be four (4), 20 amp 120 volt AC three (3) wire twist lock receptacle(s) with waterproof flip up
cover(s) installed on, the left side of the rear body bulkhead, on the right side of the rear body bulkhead
and onefeach_at the forward front body. The NEMA configuration for the receptacles will be L5-20R.

Themeceptacle(s) will be powered from the on board generator.
There'will be a label installed near the receptacle(s) that state the following:

e Line Voltage

e Current Ratting (amps)
e Phase

e Frequency

78 of 113



FOUR (4)-SECTION 105 FOOT AERIAL LADDER

CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS
The ladder will be constructed to meet all of the requirements as described in the current NFPA 1901
standards.

The aerial device will be a true ladder type device; therefore ladders attached to booms will nethe
considered.

These capabilities will be established in an unsupported configuration.

All structural load supporting elements of the aerial device that are made of a ductile material' will have
a design stress of not more than 50% of the minimum yield strength of the matesial based on the
combination of the live load and the dead load. This 2:1 structural safety factor meets'the current
NFPA 1901 standard.

All structural load supporting elements of the aerial device that are,made of nen-ductile material will
have a design stress of not more than 20% of the minimum ultimate strength of the material, based on
the combination of the rated capacity and the dead load. This 5:1 safety factor meets the current 1901
NFPA standard.

Wire ropes and attaching systems used to extend and retract the fly sections will have a 5:1 safety
factor based on the ultimate strength under all operating conditions. The factor of safety for the wire
rope will remain above 2:1 during any extensign or retraction stall. The minimum ratio of the diameter
of wire rope used to the diameter of the sheavesused will be 1:12. Wire ropes will be constructed of
seven (7) strands over an inner wire corg'for increased flexibility. The wire rope will be galvanized to
reduce corrosion.

The aerial base pivot bearings willbe /maintenance free type bearings and require no external
lubrication.

The aerial device will be,capable of sustaining a static load one and one-half times its rated tip load
capacity (live load) ingvery position in which the aerial device can be placed when the vehicle is on a
firm level surface.

The aerial deviceywill be capable of sustaining a static load one and one-third times its rated tip load
capacity (live load)‘in every position the aerial device can be placed when the vehicle is on a slope of
five degrees dewnward in the direction most likely to cause overturning.

With the, aefrial device out of the cradle and in the fully extended position at zero degrees elevation, a
test load will be applied in a horizontal direction normal to the centerline of the ladder. The turntable
will notyrotate and the ladder will not deflect beyond what the product specification allows.

All welding of aerial components, including the aerial ladder sections, turntable, pedestal, and
outriggers, will be in compliance with the American Welding Society standards. All welding personnel
will be certified, as qualified under AWS welding codes.

79 of 113



The aerial device will be capable of operating with the maximum rated tip load in either of the two (2)
following conditions:

- Conditions of high wind up to 50 mph

- Conditions of icing, up to a coating of .25" over the entire aerial structure

All of the design criteria must be supported by the following test data:

- Strain gage testing of the complete aerial device

- Analysis of deflection data taken while the aerial device was under test load

The following standards for materials are to be used in the design of the aerial device:
- Materials are to be certified by the mill that manufactured the material

- Material testing that is performed after the mill test will be for verification only and not with the intent of
changing the classification

- All welded structural components for the ladder will be trac€able to their mill lots

LADDER CONSTRUCTION
The ladder will be comprised of four sections.

The ladder will have the capability to support a migimum¢of 750 pounds at the tip in the unsupported
configuration, based upon 360 degree rotatien, up tofull extension and from -8 degrees to +75
degrees.

The ladder (handrails, baserails, tiisses, Kebraces and rungs) will be constructed of high strength low
alloy steel, minimum 70,000 poundsper square inch yield, with full traceability on all structural
members.

Each section will be trussed diagonally, vertically and horizontally using welded steel tubing.

All ladder rungs willkhkberound and welded to each section utilizing "K" bracing for torsional rigidity.
The inside width'dimensions of the ladder will be:

- Base Section,39.00"

- Infler:Mid«Setction 32.25"

- Outer-Mid Section 26.62"

- Fly Section 21.62"

The height of the handrails above the centerline of the rungs will be:

- Base Section 26.75"

80 of 113



- Inner-Mid Section 22.87"
- Outer-Mid Section 20.25"
- Fly Section 17.50"

The ladder will be designed to provide continuous egress for firefighters and civilians from an elevated
position to the ground. The end of the fly section will be constructed in a manner that aids personnel in
climbing off the ladder.

The egress section will be designed to maintain the rated load of the aerial device. It will be balted on
for easy replacement.

VERTICAL HEIGHT
The ladder will extend to a minimum height of 105" above the ground at full 'extension and elevation.
The measurement of height will be consistent with NFPA standards.

HORIZONTAL REACH
The rated horizontal reach will be a minimum of 100'. The measurement of horizontal reach will be
consistent with NFPA standards.

TURNTABLE

The upper turntable assembly will connect the aerial ladder to'the turntable bearing. The steel structure
will have a mounting position for the aerial elevatien cylinders, ladder connecting pins, and upper
turntable operator's position.

The turntable will be a 1.00" thick steel deck, ceated with a non-skid, chemical resistant material in the
walking areas. The stepping surfaces will meet the skid-resistance requirements of the current NFPA
1901 standard.

The turntable platform will bg 1.00%thiek steel deck that is approximately 95.00" wide x 84.50" long.

The turntable handrailsswill beya minimum 42.00" high and will not increase the overall travel height of
the vehicle. The handrails‘will be constructed from aluminum and have a slip resistant knurled surface.

ELEVATION SYSTEM
Two (2) double agcting lift cylinders will be utilized to provide smooth precise elevation from 8 degrees
below harizéntal to 75 degrees above horizontal.

The,lift cylinders will have a 6.00" internal diameter (bore), .50" wall thickness, 4.50" diameter cylinder
rod and’a,34.84" stroke.

The lifticylinders will be equipped with integral holding valves located on the cylinder to prevent the unit
from falling should the charged lines be severed at any point within the hydraulic system.

The lift cylinders will be mounted utilizing maintenance free spherical bearings on both ends of the
cylinders. The bearings will help reduce pin wear.

81 of 113



The elevation system will be controlled by the microprocessor. The microprocessor will provide the
following features:

- Envelope control of the elevation system to prevent accidental body damage

- Automatic deceleration when the aerial device is lowered into the cradle

- Automatic deceleration at the end of stroke, in maximum raise and lower positions
- Deceleration of the aerial device from O to -8 degrees

EXTENSION/RETRACTION SYSTEM
A full hydraulic powered extension and retraction system will be provided using,two (2) hydraulic
cylinders and wire ropes.

Each cylinder is capable of operating the ladder in the event of a failure*te,the, other.

The extension cylinder will have a 3.00" internal diameter (bore), 15¢5" diameter rod and a 134.00"
stroke.

Extension and retraction will be internally limited within the cylinders, eliminating excess strain on wire
ropes, sheaves and the ladder structure.

Each of the cylinders, wire ropes and sheave assemblies will be completely independent of the other,
S0 as to provide a safety factor wherein a failure of oneyassembly will not affect the function and
operation of the other.

The extension cylinders will be equipped with integral holding valves to prevent the unit from retracting
should the charged lines be severed atany, point within the hydraulic system.

The extension cylinders will besmounted utilizing maintenance free spherical bearings.

The cylinders will also have'internal deceleration valves to cushion the movement of the cylinder when
approaching full extension,or retraction.

The reeling of thefwite rope will be such as to provide synchronized, simultaneous movement of all
sections to full extension.

The extension/retraction cables will be 7-flex galvanized wire rope with stainless steel threaded ends
and will pessess the following characteristics:

- Inner Seetion .50" diameter with 26,200# nominal design strength
- Mid Section.38" diameter with 14,880# nominal design strength
- Fly Section.31" diameter with 10,380# nominal design strength

The extension/retraction system will be controlled by the microprocessor. The microprocessor will
provide the following features:

82 of 113



- Automatic deceleration at the end of stroke, in maximum extend and retract positions
- Controls the rate of retraction while flowing water

Wear pads made of polymer material will be used between the telescoping sections for maximum
weight distribution, strength and smoothness of operation.

Adjustment screws will be provided on the wear pads to permit proper side alignment.

All sheaves will be plastic and greaseless and all sheave pins and pivot pins will be palisbed stainless
steel.

ROTATION SYSTEM
A 46.00" diameter, external tooth, monorace, slewing ring bearing will be used for the yotation system.
The gear teeth will be stub tooth form.

The bearing will provide 360 degree continuous rotation.
The turntable will be bolted to the bearing using 36 SAE Grade 8, “875! diameter bolts.
To secure the bearing to the torque box, 36 Grade 8, .875" diameter bolts will be used.

The turntable base and the torque box bearing plateswill be'maehined flat, within .007" thereby
providing even distribution of forces.

Two hydraulically driven planetary gear boxes willsbejused to provide infinite and minute rotation control
throughout the entire rotational travel.

Each planetary gearbox will have a tergue rating of 130,000 pounds per inch.

Each planetary gearbox will have ayspring applied, hydraulically released disc type swing brake will be
furnished to provide positivefbraking of,the turntable assembly.

The rotation system wili'be, controlled by the microprocessor. The microprocessor will provide the
following features:

- Envelope control of rotatien system to prevent accidental body damage
- Preventthe aerial'fsom being rotated into an unstable condition

ROTATION INTERLOCK

The mieroprecessor will be used to prevent the rotation of the aerial device to the side in which the
stabilizers have not been fully deployed (short-jacked). The microprocessor will allow full and
unrestricted use of the aerial, in the 180 degree area, on the side(s) where the stabilizers have been
fully deployed.

The system will also have a manual override, to comply with NFPA 1901.

83 of 113



LADDER CRADLE INTERLOCK SYSTEM

A ladder cradle interlock system will be provided through the microprocessor to prevent the lifting of the
aerial device from the nested position until the operator places all the stabilizers in a load supporting
configuration. A switch will be installed at the boom support to prevent operation of the stabilizers once
the aerial has been elevated from the nested position.

TOROQUE BOX
A "torsion box" subframe will be installed between the two (2) sets of stabilizers.

The torque box will be constructed of .312" steel plate (50,000 pounds per square inchyield) with steel
tubing reinforcement on each side of the box in the turntable area.

The torque box subframe assembly is capable of withstanding all torsional and herizontal loads when
the unit is on the stabilizers.

The torque box will be bolted to the chassis frame rails using 20 SAE (Grade 83,.750" bolts with nuts.

LOAD CAPACITIES
The following load capacities will be established, with the stabilizers at full horizontal extension and
placed in the down position, to level the truck and to relieve theyweight from the tires and axles.

Capacities will be based upon full extension and 360¢degreeyratation.

A load chart, visible at the operator's station, willshe previded. The load chart will show the
recommended safe load at any condition of the aefialjdevice's elevation and extension.

50 MPH WIND CONDITIONS/WATERWAY DRY

Degrees of | -8t09 | 10to 19 | 20 te,29), 30t039 | 40t049  50t0 59 | 60to 69 | 70 to 75
Elevation

Egress 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750

Fly - - - - - - 250 750
Upper Mid | - - - - 250 250 500 750
Lower Mid | - g - 250 250 500 1000 1000
Base - - 250 250 250 750 1000 1000
50 MPH WAND CONDITIONS/WATERWAY CHARGED

Degrees of =81t09 | 10t019 | 20t029 | 30to 39 | 40t0 49  50t0 59 | 60to 69 | 70 to 75
Elevation

Egress 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500

Fly - - - - - 250 500 750
UpperMid | - - - - 250 500 750 1000
Lower Mid | - - - 250 500 750 1000 1000
Base - - 250 500 750 1000 1000 1000

84 of 113




Reduced loads at the tip can be redistributed in 250 Ib. increments to the fly, mid, or base
sections as needed.

The tip capacity will be reduced to zero when flowing water with the nozzle above the waterway
centerline.

BOOM SUPPORT

A heavy duty boom support will be provided for support of the ladder in the travel position. On the‘base
section of the ladder, a stainless steel scuffplate will be provided where the ladder come$ into contact
with the boom support.

The boom support will be located just to the rear of the chassis cab, recessed’into the transverse
compartment in place of pump.

AERIAL BOOM SUPPORT LIGHT

There will be one (1) Amdor®, Model AY-LB-12HWO012, 190 lumen;, 12" longgwhite LED strip light
mounted on the boom support cradle. This light will be activated when, the aerial master switch is
activated.

AERIAL BOOM PANEL
There will be one boom panel provided on each side of the aepial ladder base section. The boom panel
will be painted #10 white.

The boom panels will be designed so no mouniing bolts are in the face of the panel. This will keep the
lettering surface free of holes.

EXTENSION INDICATOR

Extension markings and corresponding numerical indicators will be provided along each inside and
outside top rail of the base sgetion oOfithe aerial every 10'. They will indicate various positions of
extension up to full. Markings andindicators will be clearly visible to the console operator. To aid in
visibility during hours ofsdarkness,the markings and numerical indicators will be red reflective material.

FOLDING STEPS

One (1) set of falding steps will be provided at the tip of the ladder. An additional set of folding steps
will be provided atithe base of the fly section. The steps will be bright finished, non-skid with a black
coating.

AERIAL DEVICE RUNG COVERS
Each rung,will be covered with a secure, heavy-duty, fiberglass pultrusion that incorporates an
aggressive, no-slip coating.

The rung covers will be glued to each rung, and will be easily replaceable should the rung cover
become damaged.

The center portion of each rung cover will be black and the outside 2.00" edge at each side will be
black.

85 of 113



Under no circumstances will the rung covers be fastened to the rungs using screws or rivets.
The rung covers will have a 10-year, limited warranty.

LADDER STORAGE MOUNTING BRACKETS

Mounting will be provided on each side of the aerial device for storage of two (2) roof ladder(s). The
bracket(s) will be located inboard of the boom panel at the base section. The bracket(s) will heldythe
boom panel as close to the base section as possible and include straps to secure the ladder.

The mounting brackets will accommodate a 14' Duo-Safety 775-A-DR and 16' Duo-Safety 875-A-DR
roof ladder as determined by the type of aerial device and the available space.

TEMPORARY SCABBARD AT END OF AERIAL
There will be a total of two (2) vent saw scabbard(s) provided. The scabbard(s) will be'mounted on
each side of the aerial tip. The scabbard(s) will be DA finished.

PIKE POLE MOUNTING BRACKETS

Mounting will be provided ahead of the boom panel, near the end ofthe base section of the aerial
ladder for one (1) pike pole(s). The bracket(s) will be located on the leftiside of the aerial device while
viewed from the turntable.

The bracket will be sized to hold a Nupla 6' pike poles

RUBBISH HOOK MOUNTING BRACKET
Mounting will be provided near the end of the fly se€tion*of the aerial ladder for a rubbish hook.

The bracket will be sized to hold a Nupla 6' roof,vent rubbish hook.

LIGHTS FOR TURNTABLE WALKWAY

There will be white LED lights provided at the aerial turntable. The lights will be located to illuminate
the entire walking surface ofsthe turntable including the area around the turntable console. These lights
will be activated by the aerial master switch.

TURNTABLE CONSOLEAIGHTING

There will be oné (1), TeCNig Model T10, white LED light strip mounted in the turntable console cover
to illuminate the cantrols located on both the upper and lower portion of the turntable control station.
These lightS'will be activated by the aerial master switch.

ROIATION BEARING COVER
An aluminum treadplate cover will be fitted over the aerial rotation bearing and drive pinion gear(s).
The caver will be attached to the underside of the turntable deck.

EYELETS FOR ROPE TIE OFF POINTS

Four (4) eyelets will be mounted near the edge of the turntable, two (2) on the left side and two (2) on
the right side to be used as a rope tie off point. Eyelets will be spaced as not to interfere with handrail
mounting or walkway or control console.

The rope tie off point is for use on the side of the turntable only, not up the aerial device.

86 of 113



The rating on each eyelet will have a maximum of 1000 Ib.

INFORMATION CENTER

There will be an information center provided. The information center will operate in temperatures from -
40 to 185 degrees Fahrenheit. The information center will employ a Linux operating system aned,a
7.00" (diagonal measurement) LCD display. The LCD will have a minimum 400nits rated, coler display.
The LCD will be sunlight readable. The LCD display will be encased in an ABS, black plasti¢ housing
with a gray decal. There will be five (5), weather-resistant user interface switches provided. [The LCD
display can be changed to an available foreign language.

OPERATION

The information center will be designed for easy operation in everyday usey, There will be a page
button to cycle from one screen to the next screen in a rotating fashiong=A video button will allow an
NTSC signal into the information center to be displayed on the LCD. ¥ any button is pressed while
viewing a video feed, the information center will return to the vehicleyinformation screens. There will be
a menu button to provide access to maintenance, setup, and diagnostie,screens. All other button labels
will be specific to the information being viewed.

GENERAL SCREEN DESIGN

Where possible, background colors will be used toqgrovide vehicle information At A Glance. If the
information provided on a screen is within acceptabledimits;a green background color will be used. If
the information provided on a screen is not within@aeeeptable limits, an amber background color will
indicate a caution condition and a red bagkgreund calor will indicate a warning condition.

Every screen in the information center, will include the aerial tip temperature, the time (12- or 24-hour
mode) and a text Alert Center. The time will'be synchronized between all Command Zone color
displays located on the vehicle., ThedfAlert Center will display text messages for audible alarms. The
text messages will identify any items causing the audible alarm to sound. If more than one (1) audible
alarm is activated, the text message for each alarm will cycle every second until the problems have
been resolved. The backgroundfor the Alert Center will change to indicate the severity of the warning
message. Amber will‘ipdicate a caution condition and red will indicate a warning condition. If a warning
and a caution condition oecur simultaneously, the red background color will be shown for all Alert
Center messages:

A label will besprovided for each button. The label will indicate the function for each active button for
each screen. Ifthe button is not utilized on specific screens, it will have a button label with no text.

Symbols will accurately depict the aerial device type the information pertains to such as rear mount
ladderyrear mount platform, mid-mount ladder or mid-mount platform.

PAGE SCREENS
The Information center will include the following pages:

The Aerial Main and Load Chart page will indicate the following information:

87 of 113



- Rungs Aligned and Rungs Not Aligned will be indicated with text and respective green or red colored
ladder symbols.

- Ladder Elevation will be indicated via a fire apparatus vehicle with ladder symbol with the degree of
elevation indicated between the vehicle and ladder.

- Water Flow (if applicable) will be indicated via a water nozzle symbol and text indicating flowsftime.

- Breathing Air Levels will be indicated via an air bottle symbol and text indicating the pereent (%) of air
remaining. A green bar graphs shown inside the bottle will indicate oxygen levels above20%. A red
bar graph will indicate oxygen levels at or below 20%. When oxygen levels are at.erbelow 10% the red
bar graph will flash.

- The Aerial Load Chart will indicate the load limit on each section of the ladder based.on actual ladder
position and water flow (if applicable).

- At A Glance color features will be utilized on this screen. Caution type conditions will be indicated via
a yellow background. Warning type conditions will be indicated via ayred hackground. Conditions
operating within acceptable limits will be indicated via a green background.

The Aerial Reach and Hydraulic Systems page will indicate the fellowing information:

- Aerial Hydraulic Oil Temperature will be indicatediwithgymbel and text. At a glance features will be
utilized.

- Aerial Hydraulic Oil Pressure will be indicated with a'symbol and text. At a glance features will be
utilized.

- The following calculations will begndicatedson a representative vehicle symbol:

- Aerial Device Extension length®

- Aerial Device Height indicating the height of the aerial device tip from the ground.

- Aerial Device Reachiindicating the horizontal distance the aerial reaches from the turntable.
- Aerial Device Angle indicating the angle from the vehicle which the device is at.

- At A Glance color features will be utilized on this screen. Caution type conditions will be indicated via
a yellowsbackground. Warning type conditions will be indicated via a red background. Conditions
operating within acceptable limits will be indicated via a green background.

The Level Vehicle page will indicate the following information:

- The grade of the vehicle will be indicated via a fire apparatus vehicle symbol with the degree of grade
shown in text format. The symbol will tilt dependent on the vehicle grade.

- The slope of the vehicle will be indicated via a fire apparatus vehicle symbol with the degree of slope
shown in text format. The symbol will tilt dependent on the vehicle slope.

88 of 113



- Outriggers status will be indicated via a colored symbol for each outrigger present. Each outrigger
status will be defined as one of the following:

- Outrigger stowed indicated with a silver pan located close to the vehicle

- Outrigger fully extended indicated with a fully deployed green outrigger

- Outrigger short-jacked indicated by a yellow outrigger partially deployed

- Outrigger not set indicated by a red outrigger that is not set on the ground

- A text box located on the vehicle symbol will be utilized to identify the overall stattstef the outrigger
leveling system. The following status will be indicated in the text box:

- Deployed status will indicate all outriggers are properly set on the ground‘at full extension

- Shortjacked status will indicate one or more outriggers are set on the groundibut not fully extended.
- Not Set status will indicate one or more outriggers is not properly;set.on the ground.

- Stowed status will indicate all outriggers are stowed for vehiele travel.

- A bedding assist alert will indicate that the aerial deyice iSybeing aligned by the Command Zone
system as the operator lowers the aerial device int@.thes€radle’with the joystick.

- At A Glance color features will be utilized onfthis_sereen. Caution type conditions will be indicated via
a yellow background. Warning type conditiens will bg'indicated via a red background. Conditions
operating within acceptable limits will be indicated via a green background.

MENU SCREENS
The following screens will be availablé through the Menu button:

The View System Informatian screen will display aerial device hours, aerial PTO hours, ladder aligned
for stowing, aerial rotatiomangle, total water flow (if applicable), and aerial waterway valve status (if
applicable).

The Set Display Brightness screen will allow brightness increase and decrease and include a default
setting button.

The Configure®ideo Mode screen will allow setting of video contrast, video color and video tint.
The SexStartup screen allows setting of the screen that will be active at vehicle power-up.
The Set Date and Time screen has a 12- or 24-hour format, and allows setting of the time and date.

The View Active Alarms screen shows a list of all active alarms including the date and time of each
alarm occurrence and shows all alarms that are silenced.

The System Diagnostics screen allows the user to view system status for each module and it's
respective inputs and outputs. Viewable data will include the module type and ID number; the module

89 of 113



version; and module diagnostics information including input or output number, the circuit number
connected to that input or output, the circuit name (item connected to the circuit), status of the input or
output, and other module diagnostic information.

Aerial calibrations screen indicates items that may be calibrated by the user and instructions to follow
for proper calibration of the aerial device.

Button functions and button labels may change with each screen.

LOWER CONTROL STATION

A lower control station will be located at the rear of the apparatus in an easily accessible,areas” The
controls and indication labels will be illuminated, for nighttime operation. The follawing items will be
furnished at the lower control station and will be clearly identified and Conveniently located for ease of
operation and viewing:

- Level assist switch
- Override switch to override microprocessor
- Emergency power unit switch

TURNTABLE CONTROL STATION

There will be one (1) device control station locatedd@n th€ left'Side of the turntable so the operator may
easily observe the ladder while operating the centrols., Allelevation, extension and rotation controls will
operate from this location. The controls will permit®the operator to regulate the speed of the aerial
functions, within the safe limits, as determifned, by.the’manufacturer and NFPA standards. Each control
will be equipped with a positive lock to hold theicontrol in a neutral position preventing accidental
activation. In addition to the neutralldek;ia copsole cover will be provided at the turntable control
station. The controls will be so désigned to allow the turntable control station to immediately override
the tip controls, if equipped, evenyif the ladder is being operated by the tip controls.

The following items will also'be pravided at the turntable control station, clearly identified and
illuminated for nighttime operation and conveniently located for ease of operation and viewing:

- Intercom controls

- Tip tracking light'switch

- Emergeney stop switch

- Emergency power unit switch

- Operator's load chart

- Ladder illumination switch (if equipped)

- Aerial monitor switches (if equipped)

90 of 113



TURNTABLE WORK LIGHTS
There will be a minimum of two (2), 12-volt work lights installed on the turntable, to illuminate the
surrounding area for nighttime operation. The work lights will be activated by the aerial master switch.

HIGH IDLE

The high idle will be controlled by the microprocessor. The microprocessor will automatically adjust the
engine rpm, to compensate for the amount of load placed upon the system. The system will inclade a
safety device that allows activation of the high idle, only when the parking brake is set andithe
transmission is placed in neutral.

REMOTE AERIAL CONTROL
A remote control will be provided whereby all ladder movements can be controlled at,the ladder tip, in
addition to the control console.

The three (3) ladder functions (extension, rotation, elevation) will be, contrglled individually by means of
spring loaded, return to center 12-volt proportional controls.

A momentary switch at the turntable control station will epable‘the controls at the ladder tip.
The turntable control console ladder controls will ovefride the ladder tip controls.
The remote control aerial speed will be set in ageerdance with the current NFPA 1901 standards.

STABILIZERS

The vehicle will come equipped with a stabilization system consisting of four (4) hydraulically operated
out and down style stabilizers. This_system will meet or exceed all requirements of the NFPA
specifications related to stabilization and setup on sloped surfaces.

The stabilizer/leveling jacks will have‘a,maximum spread of 16" measured from the centerline of the
jack footpads when the beams are fully extended. The beams will be 6.88" wide x 9.00" high with 3/4"
thick top and bottom plates an@3/4" thick sides of 100,000-PSI minimum yield strength steel. The
cylinders will have pilet-operated check valves with thermal relief designed to insure that the beams will
not drift out of the stowedyposition during travel. Wear pads will guide the stabilizers.

The horizontal extension cylinders will be totally enclosed within the beams and will incorporate
telescoping hydraulic tubing to supply the jack cylinder hydraulic power. Stabilizer hydraulic hoses will
remain stationary during operation of the stabilizers to prevent hose wear and potential failure. The
cylinders willshe equipped with decelerators to reduce the speed of extension and retraction when the
beamsfare near the fully retracted and extended positions. The stabilizer extension hydraulic cylinders
will have the following dimensions: 2.25" bore, 1.38" rod, and 51.25" stroke.

The vertical jack cylinders will be capable of 18.00" ground penetration. The cylinders will be supplied
with pilot operated check valves on each jack cylinder to hold the cylinder in the stowed or working
position, should a charged line be severed at any point in the hydraulic system. For safety, the integral
holding valves will be located in the cylinder base end, NOT in the transfer tube. Vertical jack cylinder
rods will be fully enclosed by a telescoping inner box to protect the cylinder rods from damage. The

91 of 113



stabilizer jack hydraulic cylinders will have the following dimensions: 4.25" bore, 3.00" rod, and 34.88"
stroke.

Each stabilizer jack will have a pan that will be a maximum of 14.00" wide so as to allow the extension
of the stabilizer between parked cars or other obstacles. This pan will serve as a protective guard and
a mounting surface for warning lights. The top, forward, and rear edges will be flanged back 90
degrees for added strength.

STABILIZER PADS

The stabilizer footpad will be 12.00" in diameter. The footpad will be attached to the jagk cylinder rod
by means of a machined ball at the end of the jack cylinder rod which mates to a $6€ket machined into
the footpad. The footpad will have the ability to pivot 20 degrees from horizontal in any direction to
allow setup on uneven terrain.

AUXILIARY STABILIZER PADS

An auxiliary ground pad will be supplied for each stabilizer to provide additional load distribution on soft
surfaces. The pads will be 31" x 26" and made from a lightweight €emposite' material. The ground
pressure will not exceed 75 pounds per square inch when the groundpads are used and the apparatus
is fully loaded and the aerial device is carrying its rated capaeity in any position. The pads shall be
stored in a double stacked configuration, two (2) behind€ach rear tandem axle in a single bracket.

STABILIZER CONTROLS

A portable stabilizer control box will be provideds=I'he control box will be weatherproof and oil resistant.
Each function and indicator light will be labeled ons@™metal photo panel. The control box can be taken
as far away as 15 feet from the vehicle withran extension cable.

The stabilizer control box will include thexfollowing:

- One (1) green power indicator lightfor stabilizer control that will be illuminated when the aerial master
and "PTO" switches in the cab areactivated.

- Four (4) electric toggle™switehesfor stabilizers: each toggle switch will control the extend/retract and
raise/lower of its respective,stabilizer to allow vehicle set up in restricted areas and/or on uneven
surfaces.

- Auto leveling assist switch: The outrigger control system will incorporate a computerized self leveling
system ipsaddition tothe standard outrigger controls. The operator will have the option to manually or

automatically fevel the truck. The computerized system will ensure full outrigger extension, proper jack
penetration, and will level the vehicle within 1/2 a degree of level for safe operation of the aerial device.

-One'(1) electric toggle switch for the engaging the emergency power unit.

- One (1) red "stabilizer not stowed" indicator light: this light will illuminate when the stabilizers are not
in the fully stowed position.

- Four (4) fully extended beams green indicator lights: these lights will be illuminated when each of the
respective stabilizer beams are fully extended.

92 of 113



- Four (4) firm on ground green indicator lights: each light will be illuminated when its respective
stabilizer shoe is in the load supporting condition.

Each toggle switch will activate the engine fast idle automatically.
Manual override will be supplied for each stabilizer control valve.

A "Stabilizers Not Stowed" indicator will be provided in the driver's compartment. It will illuminate
automatically whenever the stabilizers are not fully stowed to prevent damage to the apparatushif
moved. The stabilizer system will also be wired to the "Do Not Move Indicator Light", which will flash
whenever the apparatus parking brake is not fully engaged and the stabilizers are saet fully stowed.

CRADLE INTERLOCK SYSTEM

A cradle interlock system will be provided, to prevent the lifting of the aerial,from the nested position,
until the operator has positioned all the stabilizers in a load supporting configuration. A switch will be
installed at the cradle, to prevent operation of the stabilizers once the(aerial has been elevated from the
nested position.

STABILIZER PAN AND TRIM MATERIAL
The aerial stabilizer pans will be polished stainless steel and the aerial stabilizer trim will be polished
stainless steel .

STABILIZER PINS
The stabilizer jacks will not have holes for the stabilizerpins.

STABILIZER CONTROL BOX ALUMINUMBOOR
A vertically hinged smooth aluminum daor will be provided over the stabilizer control box. The door will
be hinged outboard.

HYDRAULIC SYSTEM

All hose assemblies will be assembled¥and crimped by the hose manufactures certified technician. An
assembly cell will be locatedion the premises where the technician can perform audits of the final aerial
assembly for proper fitting/torque and hose routing.

All manufacturing employees responsible for the installation of hydraulic components will be properly
trained. Trainingyill include: proper handling, installation, torque requirements, cleanliness and quality
control proeedures fer hydraulic components.

Hoses used in the aerial hydraulic system will be of a premium quality hose with a high abrasion
resistant cover. All pressure hoses will have a working pressure of 4000 psi. and a burst pressure
rating.of 16,000 psi.

The hydraulic oil will be a premium Multi-Vis product that will have a leading edge additive package,
provide oxidation stability, be extremely shear stable, and have maximum anti-wear properties. All oil
delivered to the manufacturing site will have a minimum ISO cleanliness level of 18/15/13.

Each aerial will be evaluated as to the region and climate where it will be used to determine the
optimum viscosity and proper oil grade. Oil viscosity will be based on an optimum range of 80 to 1000

93 of 113



SUS during normal aerial use. Before shipment of the unit, an oil sample will be taken and analyzed to
confirm the oll is within the allowable 1SO grade tolerance.

The aerial hydraulic system will have a minimum oil cleanliness level of ISO 18/15/13 based on the 1ISO
4406:1999 cleanliness standard. Each customer will receive a certificate of actual cleanliness test
results and an explanation of the rating system.

Each aerial will include an oil sample port, identified with a yellow dust cap and a label, for subsequent
customer testing.

Ball valves will be provided in the hydraulic suction and return lines to permit compenentservi€ing
without draining the oil reservoir.

The system hydraulic pressure will be displayed on a 2.5" liquid filled gauge,‘located an the control
console.

The hydraulic system will be additionally protected from excessive,pressure by‘a secondary pressure
relief valve set at 3150 psi. In the event the main hydraulic pump ¢ompensator malfunctions, the
secondary relief will prevent system damage.

HYDRAULIC CYLINDERS
All cylinders used on the aerial device will be produced by aymanufacturer that specializes in the
manufacture of hydraulic cylinders.

Each cylinder will include integral safety holding cartridges.
Each cylinder will be designed to a minimum safety factor of 4:1 to failure.

All safety holding cartridges will befinstalledsat’the cylinder manufacturer, in a controlled clean
environment to avoid possible contamination and or failure.

HYDRAULIC PUMP

The hydraulic system will"be 'supplied by a variable displacement, load and pressure compensating
piston pump. The pump willmeet the demands of all three (3) simultaneous aerial functions. The
pump will providespreper,flow for a single aerial function with the engine at idle speed. A switch will be
provided on thé'gontrol console to increase the engine speed for multiple function operation.

EMERGENCY PUMP

The aerialwill be equipped with an emergency hydraulic pump, electrically driven from the truck
batteries. Thefpump will be capable of running for 30 minutes for limited aerial functions to stow the
unit ih gaseyof a main pump or truck system failure. A momentary switch will be located at the stabilizer
and aerial control locations to activate the emergency pump.

AERIAL CONTROL VALVE

The aerial hydraulic control valve will be designed with special spool flows, limiting the oil flow for the
designed function speed. The valve will be manually controlled and be located in the control console
with the handles protruding through the operating surface for operation. The activation handles will be
spaced a minimum of 3.5" for ease of operation.

94 of 113



OIL RESERVOIR

The oil reservoir will have a minimum capacity of 38 gallons. The oil fill location will be easily
accessible and be labeled "Hydraulic Oil Only" and also indicate the grade of oil that is installed in the
reservoir. The fill will have a desiccant breather filter with a water capacity of 4 fluid ounces and a 5
micron rating. A drain hose will be included and will terminate with a quarter turn ball valve. Two (2)
suction ports will be provided, one (1) for the main hydraulic pump and one (1) for the emergency
pump. The main suction will be slightly elevated off the bottom of the reservoir and include a 100%mesh
suction strainer. The emergency suction port will be closer to the bottom of the reservoirgeiprovide
some reserve oil for emergency operation. A six (6) disc type magnetic drain will alsotbe pravided to
collect any ferrous contaminants. A float type sending unit in the reservoir will provide an indieation of
oil level on an electric gauge mounted adjacent to the fill location.

HIGH PRESSURE FILTER

The pressure filter will be rated for 6,000 psi working pressure and generously sized for efficiency and
capacity. A 90 psi bypass spring will be included to protect the element and hydraulic system during
lower than normal system operating temperatures.

The 5Q filter element will be constructed of a micro glass medium, which has the highest capture
efficiency, dirt holding capacity and life expectancy over othermedia such as cellulose and synthetic.
The nominal rating will be 5 micron and have an efficiencyyrating of 99.3 % for 5 micron sized patrticles.
The element will have a dirt holding capacity of not éss tham35 grams.

RETURN FILTER

The return filter will be rated for 800 psi workinggpressure and generously sized for efficiency and
capacity. A 25 psi bypass spring will be dncludeddtasprotect the element and hydraulic system during
lower than normal system operating temperatunes. The 5Q filter element will be constructed of a micro
glass medium, which has the highgst captures€fficiency, dirt holding capacity and life expectancy over
other media such as cellulose andisymthetic. The nominal rating will be 5 microns and have an
efficiency rating of 99.6% fo® mieronysized particles. The element will have a dirt holding capacity of
not less than 40 grams.

HYDRAULIC SWIVEL

The aerial ladderwill,be equipped with a three (3) port, high pressure hydraulic swivel which will
connect the hydrauli¢ lines' from the hydraulic pump and reservoir through the rotation point to the aerial
control bank. Thethydraulic swivel will allow for 360 degree continuous rotation of the aerial.

ELECTRICSWIVEL

Thesadder willdbe equipped with an electric swivel to allow 360 degrees rotation of the aerial while
connectingyall electrical circuits through the rotation point. A minimum of 32 collector rings will be
provided that are capable of supplying 20 amp continuous service. All collector rings will be enclosed
and protected with desiccant plugs against condensation and corrosion. No oil or silicone will be used.

12-BIT ABSOLUTE ENCODER
The aerial ladder will be equipped with a 12-Bit Absolute Encoder which provides 4096 counts per shaft
turn for position and direction reference.

95 of 113



The 12-Bit Absolute Encoder will provide a unique binary word to reference each position and direction
for all 360 degrees of rotation.

If the power is interrupted for any reason, the 12-Bit Absolute Encoder will allow power to be returned to
the system without having to re-zero the settings.

The 12-Bit Absolute Encoder will be an integral part of a micro-processor based control systepm

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM
The 105' heavy duty ladder shall utilize a microprocessor-based control system. The system|shall
consist of the following components:

A tethered stabilizer control shall be provided. The tethered control shall be weatherproef and oil
resistant. A Super Bright LED indicator light shall be labeled on a metal phote panel for each function.
The electrical connection at the tethered control shall be permanently attached by & strained relieved
coil cord that shall allow the operator to move 14ft away from the electrical connection for operation.

e Remote Stabilizer Controls

o Weatherproof and oil resistant

e One (1) green "power" indicator light

e One (1) red "stabilizer not stowed" indicator light

o One (1) electric toggle switch for auto level@assist

e One (1) electric toggle switch for the emergency power unit

e One (1) electric toggle switch for each(stabilizer to control:

e Extend/retract function

e Raise/lower function

e One (1) green "stabilizer fully extended" indicator light for each stabilizer
¢ One (1) green "firm on ground®indicator light for each stabilizer

Control System Modules
Each of the control system medules shall be configured as follows:

e Sealed to a,NEMA 4 rating

e Operating range frem -40 degrees F to 185 degrees F (-40 degrees C to 85 degrees C)

¢ Communieate using J1939 data link

o Two¥%(2) diagnostic LED light

o QOne’(1)green light that illuminates when module has power (B+) and ground

o, Oneyd) red light that flashes to indicate the module is capable of communicating via the data
Iink

e \Ground matrix identification system

The following control system modules shall be used:
Control Module

e Main controller for the system

96 of 113



e RS232 connection allows for computer diagnostics
Power Module

e Built-in fault sensing

Eight (8) digital outputs

Pulse width modulating (PWM) capable

15A continuous per output

Circuit protection based on actual current draw (not affected by heat)

Constant Current Module

e Built-in fault sensing

e Four (4) analog inputs

e Eight (8) digital outputs

e Pulse width modulating (PWM) capable

e 4A continuous per output

¢ Circuit protection based on actual current draw (not affected by‘heat)

Input Module

e 16 software selectable (digital or analog) inputs
Output Module

e 16 digital outputs
Input/Output Module

e Eight (8) software seleetable(digital or analog) inputs
e Eight (8) digital outputs

SPOTLIGHTS
There will be six¥(6)/Whelen® Micro Pioneer, Model MPB*,12 volt DC LED bail mount lights furnished.

e Qne (1) will be mounted on the driver's side of the base section of the ladder

o Omne (1) will be mounted on the passenger's side of the base section of the ladder
® “wOneX(t) will be mounted high on the driver's side tip of aerial

¢ #One (1) will be mounted high on the passenger's side tip of aerial

e 1One (1) will be mounted low on the driver's side tip of the aerial

¢ One (1) will be mounted low on the passenger's side tip of the aerial

The painted parts of this light assembly to be white.

Power to the "tracking lights" will be controlled by an on/off switch at the turntable control operator's
position.

97 of 113



The lights at the tip will be controlled by platform/tip and turntable.

LIGHTING ON AERIAL LADDER

There will be TecNig, Model D02 LED rung lighting provided on both sides of the aerial ladder base,
lower and upper mid, and fly sections. The lighting will be located adjacent to the ladder rungs along
the lower rail of the ladder sections and will run the length of the ladder section.

The color of the sections will be:

e The base section of the ladder to be green.

e The lower mid section of the ladder to be blue.

e The upper mid section of the ladder to be amber.
e The fly section of the ladder to be red.

The LED rung lighting will be activated when a switch at the turntable operater's panel is activated
through the master battery switch.

The lights may be load managed when the parking brake is applied.

STABILIZER WARNING LIGHTS
There will be our (4) Whelen®, Model M6V2*, 4.31" high%,6.75"long x 2.25" deep lights with flashing
LEDs, scene LEDs and chrome trim installed, one (¥) on,eaeh.stabilizer cover panel.

e The front stabilizer pan lights will includé red flaghifig LEDs.
e The rear stabilizer pan lights will includesred flashing LEDs.
o The lenses over the flashing LEDS willbelear. The lenses over the scene LEDs will be clear.

The warning LEDs will be activatedddysthe,same switch as the side warning lights.
The scene LEDs will be activated with the stabilizer beam flashing lights.

STABILIZER BEAM WARNING LIGHTS

Two (2) 4.00" diameter'red\LEDsflashing lights will be mounted on each stabilizer, one (1) facing
forward and one (1) facing rearward. The lights will be Grote Supernova 40 series LED lights. The
lights will be recessed in‘the horizontal beam of the stabilizer. These warning lights will be activated
with the aerial master switch.

STABILIZER SCENE LIGHTS

There willbe one (1) Amdor®, Model AY-LB-12HW012, 190 lumen, 12" long, white LED strip light
installed, unider each stabilizer beam to illuminate the surrounding area. A total of four (4) lights will be
installed. The lights will be activated by the aerial master switch.

DC POWER CABLE TO TIP
There will be a cable installed in the aerial device to provide 11.2 amps @ 12 volts DC to the tip of the
aerial device.

98 of 113



COMMUNICATION SYSTEM

An Atkinson communication system will be furnished between the aerial tip and the turntable operator's
position. The communication system will be a two (2)-way system with the communication speaker at
the tip requiring no operator attention to transmit or receive. The transmitting and receiving volume
controls will be located at the turntable operator's position.

RAISED AERIAL PEDESTAL
The aerial pedestal will be raised to accommodate the height of the cab.

RESCUE LIFTING SYSTEM

A rescue lifting attachment will be provided. The lifting attachment will mount to th€"aerial egress and
will consist of a pair of nylatron pulleys mounted to a stainless steel shaft. The_pulleys wilbbe
adjustable from side to side and will have a total lifting capacity of 500Ib, regardless ofwhether one (1)
or both pulleys are being utilized.

ROPE TIE BAR AT BASE SECTION, RESCUE LIFTING SYSTEM

A removable bracket shall be supplied at the rear of the base section, attached between the left hand
and right hand rear hand rails. The bracket shall provide Lyfe Pulley rope tie off and/or guide points
spaced 5.75" apart, centered between the rear hand rails. 4Fhe bracket shall be designed to be easily
removable and not interfere with a fully retracted ladder @ssembly when attached to the base section.

A storage box for the bracket shall be provided on the outside rear of the base section. The storage box
will be painted to match the aerial device.

LIFTING EYE ASSEMBLY - ROPE RESCUEATFACHMENT

A lifting eye assembly will be provided thatisydesigned to evenly distribute load at the tip of the aerial.
The egress will include attachment points for the lifting eye assembly. The lift eye assembly is retained
by two (2) locking pins, one (1) at each,end outboard side of the egress. Leveling is maintained by the
lifting eye assembly rotating withifi,the/egress mounting.

HITCH, WINCH MOUNT

A hitch receiver will be supplied at the left and right side of the vehicle aft of the rear wheels. The hitch
will not interfere with the angle of departure and will be tied directly to the frame rails. The hitch will be

capable of up to a,.10,000 Ib direct pull. Receiver plugs will be provided for the receiver when it is not in
use.

AERIAL TURNTABLE CHAIN
A chainwill besinstalled at the aerial turntable.

WATER SYSTEM
A waterway’ system will be provided consisting of the following components and features:

A 5.00" pipe connected to the water supply on one end and to a water swivel at the rotation point of the
turntable. The water swivel will allow the ladder to rotate 360 degrees continuously while flowing water.

A 4.00" waterway swivel is to be routed through the rotation point swivel up to the heel pin swivel. The
heel pin swivel will allow the water to flow to the ladder pipe while elevating the aerial ladder from -5
degrees to 75 degrees. The heel pivot pin is not integral with the waterway swivel at any point. The

99 of 113



design of the waterway will allow complete servicing of the waterway swivel without disturbing the heel
pivot pin.

The integral telescopic water system will consist of a 4.50" diameter tube in the base section, a 4.00"
diameter tube in the inner mid-section, 3.50" diameter tube in the outer mid-section and a 3.00"
diameter tube in the fly section. The telescopic water pipes will be anodized aluminum.

The rotational torque will have adequate power to rotate the ladder into a full 2000 gallon periminute
water stream directed at 90 degrees to the side while maintaining the 500 pound tip load.

The aerial will be capable of discharging up to 1000 gallons per minute at 100 pounds per square inch
parallel to the ladder and 90 degrees to each side of center while maintaining the'fully rated tip load.

An adjustable intake relief valve will be furnished to protect the aerial waterway from a’pressure surge.
A 1.50" drain valve will be located at the lowest point of the waterway gystem:

WATERWAY SEALS

The waterway seals will be of type-B PolyPak design, composed of nitrexile seal and a nitrile wiper,
which together offer maximum stability and extrusion resistanee on the waterway. The seal will be
capable of withstanding pressures up to 2000 psi, tempeératuresiin excess of 250 degrees Fahrenheit
and have resistance to all foam generating solutions¢ The Seals'will be internally lubricated.

The waterway seals will have automatic centerimgeguides gonstructed of synthetic thermalpolymer. The
guides will provide positive centering of the extendible sections within each other and the base section
to insure longer service life and smoothepoperation.

AERIAL MONITOR
An Akron Model 3480 monitor with stow and deploy will be provided at the tip with a Akron 1500 gpm
Model 5178.

The monitor's functions will be controlled electrically from two (2) separate locations. One (1) control
will be located at the control console and the other at the ladder tip.

There will be a cotirtesylight at the tip of the aerial to illuminate the controls.

Vertical travel of this monitor will be -45 degrees to 90 degrees. Horizontal rotation will be 90 degrees
to each siderof the center line of the aerial device.

AERIAL WATERWAY FLOW METER
Waterway,flow, including total water flowed, will be monitored by the microprocessor. An LCD display
will be'located at the turntable control station.

REAR INLET

A 5.00" NST inlet to the aerial waterway will be provided at the rear of the apparatus. The rear inlet
plumbing will be 10 ga. stainless steel. It will be furnished with a 5.00" chrome plated adapter and a
5.00" chrome plated, long handle cap. The outlet will be located on the left side of the torque box, low
on the rear wall.

100 of 113



WATERWAY LOCKING SYSTEM
The aerial ladder waterway monitor will be capable of being positioned at either the fly section or at the
next lower section of the ladder.

The monitor location will be changeable by the use of a single handle, located at the side of the ladder.

The handle, attached to a cam bracket, will simply be moved forward to lock the monitor at thesfly
section and back to lock it to the previous section.

There will be no pins to remove and reinstall.

The monitor will be operational at all times, regardless of its position, without confiecting or
disconnecting electrical lines.

MANUALS
Two (2) operator maintenance manuals and two (2) wiring diagrams pértaining to'the aerial device will
be provided with the apparatus at time of pick-up.

INITIAL INSTRUCTION

On initial delivery of the fire apparatus, the contractor will supply a qualified representative to
demonstrate the apparatus and provide initial instructiontto the fire department regarding the operation,
care, and maintenance of the apparatus for a periodf three,(3)'consecutive days.

LOOSE EQUIPMENT
The following equipment will be furnished with thes€ompleted unit:

¢ One (1) bag of chrome, stainless steel,"ar cadmium plated screws, nuts, bolts and washers, as
used in the construction of theyunit.

NFPA REQUIRED LOOSE EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
The following loose equipment as‘autliped in NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 8.9.3 will be provided
by the fire department.

e Two (2) 3 ft -4ft plaster hooks with D handles mounted in brackets fastened to the apparatus.

o Two (2) crowbars:

e Two (2) claw'tools.

o Two,(2) 121, (5 kg) sledgehammers.

o One (#),SCBA complying with NFPA 1981 for each assigned seating position, but not fewer
than four (4), mounted in brackets fastened to the apparatus or stored in containers supplied by
the, SCBA manufacturer.

¢ 1 One (1) spare SCBA cylinder for each SCBA carried, each mounted in a bracket fastened to the
apparatus or stored in a specially designed storage space(s).

e One (1) first aid kit.

e Six (6) salvage covers, each a minimum size of 12 ft x 18 ft (3.6 m x 5.5 m).

e Four (4) combination spanner wrenches.

e Two (2) scoop shovels.

e One (1) pair of bolt cutters, 24" (0.6 m) minimum.

101 of 113



Four (4) ladder belts meeting the requirements of NFPA 1983.

One (1) 150 ft (45 m) light-use life safety rope meeting the requirements of NFPA 1983.

One (1) 150 ft (45 m) general-use life safety rope meeting the requirements of NFPA 1983.
Two (2) 150 ft (45 m) utility ropes having a breaking strength of at least 5000 Ib (2300 kg).

One (1) box of tools to include the following:

one (1) hacksaw with three (3) blades

one (1) keyhole saw

one (1) 12" (.3 m) pipe wrench

one (1) 24" (.6 m) pipe wrench

one (1) ballpeen hammer

one (1) pair of tin snips

one (1) pair of pliers

one (1) pair of lineman's pliers

assorted types and sizes of screwdrivers

assorted adjustable wrenches

assorted combination wrenches

One (1) traffic vest for each seating position, each vest to comply with ANSI/ISEA 207, Standard
for High Visibility Public Safety Vests, and have a five-peint breakaway feature that includes two
(2) at the shoulders, two (2) at the sides, and one'(l) at the front.

Five (5) fluorescent orange traffic cones notdess tham28.00" (711 mm) in height, each equipped
with a 6.00" (152 mm) retro-reflective white bamd nogmore than 4.00" (152 mm) from the top of
the cone, and an additional 4.00" (1024mm)_retro-feflective white band 2.00" (51 mm) below the
6.00" (152 mm) band.

Five (5) illuminated warning devi€es sueh as highway flares, unless the five (5) fluorescent
orange traffic cones have illuminating capabilities.

One (1) automatic externaldefibrillator (AED).

One (1) double female 2.50%@dapter with National Hose Threads (if equipped with a fire pump).
One (1) double male 2.50" adapter with National Hose Threads (if equipped with a fire pump).
One (1) rubber malletyfor use on suction hose connections (if equipped with a fire pump).

Two (2) hydrant wrenches (if equipped with a fire pump).

If the supplyahoSE carried does not use sexless couplings, an additional double female adapter
and double male adapter, sized to fit the supply hose carried, will be carried mounted in
brackets fastened to the apparatus (if equipped with a fire pump).

Iifnone of the"pump intakes are valved, a hose appliance that is equipped with one or more
gated intakes with female swivel connection(s) compatible with the supply hose used on one
sidesand a swivel connection with pump intake threads on the other side will be carried. Any
intake connection larger than 3.00" (75 mm) will include a pressure relief device that meets the
requirements of 16.6.6 (if equipped with a fire pump).

If the apparatus does not have a 2.50" National Hose (NH) intake, an adapter from 2.50" NH
female to a pump intake will be carried, mounted in a bracket fastened to the apparatus if not
already mounted directly to the intake (if equipped with a fire pump).

If the supply hose carried has other than 2.50" National Hose (NH) threads, adapters will be
carried to allow feeding the supply hose from a 2.50" NH thread male discharge and to allow the

O 00O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0oOOo

102 of 113



hose to connect to a 2.50" NH female intake, mounted in brackets fastened to the apparatus if
not already mounted directly to the discharge or intake (if equipped with a fire pump).

DRY CHEMICAL EXTINGUISHER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 8.9.3 requires one (1) approved dry chemical portable fire
extinguisher with a minimum 80-B:C rating mounted in a bracket fastened to the apparatus.

The extinguisher is not on the apparatus as manufactured. The fire department will provide and mount
the extinguisher.

WATER EXTINGUISHER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, section 8.9.3 requires one (1) 2.5 gallon or larger water extinguisher
mounted in a bracket fastened to the apparatus.

The extinguisher is not on the apparatus as manufactured. The fire department will' provide and mount
the extinguisher.

FLATHEAD AXE PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, Section 8.9.3 requires two (2) flathead axes mounted in brackets fastened to
the apparatus.

The axes are not on the apparatus as manufactureds The fire deépartment will provide and mount the
axes.

PICKHEAD AXES PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTFMENT
NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, Section 8.9.3 requires three (3) pickhead axes mounted in brackets fastened
to the apparatus.

The axes are not on the apparatus as manufactured. The fire department will provide and mount the
axes.

PAINT
The exterior custom cab and bedy painting procedure will consist of a seven (7) step finishing process
as follows:

1. Manual*Surface Preparation - All exposed metal surfaces on the custom cab and body will be
thoroughly‘eleaned and prepared for painting. Imperfections on the exterior surfaces will be
removed and sanded to a smooth finish. Exterior seams will be sealed before painting. Exterior
surfaces that will not be painted include; chrome plating, polished stainless steel, anodized
aluminum and bright aluminum treadplate.

2.¢Chemical Cleaning and Pretreatment - All surfaces will be chemically cleaned to remove dirt, oil,
grease, and metal oxides to ensure the subsequent coatings bond well. The aluminum surfaces
will be properly cleaned and treated using a high pressure, high temperature 4 step Acid Etch
process. The steel and stainless surfaces will be properly cleaned and treated using a high
temperature 3 step process specifically designed for steel or stainless. The chemical treatment
converts the metal surface to a passive condition to help prevent corrosion. A final pure water
rinse will be applied to all metal surfaces.

103 of 113



3. Surfacer Primer - The Surfacer Primer will be applied to a chemically treated metal surface to
provide a strong corrosion protective basecoat. A minimum thickness of 2 mils of Surfacer
Primer is applied to surfaces that require a Critical aesthetic finish. The Surfacer Primer is a
two-component high solids urethane that has excellent sanding properties and an extra smooth
finish when sanded.

4. FEinish Sanding - The Surfacer Primer will be sanded with a fine grit abrasive to achieve an ultra-
smooth finish. This sanding process is critical to produce the smooth mirror like finishiin the
topcoat.

5. Sealer Primer - The Sealer Primer is applied prior to the Basecoat in all areas that have not
been previously primed with the Surfacer Primer. The Sealer Primer is a twe-component high
solids urethane that goes on smooth and provides excellent gloss hold out when tepcoated.

6. Basecoat Paint - Two coats of a high performance, two component high'solids pelyurethane
basecoat will be applied. The Basecoat will be applied to a thickness‘that will achieve the
proper color match. The Basecoat will be used in conjunction with, a urethane clear coat to
provide protection from the environment.

7. Clear Coat - Two (2) coats of Clear Coat will be applied oventhe Basécoat color. The Clear
Coat is a two-component high solids urethane that provides superior gloss and durability to the
exterior surfaces. Lap style and roll-up doors will bes€lear Coated to match the body. Paint
warranty for the roll-up doors will be provided by<he roll-up door manufacture.

Each batch of basecoat color is checked for a propér match before painting of the cab and the body.
After the cab and body are painted, the color isxerified again to make sure that it matches the color
standard. Electronic color measuring equipment issused'to compare the color sample to the color
standard entered into the computer. Colomspecifications are used to determine the color match. A
Delta E reading is used to determine a good color match within each family color.

All removable items such as brackets, compartment doors, door hinges, and trim will be removed and
separately if required, to ensure_paint'behind all mounted items. Body assemblies that cannot be finish
painted after assembly will be finish, painted before assembly.

Pierce Manufacturing paint finishsguality levels for critical areas of the apparatus (cab front and sides,
body sides and doorsyand-heem lettering panels) meet or exceed the Cadillac/General Motors
GMW15777 global paintsequirements. Orange peel levels meet or exceed the #6 A.C.T.standard in
critical areas. These requirements are met in order for the exterior paint finish to be considered
acceptable. The Pierce Manufacturing written paint standards will be available upon request.

The cab'will'be two-tone, with the upper section painted #10 white along with a shield design on the
cab faee anddower section of the cab and body painted #90 red.

PAINT - ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Contractor will meet or exceed all current State regulations concerning paint operations. Pollution
control will include measures to protect the atmosphere, water and soil. Controls will include the
following conditions:

e Topcoats and primers will be chrome and lead free.

104 of 113



Metal treatment chemicals will be chrome free. The wastewater generated in the metal
treatment process will be treated on-site to remove any other heavy metals.

Particulate emission collection from sanding operations will have a 99.99% efficiency factor.
Particulate emissions from painting operations will be collected by a dry filter or water wash
process. If the dry filter is used, it will have an efficiency rating of 98.00%. Water wash systems
will be 99.97% efficient

Water from water wash booths will be reused. Solids will be removed on a continual Basisto
keep the water clean.

Paint wastes are disposed of in an environmentally safe manner.

Empty metal paint containers will be to recover the metal.

Solvents used in clean-up operations will be recycled on-site or sent off-site for distillation and
returned for reuse.

Additionally, the finished apparatus will not be manufactured with or comtain products that have ozone
depleting substances. Contractor will, upon demand, present evidence that the manufacturing facility
meets the above conditions and that it is in compliance with his State EPA riles and regulations.

PAINT CHASSIS FRAME ASSEMBLY

The chassis frame assembly will be finished with a singlefsystem black top coat before the installation
of the cab and body, and before installation of the engine ‘and transmission assembly, air brake lines,
electrical wire harnesses, etc.

Components that are included with the chassis frame assembly that will be painted are:

Frame rails

Frame liners

Cross members

Axles

Suspensions

Steering gear

Battery boxes

Bumper extiension weldment

Frame eXtengions

Body mounting angles

Reéar Body support substructure (front and rear)
Pump house substructure

Air tanks

Steel fuel tank

Castings

Individual piece parts used in chassis and body assembly

Components treated with epoxy E-coat protection prior to paint:

Two (2) C-channel frame rails
Two (2) frame liners

105 of 113



The E-coat process will meet the technical properties shown.

AXLE HUB PAINT
All axle hubs will be painted black #101.

COMPARTMENT INTERIOR PAINT
The interior of all compartments will be painted with a gray spatter finish for ease of cleaning ane,to
make it easier to touch up scratches and nicks.

AERIAL DEVICE PAINT COLOR
The aerial device paint procedure will consist of a seven (7) step finishing process,as, follows:

1. Manual Surface Preparation - All exposed metal surfaces on the aerial deyiee, structural components
above the rotation point will be thoroughly cleaned and mechanically shot-klasted to remove metal
impurities and prepare the aerial for painting.

2. Zinc Rich Primer - Zinc rich primer will be applied to the torque pbox and stabilizers.

3. Primer/Surfacer Coats - A two (2) component epoxy primer/surfacerwill be applied to the
mechanically shot-blasted metal surfaces to provide a stromg*eorrosion protective base coat and to
smooth out the surface. All seams will be caulked with aitwo (2) .component epoxy caulk before
painting.

4. Hand Sanding - The primer/surfacer coat ofdhe oUter surfaces of the hand rails and base rails will
be lightly sanded to a smooth finish.

5. Primer Coat - A two (2) component epoxy primer coat will be applied over the sanded primer.
6. Topcoat Paint - Urethane bases€oatwillee’applied to opacity for correct color matching.
7. Clear Coat - Two (2) coats®oftan automotive grade two (2) component urethane will be applied.

Surfaces that will not bepainted inglude all chrome plated, polished stainless steel, anodized aluminum
and bright aluminum readplate.

All buy out componenits, 'such as monitor, nozzle, gauges, etc. will be supplied as received from the
vendor.

Removable items such as brackets will be removed and painted separately to ensure paint coverage
behind alFmounted items.

The ‘aerialdevice components will be painted as follows using the aforementioned seven (7) step
finishing process:

o Aerial device ladder sections and extension cylinders: white 10
e Aerial turntable: white 10

e Aerial control console: white 10

e Aerial lift cylinders: white 10

e Aerial rotation motor (where applicable): white 10

106 of 113



o Aerial torque box, support structure and components below the rotation point:gloss black primer
e Aerial stabilizers: black 101

o Aerial egress (will be contrasting to the aerial ladder section color):#50 red

e Aerial boom support: gloss black primer

REFLECTIVE STRIPES

Three (3) reflective stripes will be provided across the front of the vehicle and along the sides of the
body. The reflective band will consist of a 1.00" white stripe at the top with a 1.00" gap then,a6.00"
white stripe with a 1.00" gap and a 1.00" white stripe on the bottom.

The reflective band provided on the cab face will be at the headlight level.

REAR CHEVRON STRIPING

There will be alternating chevron striping located on the rear-facing vertical'surface of the apparatus.
Covered surfaces will include the rear wall and aluminum doors. ReagCompartment doors, stainless
steel access doors, and the rear bumper will not be covered.

The colors will be red and fluorescent yellow green diamond grade.
Each stripe will be 6.00" in width.

This will meet the requirements of the current editiop’of NFPA 4901, which states that 50% of the rear
surface will be covered with chevron striping.

REFLECTIVE STRIPE ON STABILIZERS
There will be a 4.00" wide fluorescent yellowgreendiamond grade reflective stripe provided on the
forward and rear facing side of all aerial stabilizers.

CAB DOOR REFLECTIVE STRIPE
A 6.00" x 16.00" white reflectivesstripe will be provided across the interior of each cab door. The stripe
will be located approximately 1.00"up from the bottom, on the door panel.

This stripe will meet the NEPA™T901 requirement.

LETTERING
The lettering willbestotally encapsulated between two (2) layers of clear vinyl.

LETTERING
Forty-ones(#1) to sixty (60) genuine gold leaf lettering, 3.00" high, with outline and shade will be
provided.

FIREAPPARATUS PARTS CD MANUAL
There will be two (2) custom parts manuals for the complete fire apparatus provided in CD format with
the completed unit.

The manuals will contain the following:

e Job number

107 of 113



e Part numbers with full descriptions

e Table of contents

e Parts section sorted in functional groups reflecting a major system, component, or assembly
o Parts section sorted in alphabetical order

¢ Instructions on how to locate parts

The manuals will be specifically written for the chassis and body model being purchased. It will net be
a generic manual for a multitude of different chassis and bodies.

SERVICE PARTS INTERNET SITE

The service parts information included in these manuals are also available on theffactoryiwebsite. The
website offers additional functions and features not contained in this manual, such as digital
photographs and line drawings of select items. The website also features elegtronic search tools to
assist in locating parts quickly.

CHASSIS SERVICE MANUALS
There will be one (1) chassis service manuals on USB flash drives centaining parts and service
information on major components provided with the completed unit.

The manual will contain the following sections:

e Job number

e Table of contents

e Troubleshooting

e Front Axle/Suspension

e Brakes
e Engine
e Tires

e Wheels
e Cab

e Electrical, DC
e Air Systems
e Plumbing

e Appendix

The manual will be specifically written for the chassis model being purchased. It will not be a generic
manual for a multitude of different chassis and bodies.

CHASSIS OPERATION CD MANUALS
Therewill be two (2) CD format chassis operation manuals provided.

ONE (1) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP
A Pierce basic apparatus limited warranty certificate, WA0008, is included with this proposal.

108 of 113



ENGINE WARRANTY
A Cummins five (5) year limited engine warranty will be provided. A limited warranty certificate,
WAO0181, is included with this proposal.

STEERING GEAR WARRANTY
A Sheppard three (3) year limited steering gear warranty will be provided. A copy of the warranty
certificate will be submitted with the bid package.

FIETY (50) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY
The Pierce custom chassis frame limited warranty certificate, WA0013, is included withthis proposal.

FRONT AXLE THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY
The Pierce TAK-4 suspension limited warranty certificate, WA0050, is includgd with thisfproposal.

TDM REAR AXLE FIVE (5) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTEY
A Meritor™ Axle 5 year limited warranty will be provided.

ABS BRAKE SYSTEM THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY
A Meritor Wabco™ ABS brake system limited warranty certificate, WA0232, is included with this
proposal.

TEN (10) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY
The Pierce custom cab limited warranty certificate, WA0012, is included with this proposal.

TEN (10) YEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION
A Pierce cab limited pro-rated paint warrantyagertificate, WAO0O055, is included with this proposal.

FIVE (5) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP
The Pierce Command Zone electronics limited warranty certificate, WA0014, is included with this
proposal.

CAMERA SYSTEM WARRANTY
A Pierce fifty four (54)¢month warranty will be provided for the camera system.

COMPARTMENIFEIGHT. WARRANTY
The Pierce 12 welt DC LED strip lights limited warranty certificate, WA0203, is included with this
proposal.

TRANSMISSION WARRANTY
Thexransmission will have a five (5) year/unlimited mileage warranty covering 100 percent parts and
labor, Fhewarranty will be provided by Allison Transmission.

Note: The transmission cooler is not covered under any extended warranty you may be getting on your
Allison Transmission. Please review your Allison Transmission warranty for coverage limitations.

TRANSMISSION COOLER WARRANTY
The transmission cooler will carry a five (5) year parts and labor warranty (exclusive to the transmission
cooler). In addition, a collateral damage warranty will also be in effect for the first three (3) years of the

109 of 113



warranty coverage and will not exceed $10,000 per occurrence. A copy of the warranty certificate will
be submitted with the bid package.

TEN (10) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY
The Pierce apparatus body limited warranty certificate, WA0009, is included with this proposal.

ROLL UP DOOR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY

A Gortite roll-up door limited warranty will be provided. The mechanical components of the rall-up‘door
will be warranted against defects in material and workmanship for the lifetime of the vehiCle.\A'Six«(6)
year limited warranty will be provided on painted and satin roll up doors.

The limited warranty certificate, WA0190, is included with this proposal.

TWENTY (20) YEAR AERIAL DEVICE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY WARRANTY
The Pierce device limited warranty certificate, WA0052, is included with,this‘proposal.

AERIAL SWIVEL WARRANTY
An Amity five (5) year limited swivel warranty will be provided. A copy. of the warranty certificate will be
submitted with the bid package.

HYDRAULIC SYSTEM COMPONENTS WARRANTY
Aerial hydraulic system components will be providedswith afived5) year material and workmanship
limited warranty.

HYDRAULIC SEAL WARRANTY
Aerial hydraulic seals will be provided with*asthree (3) year material and workmanship limited warranty.

A copy of the warranty certificates will,beysubmitted with the bid package.

AERIAL WATERWAY WARRANTY
An Amity ten (10) year limite@ waterway warranty will be provided. A copy of the warranty certificate
will be submitted with the bid package.

FOUR (4) YEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION
A Pierce aerial device limited pro-rated paint warranty certificate, WA0047, is included with this
proposal.

SIX (6) YEAR GENERATOR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY
A Harrisongdydra-Gen limited warranty certificate, WA0285, is included with this proposal.

TENVW(IOWYEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION
A Pierce body limited pro-rated paint warranty certificate, WA0057, is included with this proposal.

THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP
The Pierce Goldstar gold leaf lamination limited warranty limited warranty certificate, WA0018, is
included with this proposal.

110 of 113



FIVE (5) YEAR EXTENDED
The Pierce aerial ladder body and device limited warranty certificate, WA0108, is included with this
proposal.

FIVE (5) YEAR EXTENDED
The Pierce custom chassis warranty certificate, WA0072, is included with this proposal.

VEHICLE STABILITY CERTIFICATION
The fire apparatus manufacturer will provide a certification stating the apparatus complies with NERA
1901, current edition, section 4.13, Vehicle Stability. The certification will be provided at the ftime of bid.

ENGINE INSTALLATION CERTIFICATION

The fire apparatus manufacturer will provide a certification, along with a letterfrom the engine
manufacturer stating they approve of the engine installation in the bidder's'¢hassis. Jhe certification
will be provided at the time of delivery.

POWER STEERING CERTIFICATION

The fire apparatus manufacturer will provide a certification stating the\power steering system as
installed meets the requirements of the component supplier.. The certification will be provided at the
time of bid.

CAB INTEGRITY CERTIFICATION
The fire apparatus manufacturer will provide a cab crash test certification with this proposal. The
certification states that the cab must meet or exceed,thegequirements below:

o European Occupant Protection Standard E€E Regulation No.29
e SAE J2422 Cab Roof Strength Evaluation - Quasi-Static Loading Heavy Trucks
e SAE J2420 COE Frontal Strength Ewvaluation - Dynamic Loading Heavy Trucks
e Roof Crush
0 The cab will be subjected to a roof crush force of 100,000 Ib. This value will be 450
percent of the\ECE 29 criteria, which must be equivalent to the front axle rating up to a
maximym of ten"(20) metric tons.
e Side Impact
o Jhe cab will be subjected to dynamic preload with a 13,275-Ib moving barrier is
slammed into the side of the cab at 5.50 mph, striking with an impact of 13,000 ft-Ib of
energy. This test will closely represent the forces a cab will see in a rollover incident.
e FroataMimpact
0 _dFhe cab will withstand a frontal force produced from 65,200 ft-Ib of energy using a
swing-bob type platen.

The same cab will withstand all tests without any measurable intrusion into the survival space of the
occupant area.

There will be no exception to any portion of the cab integrity certification. Nonconformance will lead to
immediate rejection of bid.

111 of 113



CAB DOOR DURABILITY CERTIFICATION

Robust cab doors help protect occupants. Cab doors will survive a 200,000 cycle door slam test where
the slamming force exceeds 20 G's of deceleration. The bidder will certify that the sample doors similar
to those provided on the apparatus have been tested and have met these criteria without structural
damage, latch malfunction, or significant component weatr.

WINDSHIELD WIPER DURABILITY CERTIFICATION

Visibility during inclement weather is essential to safe apparatus performance. Windshieldwipers will
survive a 3 million cycle durability test in accordance with section 6.2 of SAE J198 Windshield Wiper
Systems - Trucks, Buses and Multipurpose Vehicles. The bidder will certify that the wiper system
design has been tested and that the wiper system has met these criteria.

SEAT BELT ANCHOR STRENGTH

Seat belt attachment strength is regulated by Federal Motor Vehicle Safety ‘Standards and should be
validated through testing. Each seat belt anchor design will withstand¢3000 [, of ‘pull on both the lap
and shoulder belt in accordance with FMVSS 571.210 Seat Belt Assembly Anchorages. The bidder will
certify that each anchor design was pull tested to the required force ‘and met the appropriate criteria.

SEAT MOUNTING STRENGTH

Seat attachment strength is regulated by Federal Motor ¥ehicle'Safety Standards and should be
validated through testing. Each seat mounting design will be tested to withstand 20 G's of force in
accordance with FMVSS 571.207 Seating SystemS., Thie bidder will certify that each seat mount and
cab structure design was pull tested to the required foree.and met the appropriate criteria.

CAB DEFROSTER CERTIFICATION

Visibility during inclement weather is essential to safe apparatus performance. The defroster system
will clear the required windshield zomes imyaccardance with SAE J381 Windshield Defrosting Systems
Test Procedure And Performanceé Requirements - Trucks, Buses, And Multipurpose Vehicles. The
bidder will certify that the defrestisystem design has been tested in a cold chamber and passes the
SAE J381 criteria.

CAB HEATER CERTFICATION

Good cab heat performance and regulation provides a more effective working environment for
personnel, whether in-transit, or at a scene. The cab heaters will warm the cab 77 degrees Fahrenheit
from a cold-soak;w#ithin 30 minutes when tested using the coolant supply methods found in SAE J381.
The bidderwill certify that a substantially similar cab has been tested and has met these criteria.

AMP DRAW REPORT
Thebidder will provide, at the time of bid and delivery, an itemized print out of the expected amp draw
of the:€ntire vehicle's electrical system.

The manufacturer of the apparatus will provide the following:

o Documentation of the electrical system performance tests.
e A written load analysis, which will include the following:
0 The nameplate rating of the alternator.
0 The alternator rating under the conditions specified per:

112 of 113



= Applicable NFPA 1901 or 1906 (Current Edition).
0 The minimum continuous load of each component that is specified per:
= Applicable NFPA 1901 or 1906 (Current Edition).

o Additional loads that, when added to the minimum continuous load, determine the total
connected load.

o Each individual intermittent load.

All of the above listed items will be provided by the bidder per the applicable NFPA 1901 Q
(Current Edition). \

113 of 113



5 Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Twenty (20) Year Structural Integrity

Pierce Aerial Device

Limited Warnanty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

Each new Pierce Aerial Device shall be free from defects in
material and workmanship.
Coverage: Aerial Device Models Covered by this warranty include:
Aerial Platforms
Aerial Ladders
SkyBoom

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Twenty (20) Years
_or-
100,000 Miles

Warranty Period
Ends After:

This warranty applies only to the torque box, turntable, aerial
sections and other structural components of the aerial
device, as identified in the Pierce specifications for the aerial
device. This warranty shall be void if, or to the extent that the
aerial device is not maintained in strict compliance with

Conditions and NFPA Standard 1911 in effect at time of sale, including such

Exclusions: periodic inspections and testing by qualified third parties as
are required by that Standard as it may be in effect from time
See Also ) -
to time. Proof of such compliance shall accompany any
Paragraphs X . . . X
2 thru 4 claims under this warranty. Third party testing agencies

known to Pierce to be qualified for such purposes may be
obtained from the Pierce Customer Service Department

This warranty does not apply to damage caused by
corrosion.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

10/23/2013 WAO0052

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any
such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the
vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Ten (10) Year Structural Integrity

Custom Cab

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

The Pierce Custom Cab shall be free from structural failures

Coverage: caused by defects in material and workmanship

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Ten (10) Years
_or-
100,000 Miles

Warranty Period
Ends After:

Conditions and This warranty applies only to the cab tubular support and

Exclusions: mounting structures and other structural components of the
cab of the vehicle model, as identified in the Pierce

See Also specifications for the Fire and Rescue Apparatus.

Paragraphs

2thru 4 This warranty does not apply to damage caused by corrosion.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010  WAO0012

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

One (1) Year Material and Workmanship
Basic Apparatus

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

Portions of the apparatus manufactured by Pierce shall be

Coverage: K . .
9 free from defects in material and workmanship

The date the apparatus is placed in service, or 60 days from

Warranty Begins: the original buyer invoice date, whichever comes first.

Warranty Period

Ends After: Twelve (12) months.

Conditions and
Exclusions:
See Also No specific exclusions apply
Paragraphs
2thru 4

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010  WAO0008

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




NEW PRODUCT WARRANTY

A PARTICIPATING OEM SALES
'v) AlTl}n§S(S)l£% DISTRIBUTOR SALES

LIMITED WARRANTY ON NEW ALLISON AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSIONS
USED IN EMERGENCY VEHICLE APPLICATIONS

Allison Transmission will provide for repairs or replacement, at its option, during the warranty period of each new Allison transmission
listed below that is installed in an Emergency Vehicle in accordance with the following terms, conditions, and limitations.

WHAT IS COVERED

WARRANTY APPLIES — This warranty is for new Allison transmission models listed below installed in an Emergency Vehicle and
is provided to the original and any subsequent owner(s) of the vehicle during the warranty period.

REPAIRS COVERED — The warranty covers repairs or replacement, at Allison Transmission’s option, to correct any transmission
malfunction resulting from defects in material or workmanship occurring during the warranty period. Needed repairs or replacements
will be performed using the method Allison Transmission determines most appropriate under the circumstances.

TOWING — Towing is covered to the nearest Allison Transmission Distributor or authorized Dealer only when necessary to prevent
further damage to your transmission.

PAYMENT TERMS — Warranty repairs, including parts and labor, will be covered per the schedule shown in the chart contained in
section “APPLICABLE MODELS, WARRANTY LIMITATIONS, AND ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE.”

OBTAINING REPAIRS — To obtain warranty repairs, take the vehicle to any Allison Transmission Distributor or authorized Dealer
within a reasonable amount of time and request the needed repairs. A reasonable amount of time must be allowed for the Distributor or
Dealer to perform necessary repairs.

TRANSMISSION REMOVAL AND REINSTALLATION — Labor costs for the removal and re-installation of the transmission,
when necessary to make a warranty repair, are covered by this warranty.

WARRANTY PERIOD — The warranty period for all coverages shall begin on the date the transmission is delivered to the first retail
purchaser, with the following exception:
Demonstration Service - A transmission in a new truck or bus may be demonstrated to a total of 5000 miles (8000 kilometers).
If the vehicle is within this limit when sold to a retail purchaser, the warranty start date is the date of purchase. Normal warranty
services are applicable to the demonstrating Dealer. Should the truck or bus be sold to a retail purchaser after these limits are
reached, the warranty period will begin on the date the vehicle was first placed in demonstration service and the purchaser will be
entitled to the remaining warranty.

APPLICABLE MODELS, WARRANTY LIMITATIONS, AND ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE

WARRANTY LIMITATIONS ADJUSTMENT CHARGE TO BE
APPLICABLE (Whichever occurs first) PAID BY THE CUSTOMER

MODELS Transmission Miles
Months Or Kilometers Parts Labor

MT, MD
3000, 3200, 3500, 3700 0-24

HT with Hydraulic Controls 0-24 No Limit No Charge No Charge

AT, 1000 Series™, 2000 Series™,
2400 Series™

No Limit No Charge No Charge

0-36 No Limit No Charge No Charge

HT with Electronic Controls 0-60 No Limit No Charge No Charge

HD
1000 EVS, 2100 EVS, 2200 EVS
2350 EVS, 2500 EVS, 2550 EVS,
3000 EVS, 3500 EVS, 4000,
4000 EVS, 4500, 4500 EVS, 4700,
4700 EVS, 4800, 4800 EVS

No Limit No Charge No Charge

Page 1 of 2




WHAT IS NOT COVERED

DAMAGE DUE TO ACCIDENT, MISUSE, or ALTERATION — Defects and damage caused as the result of any of the following
are not covered:
— Flood, collision, fire, theft, freezing, vandalism, riot, explosion, or objects striking the vehicle;
Misuse of the vehicle;
Installation into unapproved applications and installations;
Alterations or modification of the transmission or the vehicle, and
Damage resulting from improper storage (refer to long-term storage procedure outlined in the applicable Allison Service Manual)
Anything other than defects in Allison Transmission material or workmanship

NOTE: This warranty is void on transmissions used in vehicles currently or previously titled as salvaged, scrapped, junked, or totaled.

CHASSIS, BODY, and COMPONENTS — The chassis and body company (assemblers) and other component and equipment manufacturers
are solely responsible for warranties on the chassis, body, component(s), and equipment they provide. Any transmission repair caused by an
alteration(s) made to the Allison transmission or the vehicle which allows the transmission to be installed or operated outside of the limits
defined in the appropriate Allison Installation Guideline is solely the responsibility of the entity making the alteration(s).

DAMAGE CAUSED by LACK of MAINTENANCE or by the USE of TRANSMISSION FLUIDS NOT RECOMMENDED in
the OPERATOR’S MANUAL — Defects and damage caused by any of the following are not covered:

— Failure to follow the recommendations of the maintenance schedule intervals applicable to the transmission;
— Failure to use transmission fluids or maintain transmission fluid levels recommended in the Operator’s Manual.

MAINTENANCE — Normal maintenance (such as replacement of filters, screens, and transmission fluid) is not covered and is the
owner’s responsibility.

REPAIRS by UNAUTHORIZED DEALERS — Defects and damage caused by a service outlet that is not an authorized Allison
Transmission Distributor or Dealer are not covered.

USE of OTHER THAN GENUINE ALLISON TRANSMISSION PARTS — Defects and damage caused by the use of parts that are
not genuine Allison Transmission parts are not covered.

EXTRA EXPENSES — Economic loss and extra expenses are not covered. Examples include but are not limited to: loss of vehicle
use; inconvenience; storage; payment for loss of time or pay; vehicle rental expense; lodging; meals; or other travel costs.

“DENIED PARTY” OWNERSHIP — Warranty repair parts and labor costs are not reimbursed to any participating or non-participating
OEMs, dealers or distributors who perform warranty work for, or on behalf of, end users identified by the United States as being a “denied
party” or who are citizens of sanctioned or embargoed countries as defined by the U.S. Department of Treasury Office of Foreign Assets

Control. Furthermore, warranty reimbursements are not guaranteed if the reimbursement would be contrary to any United States export control
laws or regulations as defined by the U.S. Department of Commerce, the U.S. Department of State, or the U.S. Department of Treasury.

OTHER TERMS APPLICABLE TO CONSUMERS AS DEFINED by the MAGNUSON-MOSS WARRANTY ACT

This warranty gives you specific legal rights and you may also have other rights which vary from state to state.

Allison Transmission does not authorize any person to create for it any other obligation or liability in connection with these transmissions.
ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE APPLICABLE TO
THESE TRANSMISSIONS IS LIMITED IN DURATION TO THE DURATION OF THIS WRITTEN WARRANTY.
PERFORMANCE OF REPAIRS AND NEEDED ADJUSTMENTS IS THE EXCLUSIVE REMEDY UNDER THIS WRITTEN
WARRANTY OR ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY. ALLISON TRANSMISSION SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOST WAGES OR VEHICLE RENTAL EXPENSES)
RESULTING FROM BREACH OF THIS WRITTEN WARRANTY OR ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY .**

** Some states do not allow limitations on how long an implied warranty will last or the exclusion or limitation of incidental or
consequential damages, so the above limitations or exclusions may not apply to you.

OTHER TERMS APPLICABLE TO OTHER END-USERS
THIS WARRANTY IS THE ONLY WARRANTY APPLICABLE TO THE ALLISON TRANSMISSION MODELS LISTED
ABOVE AND IS EXPRESSLY IN LIEU OF ANY OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY
IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. ALLISON
TRANSMISSION DOES NOT AUTHORIZE ANY PERSON TO CREATE FOR IT ANY OTHER OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY
IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH TRANSMISSIONS. ALLISON TRANSMISSION SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES RESULTING FROM BREACH OF THIS WARRANTY OR ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY.

QUESTIONS
If you have any questions regarding this warranty or the performance of warranty obligations, you may contact any Allison Transmission
Distributor or Dealer or write to:

Allison Transmission, Inc.

P.O. Box 894

Indianapolis, IN 46206-0894

Attention: Warranty Administration PF-9

Form SE0616EN (201009)
Page 2 of 2




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Five (5) Year Material and Workmanship

Command Zone Electronics

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

Command Zone control modules shall be free from failures

Coverage: caused by defects in material and workmanship

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period

Ends After: Five (5) Years

Conditions and This limited warranty applies to all of the control modules for

Exclusions: the Command Zone system, including the full color graphic

displays. Related wire harnesses, cables and connectors are
See Also not covered under this limited warranty and are instead
Paragraphs covered under the Pierce One Year Basic Apparatus Limited
2thru 4 Warranty.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010 WAO0014

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Three (3) Year Material and Workmanship
Goldstar® Gold Leaf Lamination

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

Each Goldstar® gold leaf lamination shall be free from

Coverage: . ] .
9 defects in material and workmanship.

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period

Ends After: Three (3) Years

Conditions and

Exclusions: This warranty does not cover damage from lack of
maintenance and cleaning (proper cleaning and maintenance

See Also procedures are detailed in the Pierce operation and

Paragraphs maintenance manual).

2thru 4

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/22/2010 WAO0018

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Five (5) Year Bumper to Bumper
Aerial Body and Device - Ladder

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

This limited warranty covers repairs to correct any defect
related to materials or workmanship occuring during the
warranty period.

Coverage:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Five (5) Years, or
50,000 Miles, or
7,500 Engine Hours

Warranty Period
Ends After:

This limited warranty does not apply to aspects of the
product that are covered by other Pierce or Supplier
warranties. See the applicable warranty for details of
coverage and exclusions. Such warranties may include, but
not be limited to, paint, corrosion, , frame, structure,

Conditi d . L )
onditions an electronics, pumps, piping, and Goldstar laminates. Where

Exclusions: . . ) e
conflicts exist, the coverage and exclusions of the specific
warranty shall apply. If the specific warranty is a pro-rated

See Also i .
warranty, the terms at the end of the pro-rated period will

Paragraphs -

2thru 4 apply for the remaining years of the bumper to bumper

coverage.

This warranty does not cover normal wear to any parts or
components including but not limited to: filters, lubricants,
light bulbs, slide pads, sheaves, and cables.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010 WAO0108

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




5 Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Three (3) Year Material and Workmanship

TAK-4 Independent Front Suspension

Limited Warnanty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

The TAK-4 Front Independent Suspension and Steering
Gears shall be free from defects in material and
workmanship.

Coverage:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Three (3) Years
-or-
30,000 Miles

Warranty Period
Ends After:

Conditions and

Exclusions:
This limited warranty excludes brake pads, brake rotors, seal
See Also boots and shock absorbers.
Paragraphs
2thru 4

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

12/16/2013 WAO0050

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any
such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the
vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Ten (10) Year Pro-Rated Paint and Corrosion
Cab

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

Exterior surfaces of the cab painted by Pierce shall be free
from blistering, peeling, corrosion or any other adhesion
defect caused by defective manufacturing methods or paint
material selection.

Coverage:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period

Ends After: Ten (10) Years

This limited warranty is applicable to the vehicle in the
following percentage costs of warranty repair, if any:

Topcoat Durability & Appearance: Gloss, Color Retention &
Cracking

0-72 months 100%

73-96 months 50%

97-120 months 25%

Integrity of Coating System: Adhesion, Blistering/Bubbling
0-36 months 100%

37-84 months 50%

85-120 months 25%

Conditions and . I .
Corrosion: Dissimilar Metal and Crevice

Exclusions: 0-36 months 100%
See Also 37-48 months 50%
Paragraphs 49-72 months 25%

73-120 months 10%
2thru 4

Corrosion Perforation
0-120 months 100%

This limited warranty applies only to exterior paint. Paint on
the vehicle's interior is warranted only under the Pierce Basic
One Year Limited Warranty.

Items not covered by this warranty include:

(a) Damage from lack of maintenance and cleaning (proper
cleaning and maintenance procedures are detailed in the
Pierce operation and maintenance manual).

(b) UV paint fade.

(c) Any cab not manufactured by Pierce.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010  WAO0055

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Ten (10) Year Pro-Rated Paint and Corrosion

Custom Body

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

Exterior surfaces of the body shall be free from blistering,
peeling, corrosion or any other adhesion defect caused by
defective manufacturing methods or paint material selection.

Coverage:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period

Ends After: Ten (10) Years

This limited warranty is applicable to the vehicle in the
following percentage costs of warranty repair, if any:

Topcoat Durability & Appearance: Gloss, Color Retention &
Cracking

0-72 months 100%

73-96 months 50%

97-120 months 25%

Integrity of Coating System: Adhesion, Blistering/Bubbling
0-36 months 100%

37-84 months 50%

85-120 months 25%

Conditions and . I .
Corrosion: Dissimilar Metal and Crevice

Exclusions: 0-36 months 100%
See Also 37-48 months 50%
Paragraphs 49-72 months 25%

73-120 months 10%
2thru 4

Corrosion Perforation
0-120 months 100%

This limited warranty applies only to exterior paint. Paint on
the vehicle's interior is warranted only under the Pierce Basic
One Year Limited Warranty.

Items not covered by this warranty include:

(a) Damage from lack of maintenance and cleaning (proper
cleaning and maintenance procedures are detailed in the
Pierce operation and maintenance manual).

(b) UV paint fade.

(c) Any cab not manufactured by Pierce.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010  WAO0057

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Four (4) Year Pro-Rated Paint and Corrosion

Aerial Device

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

Aerial device shall be free from blistering, peeling, corrosion
or any other adhesion defect caused by defective
manufacturing methods or paint material selection for
exterior surfaces.

Coverage:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period

Ends After: Four (4) Years

This limited warranty is applicable to the vehicle in the
following percentage costs of warranty repair, if any:

Topcoat Durability & Appearance: Gloss, Color Retention &
Cracking

0-24 months 100%

25-48 months 50%

Integrity of Coating System: Adhesion, Blistering/Bubbling
0-24 months 100%
25-48 months 50%
Conditions and

Exclusions: Corrosion: Dissimilar Metal and Crevice
0-24 months 100%

See Also 25-48 months 50%

Paragraphs

2thru 4 Corrosion Perforation

0-24 months 100%
25-48 months 50%

This limited warranty applies only to exterior paint.

Items not covered by this warranty include:

(a) Damage from lack of maintenance and cleaning (proper
cleaning and maintenance procedures are detailed in the
Pierce operation and maintenance manual).

(b) UV paint fade.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010  WAO0047

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Lifetime Fifty (50) Year Structural Integrity
Custom Chassis Frame

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

Custom chassis frame rail manufactured by Pierce shall be

Coverage: . . .
9 free from defects in material and workmanship

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period
Ends After:

Fifty (50) Years
(Expected Life of Apparatus)

Conditions and
Exclusions:
See Also This warranty does not apply to damage caused by corrosion.
Paragraphs
2thru 4

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010 WAO0013

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Ten (10) Year Structural Integrity

Apparatus Body

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

The apparatus body shall be free from structural failures

Coverage: caused by defects in material and workmanship

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Ten (10) Years
_or-
100,000 Miles

Warranty Period
Ends After:

Conditions and This warranty applies only to the body tubular support and

Exclusions: mounting structures and other structural components of the
body of the vehicle model, as identified in the Pierce

See Also specifications for the Fire and Rescue Apparatus.

Paragraphs

2thru 4 This warranty does not apply to damage caused by corrosion.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010  WAO0009

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Five (5) Year Bumper to Bumper

Pierce Custom Chassis - Class H

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

This limited warranty covers repairs to correct any defect
related to materials or workmanship occuring during the
warranty period.

Coverage:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Five (5) Years, or
50,000 Miles, or
7,500 Engine Hours

Warranty Period
Ends After:

This general limited warranty does not apply to aspects of the
product that are covered by specific Pierce or Supplier
warranties. See the applicable specific warranty for details of
coverage and exclusions. Specific warranties may include,

Conditions and . : .
but not be limited to, paint, corrosion, frame, structure,

Exclusions: electronics, pumps, piping, and Goldstar laminates. Where
conflicts exist, the coverage and exclusions of the specific

See Also warranty shall apply

Paragraphs ’

2thru 4

This warranty does not cover normal wear to any parts or
components including but not limited to: tires, brake pads or
shoes, belts, filters, lubricants, light bulbs, fuses, and
batteries.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/8/2010  WAO0072

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




Hlarrison

HYDRA-GEN

MANUFACTURER’S LIMITED WARRANTY - HYDRAULIC GENERATORS
FIRE & EMERGENCY VOCATION

Harrison Hydra-Gen® (Seller) extends to the original purchaser (Buyer) of goods for use
(whether it be an OEM, dealer, re-seller, or end-user) the following warranty covering the
Harrison Hydra-Gen® Generator System, subject to the qualifications indicated. Harrison
Hydra-Gen® Generator Systems shall consist of a Harrison generator tray assembly and its’
components, a Harrison hydraulic pump assembly, and a Harrison supplied meter assembly;
unless otherwise specified in below guidelines.

Harrison Hydra-Gen® warrants the original purchaser that the Generator System
manufactured or supplied by Harrison Hydra-Gen® will be free from defects in materials and
workmanship, provided such goods are:
1. Installed, operated and maintained in accordance with the Harrison Hydra-Gen®
owner’s manual, and/or written installation addendumes.
2. Each new application has been reviewed and approved by the Harrison Hydra-Gen®
Application Engineering Group.

PERIOD OF WARRANTY

*Six (6) years or 1000 hours of usage, whichever
comes first, from the date the product is shipped from
Harrison to the Installer.

*The END USER must complete and return to Harrison Hydra-Gen® the Harrison Hydra-
Gen® Warranty Registration Card, Form WR-1, provided in the generator manual and
provided online @ www.harrisonhydragen.com, within 45 days of delivery.

Warranty includes all parts and labor. In addition, maintenance items that are contaminated
or damaged by a proven warrantable failure are covered in years 1-2, and Labor time up to 4
hours, travel time up to 2.5 hours, and mileage up to 100 miles for warranty related repairs are
covered in years 1-2.

Repair or replacement parts are warranted for ninety (90) days from date of purchase,
excluding labor and travel expenses. Any part repaired or replaced during the warranty period
assumes the remainder of the warranty or ninety (90) days, whichever is greater.

Only components supplied by Harrison Hydra-Gen® are covered under this warranty.

| 14233 West Road | Houston TX 77041 | Tel 281.807.4420 | Fax 281.807.4815 | www.harrisonhydragen.com |



Hlarrison

HYDRA-GEN

There is no other express warranty. Implied warranties, including merchantability and fithess
for a particular purpose, are limited to periods set forth above and to the extent permitted by

law. Any and all implied warranties are excluded. In no event is Harrison Hydra-Gen® liable
for incidental or consequential damages.

The Buyer (OEM, dealer, re-seller, or end-user) must notify Harrison Hydra-Gen®, an
Authorized Distributor, or a designated Harrison Hydra-Gen® Service Representative, in
writing, within thirty (30) calendar days after goods or parts failed to meet this warranty.

The sole liability of Harrison Hydra-Gen® and the Buyer’s sole remedy for a failure of goods
under this warranty and for any and all other claims arising out of the purchase and use of the
goods, including negligence on the part of the manufacturer, shall be limited to the repair or
replacement of the product, at the option of Harrison Hydra-Gen®, of the parts that do not
conform to this warranty, provided that the product or parts are returned to the Harrison Hydra-
Gen® manufacturing facility.

A Returned Goods Authorization (RGA) is required for all products and parts being returned,
and may be requested by phone, fax, email, or mail.

Failure to make timely delivery to Harrison Hydra-Gen® of the goods claimed to be defective
shall void any warranty.

Unless previous written agreements have been made between the Buyer and Harrison Hydra-
Gen®, the Buyer shall be responsible for all freight and shipping charges in connection with
the delivery of the goods claimed to be defective, to Harrison Hydra-Gen® at its manufacturing
facility, and the return of repaired or replacement goods to the Buyer.

If Harrison Hydra-Gen® determines that no warranty coverage is available for goods claimed
to be defective, whether determination is based on the warranty being voided, the product
failure being due to a cause not covered by the warranty, the failure to make a timely and
proper warranty claim, or otherwise, the Buyer shall have the option of either:

1. Having the goods not repaired and returned to the Buyer, freight collect.

2. Having the goods repaired, If Harrison Hydra-Gen® determines that the product is
repairable, and returned to the Buyer, freight collect. The Buyer will be responsible for
all costs associated with the repair and testing of the goods and shall authorize Harrison
Hydra-Gen®, in writing, to have the goods repaired and tested by Harrison Hydra-
Gen®.

The owner is obligated to operate and maintain the goods in accordance with the
recommendations published by Harrison Hydra-Gen® in the owner’s manual. The owner is

| 14233 West Road | Houston TX 77041 | Tel 281.807.4420 | Fax 281.807.4815 | www.harrisonhydragen.com |



Hlarrison

HYDRA-GEN

responsible for the costs associated with such maintenance and any adjustments that may be
required.

This warranty shall not apply to:

1. Damages or defects caused by normal wear, accident, misuse, abuse, abnormal
operating conditions, negligence, corrosion, accident causes, or attributable to written
specifications or instructions furnished by the installer.

2. Damages or defects caused by improper maintenance in accordance with the Harrison
Hydra-Gen® product manuals and operating guidelines.

3. Damages caused by operator error.

4. Damages or defects caused by improper installation.

5. Damages or defects caused by inadequate water drainage provided by the installer in
the area where the generator is installed or stored.

6. Damages or defects caused by inadequate air flow space or ventilation provided by the
installer in the area where the generator is installed.

7. Any product or part altered or modified by the installer or service facility without written
prior consent by Harrison Hydra-Gen®.

8. Cost of normal maintenance, adjustments, installation or start-up.

9. Normal wear items and components needing periodic maintenance such a rubber hoses
and filters.

10.Excessive labor due to components being concealed in vehicle as a result of
installation.

11.Water, road debris, excessive dirt, salt, abrasive particles, or large foreign objects found
in the generator.

12. Telephone or other communications expense.

13.Paint, hydraulic fluid, and interconnecting hoses (internal or external to system
assemblies).

This warranty gives you specific legal rights, and you may also have other rights that may vary
from state to state or province to province.

No person is authorized to give any other warranties or to assume any other liabilities behalf of
Harrison Hydra-Gen®, unless made or assumed in writing by an officer of Harrison Hydra-
Gen®.

Contact Harrison Hydra-Gen® for questions regarding your warranty rights and responsibilities
at (281) 807-4420; or visit our website at www.harrisonhydragen.com.

NOTE: Please refer to the MANUFACTURER’S LIMITED WARRANTY; IHT SYSTEMS for
warranty guidelines specific to the IHT system.

| 14233 West Road | Houston TX 77041 | Tel 281.807.4420 | Fax 281.807.4815 | www.harrisonhydragen.com |



» Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Ten (10) Year Material and Workmanship
Pierce 12V LED Strip Light

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

This limited warranty covers repairs to correct any defect
related to materials or workmanship of the Pierce 12V LED
strip lights installed on the apparatus occuring during the
warranty period.

Coverage:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period

Ends After: Ten (10) Year

Conditions and

Exclusions: This limited warranty does not apply to related wire
harnesses, cables, and connectors, which are covered by the

See Also Pierce one (1) year basic apparatus limited warranty

Paragraphs :

2thru 4

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

7/5/2011  WAO0203

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




3 Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Three (3) Year Material and Workmanship
Meritor Wabco ABS Brake System

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

The Meritor Wabco ABS brake system shall be covered by
Meritor Wabco as indicated in the attached Meritor Wabco
warranty coverage description

Coverage:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period

Ends After: Three (3) Year

Conditions and

Exclusions:
The exclusions listed in the attached Meritor Wabco warranty
See Also description shall apply.
Paragraphs
2thru4

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/25/2013 WAO0232

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any
such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the
vehicle.




MERITOR WABCO

Safety Strong. Efficiency Smart.

Warranty
Model Year 2018 Vehicles



SIMPLER IS BETTER

Warranty coverage is essential to protecting your investment. But understanding the
full details of your coverage can be challenging. This straightforward approach allows
you, our valued customer, to better understand how your specific vehicle applications
will be covered in your region. Our component warranty coverage is provided
according to vocation/usage categories listed below.

e Linehaul covers high mileage operation (over 60,000 miles/year) on well
maintained major highways of concrete or asphalt construction.

* General Service covers moderate mileage operations (less than 60,000 miles/year) on
well maintained public roads (less than 10 percent off-road) typically with less than
three (3) stops per mile.

* Heavy Service (Vocational) covers vehicles with more than 10 percent off-road OR
moderate to frequent starts/stops typically with more than three (3) stops per mile.

» Off-Highway Service covers lower mileage operations. Vehicles are not typically
licensed for highway use.



CONTENTS

LiINENAUI SEIVICE ...t
GENEIAl SEIVICE...ovitiiieee e ettt e e e e e e e e eet b eaeeeeeeeeeseassaaaeeeeeeeseeenes
HEAVY SEIVICE ..ttt e e e e et e e et e e e e e e e e eaa e e eeaan
Industrial/Off-HighWay SEIVICE .......uvvveeiiiiieieeiiieeeeeceeeeeee e
Terms and CONAITIONS ...vvuuuieieiieeeeeeeceee e e e e e e er e e e e e e

How to Read Warranty Coverage (Example)

Mileage (in thousands) P=Parts Only

Number of Years

Unl=Unlimited P&L=Parts & Labor
3 300 P




HEAVY SERVICE (VOCATIONAL) WARRANTY INFORMATION

Heavy Service Vehicles

e Airport Rescue Fire (ARF)

e Airport Shuttle

e Asphalt Truck

e Block Truck

e Bottom Dump Trailer
Combination

e Cementing Vehicle

e City Bus

e Commercial Pick-Up

e Concrete Pumper

e Construction Material Hauler

e Crash Fire Rescue (CFR)

* Mixer

e Demolition

e Drill Rig

e Dump

* Emergency Service

e Equipment Hauling

e Flatbed Trailer Hauler

e Flatbed Truck

e Fracturing Truck

* Front Loader

e Geophysical Exploration

* Hopper Trailer Combinations

e Landscaping Truck

e Liquid Waste Hauler

 Log Hauling

e Lowboy

e Michigan Special Gravel
Trains

e Michigan Special Log Hauler

e Michigan Special Steel Hauler

e Michigan Special Waste
Vehicle

Heavy Service Typically Is

» On/Off road vocations (10% or more off-road) OR
* Moderate to frequent starts/stops typically more than

three (3) stops per mile

Meritor WABCO Components?

ABS (Anti-Lock Braking System) Air

ABS (Anti-Lock Braking System) Hydraulic

Electronic Braking System (EBS)
Electronic Stability Control (ESC)
Roll Stability Control (RSC)

Air Dryers (ALL)

Leveling Valves

Air Brake Valves

Emission Valves (SCR)

Clutch Controls

Air Compressors (ALL)?
OnGuard™

OnGuardACTIVE™

OnlLane™ Lane Departure Warning
Blind Spot Detection

OptiRide™

Trailer Roll Stability Support (RSS)
Trailer Control Line Filter®

Trailer ABS Valve®

3/300/P&L
2/200/P&L
3/300/P&L
3/300/P&L
3/300/P&L
1/100/P&L
1/100/P&L
1/100/P&L
2/200/P&L
2/200/P&L
1/100/P&L
3/300/P&L
3/300/P&L
3/300/P&L
3/300/P&L
2/200/P&L
3/300/P&L
1/100/P&L
3/300/P&L

t WABCO and Meritor WABCO branded components.

2 WABCO compressors installed on Cummins, Mercedes, and DDC engines
are not warranted or serviced by Meritor WABCO. Please contact
your respective dealer/distributor of those engines for warranty

and servicing.

3 An extended warranty of 4/400/P will be applied when a Meritor
WABCO Trailer Control Line Filter is used in combination with a Meritor

WABCO Trailer ABS valve.

e Municipal Dump

* Newspaper Delivery

e Package Delivery

e Pick-up and Delivery

* Rapid Intervention Vehicle
(RIV)

e Rear Loader

* Recycling Truck

* Residential Pick-Up/Waste

e Rigging Truck

* Roll-Off

e Scrap Truck

e Semi-End Dump

* Sewer/Septic Vacuum

e Shuttle Bus

e Side Loader

¢ Snowplow/Snowblower

e Steel Hauling

e Tanker

e Tank Truck

* Tractors with Pole Trailers
e Tractor/Trailer with Jeeps
e Transfer Dump

* Transfer Vehicle

e Transit Bus

e Trolley

e Utility Truck

e Winch Truck

Effective Model Year 2018 Vehicles 5



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Coverage Exclusions
Product Description

All

The cost of any repairs, replacements or adjustments

to a covered product due to the following: (1) damage to
the product or its component parts caused by incorrect use,
installation, maintenance or repair, including without
limitation (a) improper fit of mating components or
brackets, (b) damaged threads, (c) cut, broken, chafed,
pinched or otherwise damaged wiring (sensors, harnesses
and connectors), (d) damaged sensors from removal when
seized in block, or associated with sensor adjustments/
alignments, and (e) damage resulting from the use or
installation of non-genuine Meritor WABCO components or
materials; (2) damage to the product, its component parts,
or diminished product or component part performance due
to incorrect operation, deviation from approved conditions
or misapplication; (3) any unauthorized disassembly of the
product or its component parts including without limitation
(a) obliterated, defaced or missing WABCO or Meritor
WABCO name plate, serial numbers or label identifying the
device as a Meritor WABCO product or WABCO component,
(b) changes to sealed adjusting screws, and (c) opening or
attempted repair of non-serviceable components;

(4) malfunction of the component due to internal
contamination out of the vehicle system including without
limitation (a) water and other contamination damage that
is due to the use of a non-genuine air dryer cartridge or

(b) valve failures due to contamination in air system, (5)
complaints associated with noise, (6) damage resulting
from corrosion (including oxidation of electrical devices

and connections).

Air Dryers

Mounting brackets (see vehicle OEM). Desiccant
cartridge housing only.

Air System Components

Normal wear items; Gladhand seals, dash valve knobs, valve
actuation handles, treadles, pedals.

ABS, Electronic Stability Control (ESC), Roll Stability
Control (RSC), OptiRide™, OnGuard™ and OnLane™,
collectively “Electronics”

Failure of electronic components due to overvoltage
condition, improper grounding, electrostatic discharge
(ESD), improper shielding, electromagnetic interference
(EMI), or other wiring or installation issues.

Malfunctions and failure codes caused by other electronic
subsystem failures (data bus, engine, transmission,
dashboard, etc.)

Hydraulic Components

For certain components, brake fluid DOT3 or DOT4 is used
as the operating medium. Use of any other fluid will void
all warranties associated with that component. For
hydraulic braking applications the brake fluid is considered
a maintenance item. Maintenance intervals are listed

in TB-1367.

Coverage Limitations
Product Description

All
Any claim beyond 60 days from date of repair will not be
accepted or honored under this warranty program.

Products purchased on an incomplete vehicle (glider) are
limited to one year, 1/Unl/P.

For vehicles that operate full- or part-time outside of the
United States and Canada, a 1-Year/Unlimited Miles parts
only (1/Unl/P) will apply.

TOOLBOX™ Software

Proper diagnostics of Meritor WABCO Electronics may
require the latest version of TOOLBOX™. Additional labor
due to use of an outdated version of TOOLBOX™. TOOLBOX™
software, and/or the time to purchase or install latest version
of TOOLBOX™ are not covered under product warranty.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

What is Covered by this Commercial Warranty?

Meritor WABCO Vehicle Control Systems warrants to the owner
(“Owner”) that the components listed in this publication, which
have been installed by an Original Equipment Manufacturer
(“OEM”) as original equipment will be free from defects in material
and workmanship. This warranty coverage begins from the original
in-service date to the limits provided and runs concurrently with
any warranties provided by OEMs and/or any service contracts
that cover the components listed in this publication, if any. If

the components listed in this publication are covered by an OEM
warranty and/or service contract, then the OEM’s warranty and/
or service contract shall supersede Meritor WABCO’s warranty and
Owner shall comply with all OEM’s warranty and/or service contract
requirements for claims under such OEM’s warranty and/or service
contract until those agreements expire. Once those agreements
expire and provided the Meritor WABCO warranty has not expired
under the terms stated above, the Meritor WABCO warranty would
be in effect until its expiration date.

Warranty coverage ends at the expiration of the applicable time
period from the date of vehicle purchase by the first Owner, or, the
applicable mileage limitation, whichever occurs first. Duration of
coverage varies by component and vocation as detailed previously
in this publication. Some components are warranted for parts

only and the Owner must pay any labor costs associated with the
repair or replacement of the component. Other components are
warranted for both parts and reasonable labor to repair or replace
the subject component. Additional diagnostic time due to use of
an outdated version of TOOLBOX™, time to purchase or install
latest version of TOOLBOX™ are the responsibility of the authorized
Meritor WABCO service location and are not covered under product
warranty. Components installed as replacements under this
warranty are warranted only for the remainder of the original
period of time or mileage under the original warranty.

Designation of Vocational Use Required.

To obtain warranty coverage, each Owner must notify Meritor
WABCO through the OEM new truck and/or trailer dealer of the
intended vocational use of the vehicle into which the Meritor WABCO
components have been incorporated prior to the vehicle in-service
date. This notification may be accomplished by registering the
vehicle through your OEM new truck and/or trailer dealer or with
Meritor WABCO directly. Failure to notify Meritor WABCO of (I) the
intended vocational use of the vehicle or (Il) a change in vocational
use from that which was originally designated, will result in the
application of a one year, unlimited mileage, parts only warranty
(1/Unl/P) from the initial in-service date.

A second Owner and each subsequent Owner must also notify
Meritor WABCO as to the intended vocational use of the vehicle.
This notification can be sent directly to Meritor WABCO or through
the OEM new truck and/or trailer dealer. The duration and mileage
coverage of this warranty cannot exceed the coverage extended to
the first Owner after his or her initial designation of vocational use.

Coverage under Meritor WABCQ'’s warranty requires that the
application of products be properly approved pursuant to OEM
and Meritor WABCO, approvals.

What is the Cost of this Warranty?
There is no charge to the Owner for this warranty.

What is not Covered by this Warranty?

In addition to the items listed on page 7, this warranty does not
cover normal wear and tear, or service items; nor does it cover a
component that fails, malfunctions or is damaged as a result of

(5)

(6)

7

(8)

(9)

(10)

(a) improper handling, storage, installation, adjustment, repair

or modification including the use of unauthorized attachments

or changes or modification in the vehicle’s configuration, usage,
or vocation from that which was originally approved by Meritor
WABCO, (b) accident, fire or other casualty, natural disaster, road
debris, negligence, misuse, abuse, or improper use (including
loading beyond the specified maximum vehicle weight or altering
engine power settings to exceed the brake system capacity), or (c)
improper or insufficient maintenance (including deviation from
maintenance intervals, approved lubricants, or lube levels). This
warranty does not cover any component or part that is not sold by
Meritor WABCO.

Remedy.

The exclusive remedy under this warranty shall be the repair or
replacement of the defective component at Meritor WABCO's
option. Meritor WABCO reserves the right to require that all
applicable covered components are available and/or returned to
Meritor WABCO for review and evaluation.

DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY.

THIS WARRANTY IS EXPRESSLY IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES
OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY INCLUDING
ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. SOME STATES LIMIT OR DO NOT ALLOW THE
DISCLAIMER OF IMPLIED OR OTHER WARRANTIES, SO THE ABOVE
LIMITATION OR EXCLUSION MAY NOT APPLY TO THE EXTENT SUCH
STATE’S LAW IS APPLICABLE TO THESE TERMS.

LIMITATION OF REMEDIES.

IN NO EVENT SHALL MERITOR WABCO BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, INCI-
DENTAL, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND OR
UNDER ANY LEGAL THEORY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, TOW-
ING, DOWNTIME, LOST PRODUCTIVITY, CARGO DAMAGE, TAXES, LOST
PROFITS, COSTS OF PROCUREMENT OF A SUBSTITUTE COMPONENT
OR ANY OTHER LOSSES OR COSTS RESULTING FROM A COVERED
COMPONENT. SOME STATES DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OR
LIMITATION OF SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES, SO THE ABOVE LIMITATION OR EXCLUSION MAY NOT
APPLY TO THE EXTENT SUCH STATE’S LAW IS APPLICABLE TO THESE
TERMS.

TIME LIMIT ON COMMENCING LEGAL ACTION.

ANY LEGAL ACTION OR CLAIM ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THIS
WARRANTY, IN CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE, MUST BE COMMENCED
WITHIN ONE YEAR FROM THE ACCRUAL OF THAT CAUSE OF ACTION,
OR BE BARRED FOREVER.

To Obtain Service.

If the Owner discovers within the applicable coverage period a
defect in material or workmanship, the Owner must promptly give
notice to either Meritor WABCO or the dealer from which the
vehicle was purchased. To obtain service, the vehicle must be
taken to any participating OEM new truck and/or trailer dealer or
authorized Meritor WABCO service location. The dealer will inspect
the vehicle and contact Meritor WABCO for an evaluation of the
claim. When authorized by Meritor WABCO, the dealer will repair
or replace during the term of this warranty any defective Meritor
WABCO component covered by this warranty.

Entire Agreement.

This is the entire agreement between Meritor WABCO and the
Owner about warranty and no Meritor, Meritor WABCO employee,
or dealer is authorized to make any additional warranty on behalf
of Meritor WABCO unless in writing and signed by an authorized
representative of Meritor WABCO.



Litho in USA. Revised 06/17.

SP-1375 (47865/11900)

Meritor WABCO Vehicle Control Systems

2135 West Maple Road, Troy, Michigan 48084, USA
Phone: 866-ONTRAC1 (866-668-7221) Fax: 248-435-8002

For more information on

Meritor WABCO Warranty, call
our OnTrac Customer Service team
at 866-OnTracl (866-668-7221)

or visit meritorwabco.com.

meritorwabco.com

©2017 Meritor WABCO Vehicle Control Systems
Meritor WABCO Vehicle Control Systems is a
joint venture of Meritor™ and WABCO



R. H. SHEPPARD CO., IRC.
101 Philadelphia St.
Hanover, PA 17331

Pierce Manufacturing Inc.
2600 American Drive
Appleton, W1 54912

LIMITED WARRANTY: The R. H. Sheppard Co. Inc., (“Sheppard™) warrants all M110PKG! and
M110SAUT steering gears manufactured and sold to Pierce Manufacturing Inc. (“Pierce”) for
application on Pierce TAK-4 equipped vehicles to be free from defects of workmanship and material
under normal use and service for a period of thirty six months from the in service date of the vehicle
to its original owner.

Vehicle applications where Sheppard product is used require an application approval before
production build. If Pierce uses Sheppard product for any purpose or application which has not been
approved by Sheppard in advance, including aftermarket devices (defined as a device added to the
steering system directly or indirectly affecting the performance or operation of the Sheppard product
in its approved application) not tested and approved by Sheppard this limited warranty SHALL NOT
APPLY AND SHALL BE VOID. SHEPPARD MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY, EITHER
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. SHEPPARD EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE WHICH
EXTEND BEYOND THE DESCRIPTION ON THE FACE HEREOF.

SHEPPARD SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL OR
INDIRECT DAMAGES OR FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY
ARISING FROM THE USE OF A PRODUCT. Pierce expressly acknowledges its obligation to
inform all users (customers) of the above disclaimer.

CONDITIONS: Claims under this Limited Warranty may only be made by Pierce. In no event shall
Sheppard be held liable for warranty charges by unauthorized persons. No allowance will be made
for repairs or alterations, unless made with the written consent of Sheppard. Authorized Pierce
dealers shall be the only authorized repair facility for Sheppard products applied to Pierce vehicles.
Any warrantable repair made under this Limited Warranty must be made on or before 36 months of
the in-service date for the Product to which the claim relates. Sheppard shall not be liable for claims
made after such date. Sheppard product fitted to Pierce vehicles that are repaired at a repair facility
other than an authorized Pierce dealer within the warranty period will be considered for payment
under the guidelines of this agreement only by joint written consideration of Sheppard and Pierce
warranty departments. It shall be the responsibility of the Pierce warranty department to notify
Sheppard if and when this situation occurs. Sheppard will not be held responsible for damage to other
steering components such as but not limited to pumps and reservoirs due to improper adjustment of
steering gear relief plungers. Vehicle downtime and towing will not be considered under warranty.

REMEDIES: The sole and exclusive remedy of Pierce for Sheppard’s breach of the foregoing
warranty is limited to the return and repair or reimbursement as follows:



R. H. SHEPPARD CG., INC. WARRANTY
Pierce Manufacturing Inc.
Page 2

Warranty Support: In support of the Pierce dealer network, Sheppard will provide a toll-free
“Hotline” service to assist in the diagnosis and troubleshooting of steering problems. The R. H.
Sheppard Co., Inc. Field Service Department can be reached at 1-800-274-7437 for assistance.
Sheppard will require that Pierce dealers contact this toll-free “Hotline” for approval before product
is removed from a vehicle in a warranty situation. When contacted regarding a warranty situation, the
Sheppard representative will provide an authorization number for removal of the product. This
Returned Goods Authorization (RGA) number must be included in all warranty correspondence and
attached to all returned goods.

Procedure: In the event of a warranty situation, the servicing dealer shall contact the Sheppard
Hotline and receive an RGA number before replacing any steering gear. For M110PKG1 and
M110SAU1 steering gear models, the dealer will first obtain an RGA number from Sheppard, and
then order the replacement gear from Pierce. Replacement M110PKG1 and M110SAUT steering
gears shall be shipped from Pierce once those models are in full production. A warranty claim for
both parts and labor will then be generated by the dealer and sent to Pierce. After reviewing the
claim, Pierce will submit it to Sheppard for reimbursement.

Parts Reimbursement: Sheppard agrees to reimburse Pierce at Pierce’s purchase price plus 30%
mark-up for parts found to be defective within the warranty period. Parts being returned for warranty
consideration shall be sent to the R, H. Sheppard Company, 447 E. Middle St., Hanover, PA 17331
ATTN: Warranty Dept. Sheppard’s determination as to whether the part is covered by the foregoing
warranty is final and conclusive. Sheppard requires the return of complete steering gears only.
Individual seals replaced under warranty should not be returned unless specifically requested by
Sheppard. All parts being returned for warranty consideration must be clearly tagged with all
pertinent warranty information including, but not limited to (1) Returned Goods Authorization
number (RGA): (2) claim number: (3) date in service; (4) date of failure: (5) mileage; (6) part
number; (7) labor hours; (8) dealer labor rate and; (9) dollar amount claimed. Claims submitted
without prior authorization are subject to rejection under this agreement.

Labor: Labor to repair Sheppard product found to be defective within the warranty period will be
reimbursed at not more than 10 hours per vehicle. Labor shall be reimbursed at the rate of $85.00
USD per hour for M110PGK1 and M110SAUTI steering gears.

Freight: Pierce will collect M110PGK1 and M110SAU1 warranty material at a designated
collection point. Inbound freight to the Pierce collection point will be the responsibility of Pierce. All
warranty material should be returned from the Pierce collection point to R. H. Sheppard Co. Freight
Collect by a Sheppard-specified common carrier based on location of the Pierce collection point.
Sheppard does not require the return of failed seals. Any freight charges incurred for the return of
seals will be the responsibility of Pierce. Parts returned for warranty consideration without prior
authorization are subject to rejection under this agreement and may be subject to a charge back of
inbound freight charges. Parts rejected under this warranty will be returned to Pierce Freight Collect
or scrapped by Sheppard at Pierce’s discretion.



R. H. SHEPPARD CO., INC. WARRANTY
Pierce Manufacturing Inc.
Page 3

Qutside Purchases: Pierce authorized dealers shall be the only outlet for repair, warranty service
and parts for Sheppard products applied to Pierce vehicles. Sheppard will not be responsible for
consumables such as hoses, belts, fluids, fittings or miscellaneous shop material that may be required
for the repair of the product.

Warranty Documentation; Warranty credit memos will be issued monthly to the Pierce Warranty
Department. Monthly credit memos will include (1) claim number; (2) part number; (3) parts
reimbursement; (4) labor reimbursement; (5) any applicable Pierce reference number and; (6) reason
for rejection or acceptance of the claim. Credit memos will be issued in U.S. funds. Debits for
warranty claims will not be accepted under this agreement. Claim disposition will constitute the final
and conclusive resolution of warranty claims.

Parts Retention: Sheppard will retain parts submitted for warranty consideration for a period of
sixty (60) days for any material found to be rejected for warranty. Sheppard will notify Pierce within
sixty (60) days of receipt of Sheppard’s determination as to whether any such part is covered by this
warranty. Warranty reimbursement will be issued within thirty days of receipt of material at
Sheppard.

Good-Will Requests: Good-Will requests will be considered jointly between Sheppard and Pierce
for equitable compensation.

RECALLS: Sheppard retains the right to review information regarding federal motor vehicle recall
and /or product repair programs if Sheppard products fitted to Pierce vehicles are alleged to be non-
compliant with federal motor vehicle safety standards. Sheppard retains the right to review any
claims of product defect or non-compliance before participating in reimbursement of expenses
incurred as a result of alleged non-compliance or defect of its products. Sheppard agrees to negotiate
in good faith for the reimbursement of expenses incurred by Pierce for all administrative, material
and labor cost and expense associated with any recall where Sheppard product is found to be
defective or non-compliant with federal motor vehicle standards.

MISCELLANEOQUS: This writing constitutes the full complete and final statement of Sheppard’s
limited warranty for M110PKG1 and M110SAU1 products sold to Pierce. All prior oral or written
correspondence, test data, negotiations, representations, understandings and the like regarding
products are merged in this writing and extinguished by it. This limited warranty may not be altered,
amended extended or modified except by a writing signed by the President or Vice President of
Sheppard. No employee, vendor, dealer, distributor or other representative of Sheppard has authority
to make statements to extend, expand, alter or amend the terms of this Limited Warranty. Sheppard
expressly disclaims any statements contrary to the Limited Warranty. Sheppard’s failure at any time
to enforce any of the terms and conditions stated herein shall not constitute a waiver of any
provisions herein. This Limited Warranty shall be governed by and construed in accordance with_the
laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.




R. H. SHEPPARD COQO., INC. WARRANTY
Pierce Manufacturing Inc.
Page 4

Any legal actions which may arise as a result of disputes, controversies or claims arising out of or
related to this limited warranty shall be in such forum as Sheppard and Pierce shall agree, or, in the
absence of agreement, in a court of appropriate jurisdiction other than in the county in which either
party is located. This Limited Warranty shall not be assigned by Pierce.

COOPERATIVE EFFORT: Sheppard and Pierce agree to work cooperatively toward expanding
this warranty coverage to a period of sixty months from the in service date. These cooperative efforts
shall focus on examining the effects of increased heat generated by 2007 model engines and its
impact on the entire power steering system.

AGREEMENT: This agreement is effective April 3, 2006 and may be modified by mutual
agreement between Sheppard and Pierce of a signed amendment to be attached to the original Limited
Warranty. There are no third party beneficiaries to this Limited Warranty. This warranty agreement
applies to Pierce authorized dealers only. It does not encompass any special arrangements that Pierce
may now have or that Pierce may enter into, with any other segments of the trucking industry. This
warranty agreement does not apply to non-conforming product removed at Pierce assembly plants.

This Limited Warranty agreement between the R. H. Sheppard Co., Inc and Pierce Manufacturing
Inc. may be terminated by either party with thirty days written notice prior to termination.

Signed at Pierce Manufacturing Inc., Appleton, W1 this day of , 2006.
R. H. SHEPPARD CO., INC. PIERCE MANUFACTURING INC.
Authorized Signature Authorized Signature

Title Title



5 Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Five (5) Year Material and Workmanship Aerial Hydraulic System
Components
Three (3) Year Material and Workmanship Aerial Hydraulic System

Seals

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

The aerial hydraulic system components and seals shall be
free from component or structural failures caused by defects
in material and/or workmanship.

Coverage:

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period

Ends After: Five (5) Years and Three (3) Years

Pierce's obligation under this warranty is limited to repairing
or replacing without charge, as Pierce may elect, the
hydraulic lines, fittings, valves, seals, cylinders, filters,
pumps, hydraulic motors, rotary actuators, or components

Conditions and which Pierce determines to have failed due to defective

Exclusions: material and workmanship.
gae\faAlrzohs This warranty shall not apply unless the aerial device is
2 thrg 4p inspected in accordance with NFPA 1911 Standard for

Inspection, Maintenance, Testing, and Retirement of In-
Service Automotive Fire Apparatus and the applicable Pierce
Operator and Maintenance Manuals.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

6/28/2011 WAO0200

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any
such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the
vehicle.




» Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Five (5) Year Material and Workmanship - Transmission QOil Cooler
Three (3) Year Collateral Damage Coverage

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

The transmission cooler shall be free from component or
structural failures caused by defects in material and/or
workmanship. Collateral damage up to $10,000 per
occurrence is available for the first three (3) years.

Coverage:

Warranty Begins: The date of delivery to the first retail purchaser.

Warranty Period
Ends After:

Five (5) Years on QOil Cooler and three (3) years on collateral
damage coverage

This warranty does not cover repair due to accidents,
misuse, and excessive vibration, flying debris, storage
damage (freezing), negligence or modification. This warranty
is void if any modification or repairs are performed without
authorization. This also voids any future warranty.

This warranty does not cover cost of maintenance or repairs
due to lack of required maintenance services as
recommended. Performance of the required maintenance

Conditions and and use of proper fluids are the responsibility of the owner.

Exclusions:

Towing is covered to the nearest distributor or authorized
See Also dealer only when necessary to prevent further damage to
Paragraphs your transmission.
2thru 4

Labor costs for the removal and reinstallation of goods may
be covered when necessary to make repairs. Please contact
your OEM for authorization.

Replacement of cooler during the warranty period is limited
to 100% of reasonable labor costs up to a maximum of $700
to remove, replace, or repair the oil cooler.

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

2/22/2012 WAO0216

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Pierce specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury
damages, penalties, damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or
any associated equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay
damages, any other types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any
such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if
any) or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any
part, component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the
vehicle.




AMITY FIRE AND SAFETY, INC.

3750 CHESTNUT ROAD
ALBURTIS, PA 18011-0451
Phone: 610-966-3115

Fax: 610-965-6313

* STANDARD TEN YEAR WARRANTY *

(standard warranty is in effect for parts shipped after 4/15/10)
Telescopic Waterways

A. PRESHIPMENT TESTING All waterways fabricated by Amity are final inspected using the following pressure

minimums:

1. Hydrostatic applications will be tested to 400 PSI unless specified otherwise on approved drawings. Operating
pressures on installed systems are not to exceed 250 PSI at any point in the system. Warranty will be voided and
Amity will not be held liable for failure and/or damage occurring from Water Hammering or freezing of water in any
system.

B. COMPONENTS DESCRIPTION AND MAINTENANCE

1. All components are thoroughly greased at assembly. Since internally lubricated seals are used, regular greasing is not
required. We recommend components not be greased at installation.

2. Slip Tube Assemblies may be greased at the Amity's regularly scheduled Aerial Inspections. The seals in the Slip
Tube Assemblies are self-lubricating, so greasing is not mandatory. We do recommend a visual inspection of the Slip
Tube Assembly while it is fully extended after initial installation, from that point on we recommend inspection every ten
hours of aerial operation. If any deposits of aluminum appear, they are to be rubbed off using a Teflon scouring pad.
Slip Tube Assemblies are designed to give long maintenance free service; however, like any product, problems may
occur and periodic visual inspections will aid in determining if a potential problem exists and warrants a call to us.
Care must be taken to keep debris off of extended tubes. We recommend wiping tubes with light oil (10 weight) or
hydraulic oil after use, if tubes appear to have contamination on them. Under no circumstance are tubes to be cleaned
with lacquer thinner, or any other solvent.

. LIMITED WARRANTY, LIMITATIONS, CONDITIONS AND PROCEDURES REQUIRED.
Products are warranted to be free of defects in labor and/or materials for a period of ten years from the date of
purchase from the Amity and shall be repaired or replaced at the sole option and expense of the Amity provided the
products alleged to be defective was used for its intended normal use operation and subject to the following
qualifications and limitations.
Any alteration of product without consent from Amity is strictly forbidden and shall void warranty.
No welding shall be performed on finished product.
No responsibility is assumed for any malfunctions or damages which are occasionally caused by foreign objects which
may be ingested into water system such as, but not limited to stones, sand or metal chips.
Amity assumes responsibility for our product, which is defective only, and therefore, it will not assume responsibility
for labor to either remove or install our product unless it agrees in writing to assume such responsibility.
Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Amity all returns of defective (or allegedly defective products) are at
Purchaser’s expense and must include a RGA number issued by the Amity.
All warranty claims must be presented at the time the problem occurs, or as soon as practical thereafter, either called
or faxed to the Amity and include the numbers on the assembly’'s Amity’s label with a detailed explanation of the
difficulty in order for the matter to be appropriately evaluated and resolved.
Amity will not be held liable for damage incurred during shipment.
No responsibility shall be assumed for misuse or improper mounting, unreasonably use or abuse of the Product and
or failure to provide or use improper maintenance, failure to follow written installation and use in instruction or any use
other than the customary designed use.

THE REMEDIES PROVIDED IN THE ABOVE EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY AND ARE THE SOLE AND

EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES AVAILABLE. NO OTHER EXPRESS WARRANTIES ARE MADE. ALL IMPLIED
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR

{00046826;v2}




FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE ARE LIMITED IN DURATION AS SET FORTH ABOVE. IN NO
EVENT SHALL THE AMITY ASSUME OR BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.

THE WITHIN DESCRIBED WARRANTY SHALL ONLY BE AFFORDED TO THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER OR FOR
INCORPORATION INTO ANOTHER UNIT AND TO FIRST PURCHASER AS PART OF COMPLETED UNIT,
HOWEVER, THE WARRANTY PERIOD OF TEN YEARS COMMENCES UPON INSTALLATION INTO FINAL
ASSEMBLY WITH THE UNDERSTANDING IT IS INSTALLED WITHIN SIX MONTHS OF PURCHASE.

Dated: , 20

{00046826;v2}




AMITY FIRE AND SAFETY, INC.

3750 CHESTNUT ROAD
ALBURTIS, PA 18011-0451
Phone: 610-966-3115

Fax: 610-965-6313

* STANDARD FIVE YEAR WARRANTY *

(standard warranty is in effect for parts shipped after 4/15/10)
Three Function Swivel

A. PRESHIPMENT TESTING The Three Function Swivel fabricated by Amity which is exposed to pressure during normal
use is subject to final inspection using the following pressure minimums:
Hydrostatic applications will be tested to 400 PSI unless specified otherwise on approved drawings. Operating
pressures on installed systems are not to exceed 250 PSI at any point in the system. Warranty will be voided and
Amity will not be held liable for failure and/or damage occurring from Water Hammering or freezing of water in any
system.
Hydraulic applications will be tested to 4000 PSI. System operating pressure in application to be 3000 PSI maximum.
Dielectric and Continuity Test all circuits. 30 Amp max current loading.

B. THREE FUNCTION SWIVEL MAINTENANCE — Our Three Function Swivel has been fully tested at assembly. Under
no circumstances is there to be any maintenance performed internally or externally to the Three Function Swivel by
Purchaser or any other third party other than an authorized representative of or Amity itself. The Three Function Swivel is
sealed and must remain so. The Three Function Swivel is designed for a long maintenance free life. Should any problems
occur or replacement be necessary, first contact Amity. There is to be no field maintenance performed on the Three
Function Swivel .

C. MOUNTING REQUIREMENTS - The following are the mounting requirements for the Three Function Swivel:

1. Mounting points and methods are to be determined at the initial design stage. All drawings and applicable
documentation must be signed off by both parties and filed for future reference. No deviation to the approved
mounting is allowed without approval from Amity.

. The Three Function Swivel is to be mounted concentric to the center of the turntable bearing.

. All inlet and outlet plumbing to conform to swivel mounting, under no circumstances is the Three Function Swivel to be
positioned to match connections. This will avoid putting excessive loads on the Three Function Swivel. All tubing or
piping to be supported by means other than the Three Function Swivel.

. LIMITED WARRANTY, LIMITATIONS, CONDITIONS AND PROCEDURES REQUIRED.
The Three Function Swivel is warranted to be free of defects in labor and/or materials for a period of five (5) years
from the Date of Service. For purposes here, “Date of Service” shall mean the date when the Three Function Swivel,
or the unit to which the Three Function Swivel is incorporated, passes final Underwriters Laboratory testing, or
similarly compliant testing, and is certified for service. Evidence of such Date of Service shall be required in
connection with any warranty claim by Purchaser.
The Three Function Swivel shall be repaired or replaced at the sole option and expense of the Amity provided the
Three Function Swivel alleged to be defective was used for its intended normal use of operation and subject to the
following qualifications and limitations.
Any alteration of the Three Function Swivel without consent from Amity is strictly forbidden and shall void warranty.
No welding shall be performed on finished Three Function Swivel.
No responsibility is assumed for any malfunctions or damages which are occasionally caused by foreign objects which
may be ingested into water or hydraulic systems such as, but not limited to stones, sand or metal chips.
Amity assumes responsibility for our Three Function Swivel, which is defective only, and therefore, it will not assume
responsibility for labor to either remove or install our Three Function Swivel unless it agrees in writing to assume such
responsibility.
Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Amity all returns of defective Three Function Swivels (or allegedly
defective Three Function Swivels) are at Purchaser’s expense and must include a RGA number issued by the Amity.

{00046826;v2}




All warranty claims must be presented at the time the problem occurs, or as soon as practical thereafter, either called
or faxed to the Amity and include the numbers on the assembly’s Amity’s label with a detailed explanation of the
difficulty in order for the matter to be appropriately evaluated and resolved.
. Amity will not be held liable for damage incurred during shipment.
. No responsibility shall be assumed for misuse or improper mounting, unreasonably use or abuse of the Three
Function Swivel and or failure to provide or use improper maintenance, failure to follow written installation and use in
instruction or any use other than the customary designed use.

THE REMEDIES PROVIDED IN THE ABOVE EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY AND ARE THE SOLE AND
EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES AVAILABLE. NO OTHER EXPRESS WARRANTIES ARE MADE. ALL IMPLIED
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE ARE LIMITED IN DURATION AS SET FORTH ABOVE. IN NO
EVENT SHALL THE AMITY ASSUME OR BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.

THE WITHIN DESCRIBED WARRANTY SHALL ONLY BE AFFORDED TO THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER OR FOR
INCORPORATION INTO ANOTHER UNIT AND TO FIRST PURCHASER AS PART OF COMPLETED UNIT,
HOWEVER, THE WARRANTY PERIOD OF FIVE YEARS IS FROM THE DATE OF SERVICE WITH THE
UNDERSTANDING IT IS INSTALLED WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME PERIOD.

Dated: ,20

{00046826;v2}




( A&A MANUFACTURING

Pierce Warranty Statement for Gortite Roll Up Doors Rev 2/24/2011

All mechanical components of the door shall be warranted to be free from defects in materials and
workmanship for the lifetime of the vehicle. All parts covered under this warranty shall be to the original
owner.

A& A manufacturing warrants that painted doors shall be free of blistering, peeling, bubbling, or any other
adhesion defect caused by defective manufacturing methods or paint material selection. The time period for the
coverage shall be 6 years from date of door shipment to Pierce. Satin anodized finish doors shall be warranted
for 6 years against corrosion defects from date of door shipment to Pierce. Replacement of decals/Scotchliteis
not covered.

The maximum amount A& A will reimburse for labor is $60.00 per hour and the maximum amount of time
allowed for repair is asfollows:

Door 1.0Hr.
Slat Replacement 1.0 Hr.
Pennant Plate Replacement 1.0 Hr.
Roller Replacement SHr.
Seal Replacement S5 Hr.
Switch/Magnet Replacement 1.0 Hr.
Travel Time 4.0 Hr.

A & A Manufacturing Co., Inc. 2300 S. Calhoun Road - New Berlin, WI 53151 - Phone (262) 786-1500 - Fax (262) 786-3280



\( Prorce B

Fire and Rescue Apparatus

54 Months Material and Workmanship

Camera System

Limited Warranty

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the Buyer:

This limited warranty covers repairs to correct any defect
related to materials or workmanship of the Sharpvision
camera system installed on the apparatus occuring during the
warranty period.

Coverage:

Warranty Begins: The date of delivery.

Warranty Period

Ends After: Fifty - Four (54) months

Conditions and

Exclusions: This limited warranty does not apply to related wire
harnesses, cables, and connectors, which are covered by the

See Also Pierce one (1) year basic apparatus limited warranty

Paragraphs ‘

2thru 4

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER
OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

1/11/2011 WAO0188

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




Cummins Warranty

Worldwide
Fire Apparatus/Crash Trucks

™



Coverage

Products Warranted

This Warranty applies to new diesel Engines sold by
Cummins and delivered to the first user on or after
April 1, 2007, that are used in fire apparatus truck and
crash truck* applications Worldwide.

Base Engine Warranty

The Base Engine Warranty covers any failures of the
Engine which result, under normal use and service,
from a defect in material or factory workmanship
(Warrantable Failure). This Coverage begins with the
sale of the Engine by Cummins and ends five years or
100,000 miles (160,935 kilometers), whichever occurs
first, after the date of delivery of the Engine to the first
user.

Engine aftertreatment components included in the
Cummins Critical Parts List (CPL) and marked with a
Cummins part number are covered under Base Engine
Warranty.

Additional Coverage is outlined in the Emission
Warranty section.

These Warranties are made to all Owners in the
chain of distribution and Coverage continues to all
subsequent Owners until the end of the periods of
Coverage.

Cummins
Responsibilities

Cummins will pay for all parts and labor needed to
repair the damage to the Engine resulting from a
Warrantable Failure.

Cummins will pay for the lubricating oil, antifreeze,
filter elements, belts, hoses and other maintenance
items that are not reusable due to the Warrantable
Failure.

Cummins will pay for reasonable labor costs for
Engine removal and reinstallation when necessary to
repair a Warrantable Failure.

Cummins will pay reasonable costs for towing a
vehicle disabled by a Warrantable Failure to the
nearest authorized repair location. In lieu of the towing
expense, Cummins will pay reasonable costs for
mechanics to travel to and from the location of the
vehicle, including meals, mileage and lodging when
the repair is performed at the site of the failure.

Owner
Responsibilities

Owner is responsible for the operation and
maintenance of the Engine as specified in Cummins
Operation and Maintenance Manuals. Owner is also
responsible for providing proof that all recommended
maintenance has been performed.

Before the expiration of the applicable Warranty,
Owner must notify a Cummins distributor, authorized
dealer or other repair location approved by Cummins
of any Warrantable Failure and make the Engine
available for repair by such facility. Except for Engines
disabled by a Warrantable Failure, Owner must also
deliver the Engine to the repair facility.

Service locations are listed on the Cummins Worldwide
Service Locator at cummins.com.

Owner is responsible for the cost of lubricating oil,
antifreeze, filter elements and other maintenance items
provided during Warranty repairs unless such items
are not reusable due to the Warrantable Failure.

Owner is responsible for communication expenses,
meals, lodging and similar costs incurred as a result of
a Warrantable Failure.

Owner is responsible for non-Engine repairs and for

“‘downtime’’ expenses, cargo damage, fines, all I
applicable taxes, all business costs and other losses

resulting from a Warrantable Failure.

Owner is responsible for a $100 (U.S. Dollars)
deductible per each service visit under this plan in the
3rd, 4th and 5th years of Base Engine Warranty. The
deductible will not be charged during the first 2 years
of the Base Engine Warranty.

Limitations

Cummins is not responsible for failures or damage
resulting from what Cummins determines to be abuse
or neglect, including, but not limited to: operation
without adequate coolants or lubricants; overfueling;
overspeeding; lack of maintenance of lubricating,
cooling or intake systems; improper storage, starting,
warm-up, run-in or shutdown practices; unauthorized
modifications of the Engine.

Any unauthorized modifications to the aftertreatment
could negatively effect emissions certification and void
Warranty.

Cummins is also not responsible for failures caused by
incorrect oil, fuel or diesel exhaust fluid or by water,
dirt or other contaminants in the fuel, oil or diesel



exhaust fluid.

This Warranty does not apply to accessories supplied
by Cummins which bear the name of another
company. Such non-warranted accessories include, but
are not limited to: alternators, starters, fans, air
conditioning compressors, clutches, filters,
transmissions, torque converters, vacuum pumps,
power steering pumps, fan drives and air compressors.
Cummins branded alternators and starters are covered
for the first two years from the date of delivery of the
Engine to the first user, or the expiration of the Base
Engine Warranty, whichever occurs first.

Failures resulting in excessive oil consumption are not
covered beyond the duration of the Coverage or
100,000 miles (160,935 kilometers) or 7,000 hours from
the date of delivery of the Engine to the first user,
whichever of the three occurs first. Before a claim for
excessive oil consumption will be considered, Owner
must submit adequate documentation to show that
consumption exceeds Cummins published standards.

Failures of belts and hoses supplied by Cummins are
not covered beyond the first year from the date of
delivery of the Engine to the first user or the duration
of the Warranty, whichever occurs first.

Parts used to repair a Warrantable Failure may be new
Cummins parts, Cummins approved rebuilt parts or
repaired parts. Cummins is not responsible for failures
resulting from the use of parts not approved by
Cummins.

A new Cummins or Cummins approved rebuilt part
used to repair a Warrantable Failure assumes the
identity of the part it replaced and is entitled to the
remaining Coverage hereunder.

Cummins Inc. reserves the right to interrogate
Electronic Control Module (ECM) data for purposes of
failure analysis.

CUMMINS DOES NOT COVER WEAR OR WEAROUT
OF COVERED PARTS.

CUMMINS IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR INCIDENTAL
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.

THIS WARRANTY AND THE EMISSION WARRANTY
SET FORTH HEREINAFTER ARE THE SOLE
WARRANTIES MADE BY CUMMINS IN REGARD TO
THESE ENGINES. CUMMINS MAKES NO OTHER
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OR OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

This Warranty gives you specific legal rights, and you
may also have other rights which vary from state to
state.

Emission
Warranty

Products Warranted

This Emission Warranty applies to new Engines
marketed by Cummins that are used in the United
States™ * in vehicles designed for transporting persons
or property on a street or highway. This Warranty
applies to Engines delivered to the first user on or after
September 1, 1992.

Coverage

Cummins warrants to the first user and each
subsequent purchaser that the Engine is designed,
built and equipped so as to conform at the time of sale
by Cummins with all U.S. federal emission regulations
applicable at the time of manufacture and that it is free
from defects in material or factory workmanship which
would cause it not to meet these regulations within the
longer of the following periods: (A) Five years or
100,000 miles (160,935 kilometers) of operation,
whichever occurs first, as measured from the date of
delivery of the Engine to the first user or (B) The Base
Engine Warranty.

If the vehicle in which the Engine is installed is
registered in the state of California, a separate
California Emission Warranty also applies.

Limitations

Failures, other than those resulting from defects in
material or factory workmanship, are not covered by
this Warranty.

Cummins is not responsible for failures or damage
resulting from what Cummins determines to be abuse
or neglect, including, but not limited to: operation
without adequate coolants or lubricants; overfueling;
overspeeding; lack of maintenance of lubricating,
cooling or intake systems; improper storage, starting,
warm-up, run-in or shutdown practices; unauthorized
modifications of the Engine.

Any unauthorized modifications to the aftertreatment
could negatively effect emissions certification and void
Warranty.

Cummins is also not responsible for failures caused by
incorrect oil, fuel or diesel exhaust fluid or by water,
dirt or other contaminants in the fuel, oil or diesel
exhaust fluid.

Cummins is not responsible for non-Engine repairs,
‘‘downtime’’ expenses, cargo damage, fines, all
applicable taxes, all business costs or other losses
resulting from a Warrantable Failure.



CUMMINS IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR INCIDENTAL
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.

* Airport operated crash trucks and fire department
operated trucks employed to respond to fires,
hazardous material releases, rescue and other
emergency-type situations.

** United States includes American Samoa, the
Commonwealth of Northern Mariana Islands, Guam,
Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands.

Cummins Inc.

Box 3005

Columbus, IN 47202-3005
U.S.A.

Bulletin 3381161
Printed in U.S.A. Rev. 08/09
©2001 Cummins Inc.




Fire and Rescue Apparatus

Liméted Warnanty

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Pierce makes no warranty whatsoever
as to:

1. LIMITED WARRANTY

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, Pierce Manufacturing provides
the following warranty to the purchaser who first puts the product in service ("Buyer"):

The Meritor axle shall be covered by Meritor as indicated in

Coverage: the attached Meritor warranty coverage description

The date of the original purchase invoice (issued when the

Warranty Begins: product ships from the factory).

Warranty Period

Ends After: Five (5) Years

Conditions and

Exclusions:
The exclusions listed in the attached Meritor warranty
See Also description shall apply.
Paragraphs
2thru4

This limited warranty shall apply only if the product is properly maintained in accordance
with Pierce's maintenance instructions and manuals and is used in service which is
normal to the particular model. Normal service means service which does not subject the
product to stresses or impacts greater than normally result from careful use. If the Buyer
discovers a defect or nonconformity, it must notify Pierce in writing within thirty (30) days
after the date of discovery, but in any event prior to the expiration of the warranty period.
THIS LIMITED WARRANTY MAY NOT BE ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED BY THE BUYER TO ANY SUBSEQUENT USER OR PURCHASER OR
TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY.

6/29/2020 WAO0384

(a) any integral parts, components, attachments or trade accessories of or to the product
that are not manufactured by Pierce, including but not limited to engines, transmissions,
drivelines, axles, water pumps and generators; with respect to all such parts,
components, attachments and accessories, Pierce shall assign to Buyer the applicable
warranties, if any, made by the respective manufacturers thereof;

(b) any vehicle, chassis, or component, part, attachment or accessory damaged by
misuse, neglect, fire, exposure to severe environmental or chemical conditions, acidic
environment, improper maintenance, accident, crash, or force majeure such as natural
disaster, lightning, earthquake, windstorm, hail, flood, war or riot;

(c) any vehicle, chassis or component, part, attachment or accessory that has been
repaired, altered or assembled in any way by any person or entity other than Pierce
which, in the sole judgment of Pierce, adversely affects the performance, stability or
purpose for which it was manufactured; or

(d) products or parts which may in the ordinary course wear out and have to be replaced
during the warranty period, including, but not limited to, tires, fluids, gaskets and light
bulbs. Pierce assumes no responsibility for the assembly of its parts or subassemblies
into finishing products or vehicles unless the assembly is performed by Pierce.

The original purchaser may void this warranty in part or in its entirety if the product is
repaired or replaced (a) without prior written approval of the Pierce Customer Service
Department; or (b) at a facility which has not been approved by Pierce as to technical
capability. Any repairs, modifications, alterations or aftermarket parts added after
manufacture without the authorization of Pierce may void this warranty.

2. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH 1 IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
WARRANTY GIVEN BY PIERCE. PIERCE HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXCLUDES ALL
OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, ANY
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY WARRANTIES
ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

3. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

If the product fails to conform to the warranty set forth in paragraph 1 during the warranty
period, and such nonconformity is not due to misuse, neglect, accident or improper
maintenance, Buyer must notify Pierce within the time period specified in paragraph 1,
and shall make the product available for inspection by Pierce or its designated agent. At
the request of Pierce, any allegedly defective product shall be returned to Pierce by
Buyer for examination and/or repair. Buyer shall be responsible for the cost of such
transportation, and for risk of loss of or damage to the product during transportation.
Within a reasonable time, Pierce shall repair or replace (at Pierce's option and expense)
any nonconforming or defective parts. Repair or replacement shall be made only by a
facility approved in advance in writing by Pierce. THIS REMEDY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY.

4. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement between Pierce and
Buyer, IN NO EVENT SHALL PIERCE BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR OTHER THEORY OF LAW
OR EQUITY, WITH RESPECT TO VEHICLES OR OTHER PRODUCTS SOLD BY
PIERCE, OR THEIR OPERATION OR FAILURE TO OPERATE, OR ANY DEFECTS
THEREIN, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS OR OMISSIONS RELATED THERETO,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER PIERCE HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Pierce
specifically disclaims any liability for property or personal injury damages, penalties,
damages for lost profits or revenues, loss of vehicles or products or any associated
equipment, cost of substitute vehicles or products, down-time, delay damages, any other
types of economic loss, or for any claims by any third party for any such damages.

Note: Any Surety Bond, if a part of the sale of the vehicle as to which this limited
warranty is provided, applies only to this Pierce Basic One Year Limited Warranty for
such vehicle, and not to other warranties made by Pierce in a separate document (if any)
or to the warranties (if any) made by any manufacturer (other than Pierce) of any part,
component, attachment or accessory that is incorporated into or attached to the vehicle.




VEHICLE SYSTEMS
WARRANTY/MODEL YEAR 2020 VEHICLES

MERITOR®* COMMERCIAL §

MERITOR




WARRANTY INFORMATION CONTENTS

Effective Model Year 2020 Vehicles

LINBRAUL <.t te e esteeeaee s 3-4
GENEBIAI SEIVICE ...ttt e e et et e enaeeteeeteeereeaneeeeeas 5-6
Heavy Service/Specialty VERICIE .......oovieeeieeeee e /-8
FIre @and EMEIZENCY ..ottt 9
TRANSIT BUS oottt e etee e eree s 10
OFf-HIZNWAY SEIVICE ... et eee e 11
Terms and ConAItIONS.....covei ittt 12

How to Read Warranty Coverage

Number of Years Mileage (in thousands) P=Parts Only
Unl=Unlimited P&L=Parts & Labor

Notice:

Models or components that are approved for use by Meritor’s vocational guidelines contained in Meritor Publication TP-9441 for axles,
SP-8320 for trailer axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, which are not specifically listed, are warranted for one year, unlimited miles, parts
only (1/Unl/P).

Products purchased on an incomplete vehicle (glider) are limited to one year, unlimited miles parts only (1/Unl/P).

Advantage Program

Purchasing additional coverage on select components will continue to safeguard your investment against major repair costs after the initial
base coverage expires. You can find out more about the Advantage Program by visiting www.meritor.com or by contacting Meritor at
866-0nlracl (866-668-7221).



LINEHAUL WARRANTY INFORMATION

Linehaul Vehicles

M Bulk Hauler M Flathed M Livestock Hauler M Refrigerated Freight
B Chip Hauler (Truck)* M General Freight M Moving Van M Tanker
M Doubles M Grain Hauler M Pipe Hauler M Triples

* Chip Hauler vehicles require specific axle models listed below and Linehaul condition to be eligible for Linehaul warranty consideration.

Linehaul Typically Is

M High mileage operation (over 60,000 miles/year)

M Well maintained major highways of concrete or
asphalt construction

M Greater than 30 miles between starting and stopping

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty require that the application of products he
properly approved pursuant to OEM and Meritor approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for
axles, SP-8320 for trailer axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, and/or contact Meritor
regarding specific application approval questions on any product line.

Front Non-Drive Steer Axles — 5/750/P&L

FD-965 FF-967 MFS-12-122B-N MFS-12-132C-N MFS-13-122B-N MFS-13B-122C-N
FF-941 FG-941 MFS-12-122C-N MFS-12E-132B-N MFS-13-122C-N MFS-13B-132B-N
FF-942 FG-943 MFS-12E-122A-N MFS-12E-132C-N MFS-13-132B-N MFS-13B-132C-N
FF-943 MFS-10-122A MFS-12E-122B-N MFS-12-143A-N MFS-13-132C-N MFS-14-122A-N
FF-944 MFS-10-143A-N MFS-12E-122C-N MFS-12E-143A-N MFS-13-143A-N MFS-14-124A-N
FF-961 MFS-10-144A-N MFS-12-124A-N MFS-12-144A-N MFS-13-144A-N MFS-14-143A-N
FF-966 MFS-12-122A-N MFS-12-132B-N MFS-13-122A-N MFS-13B-122B-N MFS-14-144A-N

Rear Drive Single Axles — 5/750/P&L

Rear Drive Tandem/Tridem Axles — 5/750/P&L

RS-19-144/145/A RS-21-145 RS-23-160 RT-34-144/P/A MA-40-165 MT-40-14XHE
MS-19-14X RS-21-160 RS-23-161 RT-40-145/A MA-40-175 MT-40-144/P
MS-21-144 MS-23-17X RS-23-186 RT-40-160/P'? MT-34-14X/P MT-40-943
RT-46-160/P12 MT-40-14T/P MT-40-943-SP
.. RT-46-164EH/PL? MT-40-14X/P RZ-1667
Drivelines RT-50-160/P12 MT-40-14X/P RZ-188
RPL 5/500/P, 1/Unl/P&L ! These models required for Chip Hauler and Linehaul warranty consideration.
2 Each vehicle must have a Request for Application Recommendation (RAR
li/l;(\SLN 3/350/P 1/U1r}|U/E|8/t approved by Meritor prior to vqehicle builz?AII RARs must identify the(chagsis
number or VIN. Refer to Product Information Letter #303 and #396 for
92N 1/Unl/P further details.



LINEHAUL WARRANTY INFORMATION

Brake Components

Cam Q Series Trailer Brakes 5/500/P, 1/100/L
Q+ Drum Brake™ 5/500/P, 1/Unl/P&L
ASA 5/500/P, 1/Unl/P&L

Hubs/Cast Drums and Other Wheel-end Components 1/Unl/P
Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P
All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P

STEELite X30 Drum Brake™?

EX+ Air Disc Brake™ 5/500/P, 1/Unl/L

EX+ Air Disc Brake Extended Standard Warranty? 5/500/P&L

Ulncludes: bushing, seal, cam, ASA lubrication and wear coverage of
3/500/P&L.

2 Based on stamped wear diameter max.

¥ Applies only to MA761 friction material code CD brake assembly i.e.
EX225LXXXCDXXX

12-Years or Wearable Life/P

Trailer Axles

Beam and Brackets 5/500/P, 1/100/L

Wheel End Systems!

Standard System? 1/100/P&L
PreSet by Meritor® 5/500/P&L
AxlePak5* 5P/L
AxlePak7® 7P/L

UIncludes hub, wheel seals and wheel bearings—all systems require annual
inspections and proper documentation to ensure full coverage.

2 When installed by Meritor.

3 Requires approved hubcap stating PreSet by Meritor on hubcap face.

* When specified with AxlePak5 wheel end system, coverage on MTIS thru-tee and
stator is 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L.

S When specified with AxlePak7 wheel end system, coverage on MTIS thru-tee
and stator is 7/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L.

(For brake components and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate

product warranties.)

TAG/Pusher Axles!
TQ, TQD, TR, TRD Beam and Brackets 5/750/P&L
! For brake components and ABS Coverage, refer to appropriate product warranties.

Meritor Tire Inflation System

MTIS Components 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

Trailer Air Suspension Systems

MPA38/40 (Tandem Axle Parallelogram)
Major Structural Components
Curbing Damage Warranty?

5/500/P, 1/100/L
5/500/P, 1/100/L

Height Control Valve 1/100/P&L
Shock Absorbers 2/200/P&L
Air Springs 2/200/P, 1/100/L
Bushings 5/P, 3/L
PinLoc Air Controls 1/100/P&L
PinLoc Actuator 3/300/P&L

MPA20 (Single Axle Parallelogram)

Major Structural Components 5/500/P, 1/100/L

Height Control Valve 1/100/P&L
Shock Absorbers 2/200/P&L
Air Springs 2/200/P, 1/100/L
Bushings 5/P, 3/L

MTA (Trailing Arm)

Major Structural Components 5/500/P, 1/100/L

Height Control Valve 1/100/P&L
Shock Absorbers 2/200/P&L
Air Springs & Rebound Straps 2/200/P, 1/100/L
Bushings 5/500/P, 3/300/L

! Fastener torque coverage is limited to 2/Unl/P&L when torqued by Meritor
(For axle and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate product warranties.)

2“Curbing damage” is defined as deformation (bending, buckling, or breakage),
caused by sudden impact with a curb or similar fixed object. Damage to the
RideSentry slider box (the suspension sliding subframe, consisting of the frame
rails, crossmembers, and central A-frame assembly), caused by accidental trailer
impact with a curb or similar fixed object, is eligible for warranty coverage.
Damage to other components or damage resulting from collision with another
vehicle, rollover or fire is not covered under this provision. Warranty is not
transferrable to another trailer VIN, and coverage does not apply if the trailer
is deemed to be a total loss, scrapped, or otherwise not salvageable.



GENERAL SERVICE WARRANTY INFORMATION

General Service Vehicles

M Auto Hauler

M Beverage Truck

M Chip Hauler

M Cross Country Coach
M Flathed

M Intercity Coach

M Intermodal Chassis
M Livestock Hauler
M Meat Packer

M Moving Van

M Pipe Hauler M Tanker Trailer
M Platform Auto Hauler M Tour Bus
M Rear Engine Integral Coach Il Wrecker

M Recreational Vehicles
M Refrigerated Freight

M Front Engine Commercial Chassis
M Front Engine Integral Coach
M General Freight

M Municipal Truck
M Newspaper Delivery
M Pick-Up and Delivery

General Service Typically Is

M Lower mileage operations (less than 60,000 miles/year)
M Generally, on-road service (less than 10% off-road)
M An average of three (3) miles between starting and stopping

Front Non-Drive Steer Axles — 2/Unl/P&L

M School Bus
M Stake Truck
M Tanker

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty require that the application of products be
properly approved pursuant to OEM and Meritor approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for
axles, SP-8320 for trailer axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, and/or contact Meritor
regarding specific application approval questions on any product line.

MFS-12E-132B-N
MFS-12-132C-N
MFS-12E-132C-N
MFS-12-143A-N
MFS-12-144A-N
MFS-12E-143A-N
MFS-13-122A-N
MFS-13-122B-N
MFS-13B-122B-N
MFS-13-122C-N
MFS-13B-122C-N
MFS-13-132B-N

MFS-13-132C-N
MFS-13B-132B-N
MFS-13B-132C-N
MFS-13-143A-N
MFS-13-144A-N
MFS-14-122A-N
MFS-14-124A-N
MFS-14-143A-N
MFS-14-144A-N
MFS-16-122A-N
MFS-16-133A-N
MFS-16-135A-N

MFS-16-143A-N
MFS-18-133A-N
MFS-18-135A-N
MFS-18-193A-N
MFS-20-133A-N
MFS-20-135A-N
MFS-20-192A-N
MFS-20-193A-N
MFS-22-135A-N
MFS-22H-135A-N
MFS-22-193A-N
MFS-22H-193A-N

FD-965 FL-943 MFS-8-163B-N
FF-941 MFS-6-151A-N MFS-10-122A
FF-942 MFS-6-153B-N MFS-10-143A-N
FF-943 MFS-6-162B-N MFS-10-144A-N
FF-944 MFS-6-153C-N MFS-12-122A-N
FF-946 MFS-6-162C-N MFS-12E-122A-N
FF-961 MFS-7-113C-N MFS-12-122B-N
FF-966 MFS-7-153C-N MFS-12E-122B-N
FF-967 MFS-7-163C-N MFS-12-122C-N
FG-941 MFS-8-113B-N MFS-12E-122C-N
FH-941 MFS-8-143A-N MFS-12-124A-N
FH-946! MFS-8-153B-N MFS-12-132B-N
FL-941

! Can also be used with reduced steer angles in tag position in Coach Applications.

Front Drive/Non-Drive Steer Axles — 1/Unl/P&L

MX-08-130-FV (FSD-08A
MX-10-130-FV (FSD-10A

) MX-16-130-FV (FSD-16A)

)
MX-12-130-FV (FSD-12A)

)

)

MX-18-130-FV (FSD-18A)
MX-18-130-SD (SDA-1800)
MX-20-130-FV (FSD-20A)
MX-21-130-FV (FSD-21A)

MX-13-130-FV (FSD-13A
MX-14-130-FV (FSD-14A

Rear Drive Single Axles — 2/Unl/P&L

MX-21-130-SD (SDA-2100)
MX-23-130-FV (FSD-23A)
MX-23-130-SD (SDA-2300)
MX-29-130-FV (FSD-29A)

MS-17-13X MS-21-14X RC-23-160 RS-24-160 MS-30-616-SP
MS-17-14X MS-21-144 RC-23-161 RC-25-160 RS-35-380
MS-19-13X MS-23-17X RC-23-162! RS-26-185 71162
MS-19-14X RS-21-145/A RC-23-165! MS-26-616 71163
RS-17-144/145/A  RS-21-160 RS-23-160 MS-26-616-SP 79163
RS-19-144/145/A  RC-22-145 RS-23-161 RS-30-185

MS-21-13X RC-22-145/A RS-23-186 MS-30-616

! 3/Unl/P&L if PreSet by Meritor.

Rear Drive Tandem/Tridem Axles — 2/Unl/P&L

MT-34-14X/P MT-40-14XHE RT-44-145/P MT-58-616
RT-34-144/P/A MT-40-144/P RT-46-169 RT-58-185!
MT-40-14T/P RT-40-145/A MT-52-616 MT-70-380
MT-40-14X/P MT-44-14%/P RT-52-185! RZ-188

U'Each vehicle must have a Request for Application Recommendation (RAR) approved
by Meritor prior to vehicle build. All RARs must identify the chassis number or VIN.

Refer to Product Information Letter #303 and #396 for further details.

Rear Drive Tandem/Tridem -

3/Unl/P&L
RT-40-160/P RT-50-160/P
RT-46-160/P RZ-166

RT-46-164EH/P

Rear Drive Axles — 1/Unl/P&L

11170 RND-14H

523 RND-16A
Drivelines

RPL 4/400/P, 1/Unl/P&L
MXL 3/350/P, 1/Unl/P&L
155N 1/Uni/P
92N 1/Unl/P
Transmission — 1/Unl/P&L

516 FAT 30

PTO - 1/Unl/P&L

MPT-318 MPT-526 MPT-1702
MPT-500 MPT-531 MPT-175
MPT-510 MPT-543 MPT-185
MPT-518 MPT-170 MPT-190



GENERAL SERVICE WARRANTY INFORMATION

Brake Components

Cam Q Series Trailer Brakes 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

Cam P® 2/200/P
Cam 3/Unl/P
Q+ Drum Brake™ 3/Unl/P&L
Q+ Drum Brake ™3 2/200/P&L
ASA 3/Unl/P
ASA® 2/200/P
Hubs/Cast Drums and Other Wheel-end Components 1/Unl/P
Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P
All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P
STEELite X30 Drum Brake™:? 12-Years or Wearable Life/P
EX+ Air Disc Brake™ 2/Unl/P&L

UIncludes: bushing, seal, cam, ASA lubrication and wear coverage of 1/Unl/P.
2 Based on stamped wear diameter max.
3 Applies to Tour Bus and Cross Country Coach only.

Trailer Axles

Beam and Brackets!
Wheel End Systems?

5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

Standard System? 1/Unl/P&L
AxlePak5* 5/P&L
AxlePak7® 7/P&L

19000 Series is 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

ZIncludes hub, wheel seals and wheel bearings—all systems require annual
inspections and proper documentation to ensure full coverage.

S When installed by Meritor.

* When specified with AxlePak5 wheel end system, coverage on MTIS thru-tee and
stator is 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L.

5 When specified with AxlePak7 wheel end system, coverage on MTIS thru-tee
and stator is 7/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L.

(For brake components and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate

product warranties.)

Chassis Axles (2000 Series/ChassiPak)

Beam & Brackets
Wheel End Systems!

6/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

Standard System 1/Unl/P&L
AxlePak7 7/P&L
Beam and Brackets 7/P, 1/L

UIncludes hub, wheel seals and wheel bearings—all systems require annual
inspections and proper documentation to ensure full coverage.

Trailer Air Suspension Systems

MPA38/40 (Tandem Axle Parallelogram)
Major Structural Components
Curbing Damage Warranty?

5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
5/500/P, 1/100/L

Height Control Valve 1/Unl/P&L
Shock Absorbers 2/Unl/P&L
Air Springs 2/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
Bushings 5/P, 3/L
PinLoc Air Controls 1/Unl/P&L
PinLoc Air Actuator 3/Unl/P&L

MPA20 (Single Axle Parallelogram)

Major Structural Components 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

Height Control Valve 1/Unl/P&L
Shock Absorbers 2/Unl/P&L
Air Springs 2/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
Bushings 5/P, 3/L

MTA (Trailing Arm)

Major Structural Components 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

Height Control Valve 1/Unl/P&L
Shock Absorbers 2/Unl/P&L
Air Springs and Rebound Straps 2/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
Bushings?® 5/Unl/P, 3/Unl/L

(For axle and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate product warranties.)

! Fastener torque coverage is limited to 2/Unl/P&L when torqued by Meritor

2“Curbing damage” is defined as deformation (bending, buckling, or breakage),
caused by sudden impact with a curb or similar fixed object. Damage to the
RideSentry slider box (the suspension sliding subframe, consisting of the frame
rails, crossmembers, and central A-frame assembly), caused by accidental trailer
impact with a curb or similar fixed object, is eligible for warranty coverage.
Damage to other components or damage resulting from collision with another
vehicle, rollover or fire is not covered under this provision. Warranty is not
transferrable to another trailer VIN, and coverage does not apply if the trailer
is deemed to be a total loss, scrapped, or otherwise not salvageable.

¥ Raw wood applications 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

TAG/Pusher Axles

TQ, TQD, TR, TRD Beam and Brackets! 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
MC14002, MC16003, FH946 2/Unl/P&L
(For brake components and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate

product warranties.)
13/Unl/P&L if sold with PreSet by Meritor.

Meritor® Tire Inflation System

MTIS Components 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L



HEAVY SERVICE/SPECIALTY VEHICLE

WARRANTY INFORMATION
Heavy Service/Specialty Vehicle

M Airport Rescue Fire Fighting M Dump M Michigan Special Steel Hauler M Steel Hauling
(ARFF) M Equipment Hauling M Michigan Special Waste Vehicle M Tanker
M Airport Shuttle* M Flatbed Trailer Hauler M Municipal Dump M Tank Truck
M Asphalt Truck M Flatbed Truck M Rear Loader (Refuse) M Tractors with Pole Trailers
M Block Truck M Fracturing Truck M Recycling Truck M Tractor/Trailer with Jeeps
M Bottom Dump Trailer M Front Loader M Residential Pick-Up (Refuse) M Transfer Dump
Combination M Geophysical Exploration M Rigging Truck M Transfer Vehicle
M Cementing Vehicle M Hopper Trailer Combinations M Roll-0ff M Utility Truck
M Commercial Pick-Up M Landscaping Truck M Scrap Truck M Winch Truck

M Concrete Pumper M Liquid Waste Hauler M Semi-End Dump

M Construction Material Hauler M Log Hauling M Sewer/Septic Vacuum
M Mixer M Lowhoy M Shuttle Bus*

M Demolition M Michigan Special Gravel Trains M Side Loader

M Drill Rig M Michigan Special Log Hauler M Snowplow/Snowblower

*Commercial chassis only

Heavy Service/Specialty Vehicle Typically Is

M Moderate mileage operation (less than 60,000 miles per year)
M 0n/0ff road vocations (10% or more off-road)
M Moderate to frequent stops/starts (up to 10 stops per mile)

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty require that the application of products
he properly approved pursuant to 0EM and Meritor approvals. Refer to
TP-9441 for axles, SP-8320 for trailer axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, and/
or contact Meritor regarding specific application approval questions on any
product line.

Front Drive/Non-Drive Steer Axles — 2/Unl/P&L

FD-965 FL-941 MFS-10-143A-N MFS-12-143A-N MFS-13-144A-N MFS-18-193A-N MX-12-120
FF-941 FL-943 MFS-10-144A-N MFS-12-144A-N MFS-13-155 MFS-20-133A-N MX-12-120 EVO
FF-942 MFS-6-151A-N MFS-12-122 MFS-12-155 MFS-14-122 MFS-20-135A-N MX-14-120
FF-943 MFS-6-153B MFS-12E-122 MFS-13-122 MFS-14-124A-N MFS-20-192A-N MX-16-120
FF-944 MFS-6-162B MFS-12-122B-N MFS-13-122B-N MFS-14-143A-N MFS-20-193A-N MX-18-120
FF-946 MFS-6-162C MFS-12E-122B-N MFS-13B-122B-N  MFS-14-144A-N MFS-22-135A-N MX-17-140
FF-961 MFS-7-113C-N MFS-12-122C-N MFS-13-122C-N MFS-16-122A-N MFS-22H-135A-N MX-19-140
FF-966 MFS-7-153C-N MFS-12E-122C-N MFS-13B-122C-N MFS-16-133A-N MFS-22-193A-N MX-21-140
FF-967 MFS-7-163C-N MFS-12-124A-N MFS-13-132B-N MFS-16-135A-N MFS-22H-193A-N MX-21-160
FG-941 MFS-8-113B-N MFS-12-132B-N MFS-13B-132B-N MFS-16-143A-N RF-16-145 MX-23-160
FG-943 MFS-8-153B-N MFS-12E-132B-N MFS-13-132C-N MFS-18-133A-N RF-21-160 MX-810
FH-941 MFS-8-163B-N MFS-12-132C-N MFS-13B-132C-N MFS-18-135A-N MX-10-120

FH-946 MFS-10-122A MFS-12E-132C-N MFS-13-143A-N MFS-18-192A-N MX-10-120 EVO

Front Drive/Non-Drive Steer Axles — 1/Unl/P&L Rear Drive Axles — 1/Unl/P&L

MX-08-130-FV (FSD-08A) MX-16-130-FV (FSD-16A) MX-21-130-SD (SDA-2100) 11170 RND-14H
MX-10-130-FV (FSD-10A) MX-18-130-FV (FSD-18A) MX-23-130-FV (FSD-23A) 523 RND-16A
MX-12-130-FV (FSD-12A) MX-18-130-SD (SDA-1800)  MX-23-130-SD (SDA-2300)
) (
) (

MX-13-130-FV (FSD-13A MX-20-130-FV (FSD-20A) MX-29-130-FV (FSD-29A) Drivelines

MX-14-130-FV (FSD-14A MX-21-130-FV (FSD-21A) RPL 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/P&L
92N 1/Uni/P&L
MXL 1/Unl/P&L

Rear Drive Single Axles — 2/Unl/P&L
Transmission — 1/Unl/P&L

MS-17-14X RS-21-160 RS-24-160 MS-35-380

RS-17-144/145/A RC-22-145 RS-25-160 RS-38-380 516

MS-19-14X RC-23-160 MS-26-616 RC-25-160 FAT 30

RS-19-144 RH-23-160 MS-26-616-SP RC-26-633

MS-21-114 RS-23-160 RS-26-185/380 MT-58-616 PTO — 1/Unl/P&L

MS-21-14X RC-23-161 MS-30-616 MT-58-616-SP MPT-318 MPT-526 MPT-1702

RS-21-145 RS-23-161 MS-30-616-SP MPT-500 MPT-531 MPT-175

RS-21-145/A RS-23-186/380 RS-30-185/380 MPT-510 MPT-543 MPT-185
MPT-518 MPT-170 MPT-190



HEAVY SERVICE/SPECIALTY VEHICLE
WARRANTY INFORMATION

Rear Drive Tandem/Tridem Axles — 2/Unl/P&L

MT-34-14X/P RT-44-145/P RT-52-185/38012
RT-34-144/P/A RT-46-169 MT-58-616
MT-40-14X/P RT-58-160 MT-58-616-SP
RT-40-145/A MT-52-616 RT-58-185/38012
MT-44-14%/P MT-52-616-SP RT-70-380

MT-70-380
RZ-188

! Axle model designated will vary according to options and variations specified on these axles. Contact Meritor Axle Applications Engineering for details.
2 Each vehicle must have a Request for Application Recommendation (RAR) approved by Meritor prior to vehicle build. All RARs must identify the chassis number or VIN.

Refer to Product Information Letter #303 and #396 for fu

Brake Components

CamP 3/Unl/P
Cam P? 2/100/P
Cam Cast Plus™ 2/100/P&L
Q+ Drum Brake™ 3/Unl/P&L
Q-+ Drum Brake™? 2/100/P&L
ASA 3/Unl/P
ASA? 2/100/P
Hubs/Cast Drums and

Other Wheel-end

Components 1/Unl/P
Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P
All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P
EX+ Air Disc Brake 2/100/P&L

! Based on stamped wear diameter max.

2 Applies to City Bus, Trolley, Shuttle Bus and Airport
Shuttle only.

$ Warranty for all non-Meritor ASAs supplied by
Meritor for all Heavy Service vocations is 1/100/P.

Gearboxes — 1/Unl/P&L

MGX-240 MGX-376
MGX-279 MGX-377
MGX-279D MGX-378
MGX-280 MGX-380
MGX-285 MGX-384
MGX-292 MGX-402
MGX-314 MGX-413

Transfer Cases — 1/Unl/P

MTC-4213

MTC-4210

MTC-4208

MTC-4206-FV (TC-38)

MTC-3106-FV (TC-137)

MTC-3111 (T-2111)

MTC-3112-CV (529 & 548C)
MTC-3116 (T-2111)

MTC-3118-FV (TC-180 & TC-180-23)

rther details.

Rear Drive Tandem/Tridem -
3/Unl/P&L

RT-40-160/P/A°
RT-46-160/P/A1*
RT-46-164EH/P/A?
RT-50-160/P/A®
RZ-166

1U.S. only. Canadian warranty = 1/Unl/P for
combination vehicles only.

% Axle model designated will vary according to options
and variations specified on these axles. Contact
Meritor Axle Applications Engineering for details.

3 Each vehicle must have a Request for Application
Recommendation (RAR) approved by Meritor prior
to vehicle build. All RARs must identify the chassis
number or VIN. Refer to Product Information Letter
#303 and #396 for further details.

Meritor Tire Inflation System

MTIS Components 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
MGX-448 MGX-506
MGX-456 MGX-514
MGX-478 MGX-519
MGX-480 MGX-520
MGX-487 MGX-522
MGX-488 MGX-524
MGX-505 MGX-527

MTC-3118-CV (358)
MTC-3120-FV (TC-143)
MTC-3124 (T-2119)
MTC-3205-GV (MTC-25/247)
MTC-3205-GV (MTC-25/350)
MTC-3205-GV (RTC-25/350)
MTC-3206-FV (TC-237)
MTC-3206-CS (544)
MTC-3208-GV (RTC-50)

Trailer Air Suspension Systems

MTA (Trailing Arm)
Major Structural Components' 5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

Height Control Valve 1/Unl/P&L
Shock Absorbers 2/Unl/P&L
Air Springs 2/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
Bushings! 5/Unl/P, 3/Unl/L

' Raw wood applications 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
(For axle and ABS coverage, refer to appropriate
product warranties.)

Trailer Axles

Beam and Brackets!
Wheel End Systems?
Standard System®

19000 Series is 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L.

ZIncludes hub, wheel seals and wheel bearings—all
systems require annual inspections and proper
documentation to ensure full coverage.

S When installed by Meritor.

(For brake components and ABS coverage,

refer to appropriate product warranties.)

5/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L

1/Unl/P&L

MGX-528 MGX-546
MGX-533 MGX-550
MGX-534

MGX-536

MGX-537

MGX-541

MGX-545

MTC-3209-GV (RTC-60/420)
MTC-3209-GV (RTC-60/380)
MTC-3209-GV (MTC-60/420)
MTC-3209-GV (MTC-60/380)

MTC-3212-CV (315 & 548B)
MTC-3312-FV (TC-270)
MTC-3220-FC (TC-142)
MTC-2212-CV (306)



FIRE AND EMERGENCY WARRANTY INFORMATION

Fire and Emergency Vehicles

M Aerial Ladder Truck M Pumper

M Aerial Platform M Rapid Intervention Vehicle (RIV)
M Ambulance M Tanker

M Command Vehicle

M Crash Fire Rescue (CFR)

Fire and Emergency Typically Is

M Lower mileage operations (less than 20,000 miles/year)
M Generally, on-road service (less than 10% off-road)

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty require that the application of products be
properly approved pursuant to 0EM and Meritor approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for
axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, and/or contact Meritor regarding specific

M An average of three (3) miles between starting and stopping ~ aPplication approval questions on any product line.

Front Non-Drive Steer Axles — 5/Unl/P&L

FL-941 MFS-18-193A-N MFS-22-135A-N
FL-943 MFS-20-133A-N MFS-22H-135A-N
MFS-18-133A-N MFS-20-135A-N MFS-22-193A-N
MFS-18-135A-N MFS-20-193A-N MFS-22H-193A-N

Front Drive Steer Axles — 2/Unl/P&L

MX-19140 MX-21160 MX-23810
MX-21140 MX-23160

Rear Drive Single Axles — 5/Unl/P&L

RC-23-160 RS-23-186 RS-26-185 RS-25-160
RS-23-160 RS-24-160 RS-30-185
RS-23-161 RC-25-160 RS-35-380

1 3/Unl/P&L if PreSet by Meritor.

Rear Drive Tandem/Tridem Axles — 5/Unl/P&L

MT-40-14X/P RT-44-145/P MT-52-616
MT-40-144/P RT-46-160/P RT-52-185!
RT-40-145/A RT-46-164EH/P MT-58-616
RT-40-160/P RT-46-169 RT-58-185!
MT-44-14X/P RT-50-160/P MT-70-380

I'Each vehicle must have a Request for Application Recommendation (RAR)
approved by Meritor prior to vehicle build. All RARs must identify the chassis
number or VIN. Refer to Product Information Letter #303 and #396 for further
details.

Brake Components

Cam 3/Unl/P
Q+ Drum Brake™ 3/Unl/P&L
ASA 3/Unl/P
Hubs/Cast Drums and Other Wheel-end Components 1/Unl/P
Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P
All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P
EX+ Air Disc Brake™ 2/Unl/P&L

UIncludes: bushing, seal, cam, ASA lubrication and wear coverage of 1/Unl/P.

Drivelines

RPL 4/400/P, 1/Unl/L
MXL 3/350/P, 1/Unl/L
155N 1/Unli/P
92N 1/Uni/P

Transfer Cases — 1/Unl/P

MTC-4208 MTC-3111 (T-2111)
MTC-4210 MTC-3116 (T-2111)
MTC-4213 MTC-3124 (T-2119)



TRANSIT BUS WARRANTY INFORMATION

Transit Bus Vehicles

M Airport Shuttle M Shuttle Bus
M City Bus M Transit Bus
M Commuter Coach M Trolley

Transit Bus Typically Is

M Moderate mileage operation (less than 50,000 miles per year)
M Moderate to frequent stops/starts (up to 10 stops per mile)

Front Drive/Non-Drive Steer Axles — 5/300/P&L

FH-946 MFS-12-155
FH-941! MFS-13-155
I Commuter coach only — 2/Unl/P&L

Rear Drive Single Axles — 5/300/P&L

RS-23-160 79163 RS-21-160
RC-23-161 RC-23-162!
71163 RC-23-165!

I Commuter coach only — 2/Unl/P&L

Brake Components

Cam Cast Plus™ 2/100/P&L
Q-+ Drum Brake™! 2/100/P&L
ASA! 2/100/P

Hubs/Cast Drums and
Other Wheel-end

Components 1/Unl/P

All Other Brakes 1/Unl/P

EX+ Air Disc Brake 2/100/P&L

! Applies to City Bus, Trolley, Shuttle Bus and Airport
Shuttle only.

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty require that the application of products
he properly approved pursuant to 0EM and Meritor approvals. Refer to TP-
9441 for axles, TP-12126 for drivelines, and/or contact Meritor regarding
specific application approval questions on any product line.

Drivelines

RPL 3/Unl/P, 1/Unl/L
92N 1/Unl/P&L
MXL 1/Unl/P&L

Tag Axles — 2/Unl/P&L

MC-14002
MC-16003
FH-946

Center Non-drive Axles — 5/300/P&L

MC-26000
71063
79063

10



OFF-HIGHWAY SERVICE WARRANTY
INFORMATION

Industrial And Off-Highway Service Vehicles

M Load-On/Load-0ff
M Port Tractor

M Rail Yard Spotter
M Roll-0n/Roll-0ff

M Stevedoring Tractor
M Trailer Spotter

M Yard Jockey

M Forestry

M All-Terrain Crane
M Rough Terrain Crane

M Material Handling
M Specialized Heavy Haul

M Specialized Mining M Rail Car Mover
M Excavator M Loader

M Compactor M Tow Tractor

M Fertilizer Spreader M Pushback Tractor
M Snow Blower

M Mining

Industrial And Off-Highway Service Typically Is

M Low mileage operation

M Low speed vehicle speed restriction

M Vehicles are not typically licensed for highway use
M Six (6) starts/stops per mile (typical)

Coverage under Meritor’s warranty require that the application of products he
properly approved pursuant to OEM and Meritor approvals. Contact Meritor regarding
specific application approval questions on any product line.

Front Non-Drive Steer Axles — 1/Unl/P

Drivelines — 1/Unl/P
RPL MXL

Brake Components

FF - 941 MFS-12-144A-N MFS-18-193A-N Cam P 3/Unl/P
FF - 943 MFS-13-143A-N MFS-20-133A-N Q+ Drum Brake™ 3/Unl/P&L
FF - 961 MFS-13-144A-N MFS-20-135A-N ASA 3/Unl/P
FF - 966 MFS-14-143A-N MFS-20-192A-N Hubs/Cast Drums and Other Wheel-end Components 1/Unl/P
FG - 941 MFS-16-122A-N MFS-20-193A-N Hydraulic Disc Brakes 1/Unl/P
FG - 943 MFS-16-133A-N MFS-22-135A-N All Other Brakes 1/Uni/P
FL - 941 MFS-16-135A-N MFS-22H-135A-N
FL - 943 MFS-16-143A-N MFS-22-193A-N
FN - 951 MFS-18-133A-N MFS-22H-193A-N Planetary Axles — 1/Unl/P
MFS-12-143A-N MFS-18-135A-N MON-Z0 FAMILY MOB MOF MOS MOZ

MOC MOG MOT

MOD MOH MOX

MOE MOR MOY
Gearboxes — 1/Unl/P&L
MGX-240 MGX-376 MGX-448 MGX-506 MGX-528 MGX-546
MGX-279 MGX-377 MGX-456 MGX-514 MGX-533 MGX-550
MGX-279D MGX-378 MGX-478 MGX-519 MGX-534
MGX-280 MGX-380 MGX-480 MGX-520 MGX-536
MGX-285 MGX-384 MGX-487 MGX-522 MGX-537
MGX-292 MGX-402 MGX-488 MGX-524 MGX-541
MGX-314 MGX-413 MGX-505 MGX-527 MGX-545
Transfer Cases — 1/Unl/P
MTC-4213 MTC-3116 (T-2111) MTC-3205-GV (RTC-25/350) MTC-3209-GV (MTC-60/380)
MTC-4210 MTC-3118-FV (TC-180 & TC-180-23)  MTC-3206-FV (TC-237) MTC-3212-CV (315 & 548B)
MTC-4208 MTC-3118-CV (358) MTC-3206-CS (544) MTC-3312-FV (TC-270)

MTC-4206-FV (TC-38)
MTC-3106-FV (TC-137)
MTC-3111 (T-2111)
MTC-3112-CV (529 & 548C)

MTC-3120-FV (TC-143)
MTC-3124 (T-2119)
MTC-3205-GV (MTC-25/247)
MTC-3205-GV (MTC-25/350)

MTC-3208-GV (RTC-50)

(

( MTC-3220-FC (TC-142)
MTC-3209-GV (RTC-60/420) (

(

(

MTC-2212-CV (306)
MTC-3209-GV (RTC-60/380)
MTC-3209-GV (MTC-60/420)

11



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Coverage Exclusions
Product Description

All

The cost of any repairs, replacements or adjustments to a covered
component (1) associated with noise; (2) resulting from the use
or installation of non-genuine Meritor components or materials;
(3) due to vibration associated with improper operation or
misapplication of drivetrain components; and (4) damage
resulting from corrosion.

For axle assemblies supplied by Meritor with suspension and in-
terface brackets designed and/or attached by non-Meritor parties,
Meritor warranty coverage does not apply to the brackets, bracket
attachment methods, and field issues caused by brackets or
bracket attachments to any covered component unless specified
in a separate OEM agreement.

Front Axles
King Pin Bushings.

Rear Axles

Self-contained traction equalizers and oil filters. The use of
NoSPIN differentials will result in the exclusion of axle shafts
from warranty considerations. NoSPIN is a product of Eaton.

ASA
Boot and bushing. Bent, broken, over-torqued, missing or
otherwise damaged pawl assemblies.

Cam Brake
Brake lining wear and brake shoe “rust-jacking.”

Disc Brake
Pad wear, rotor wear.

Coverage Limitations
Product Description

All

Any claim beyond 60 days from date of repair will not be accepted
or honored under this warranty program. Products purchased on
an incomplete vehicle (glider) are limited to one year, unlimited
miles parts only (1/Unl/P).

Front Axles

Tie rod and tie rod ends limited to 3-year/300,000-mile or
published vocational coverage, whichever is less. Wheel seals,
gaskets and wheel bearings are covered for 1 year/unlimited miles
if the wheel end equipment is supplied and assembled by Meritor.

Rear Axles

Pinion and through shaft seals limited to 3-year/300,000-mile
or published vocational coverage, whichever is less, if yoke is
installed by Meritor. If yoke is not installed by Meritor, then
Meritor does not warrant pinion seals. Wheel seals, gaskets and
wheel bearings are covered for 1 year/unlimited miles if the
wheel end equipment is supplied and assembled by Meritor.

Rear Axles

The Meritor® breather part number A-2297-C-8765 with
A-3196-J-1336 hose must be used for eligibility of any potential
warranty consideration relating to contamination and/or loss

of lube in axles.

Cam Brake
Limited to bracket, brake spider and camshaft structural integrity.

STEELite X30
Wearable life is up to the discard diameter of the drum.

Disc Brake
Warranty coverage for boots, seals, bushings and pins is 2/200/P.
Warranty coverage for pads is 1/100/P.

Warranty coverage on vehicles with 1,850 Ib-ft engine torque and
over may be reduced on individual drivetrain components. Contact
your Meritor representative for specific details.

12



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

(1) What is Covered by this Commercial Warranty?

Meritor Heavy Vehicle Systems, LLC warrants to the owner (“Owner”)
that the components listed in this publication, which have been
installed by an Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) as original
equipment in vehicles licensed for on-highway use, will be free from
defects in material and workmanship. This warranty coverage begins
only after the expiration of the OEM’s vehicle warranty for the applicable
covered components. Warranty coverage ends at the expiration of the
applicable time period from the date of vehicle purchase by the first
Owner, or, the applicable mileage limitation, whichever occurs first.
Duration of coverage varies by component and vocation as detailed
elsewhere in this warranty statement.

Some components are warranted for parts only and the Owner must
pay any labor costs associated with the repair or replacement of the
component. Other components are warranted for both parts and
reasonable labor to repair or replace the subject component.
Components (whether new, used or remanufactured) installed as
replacements under this warranty are warranted only for the remainder
of the original period of time or mileage under the original warranty.

For certain components, coverage requires the use of specific
extended drain interval or synthetic lubricants. For further information
about lubrication and maintenance, see Meritor publication
Maintenance Manual Number | and the applicable Meritor
maintenance manual for the product in question. Other conditions
and limitations applicable to this warranty are detailed below.

(2) Designation of Vocational Use Required.

To obtain warranty coverage, each Owner must notify Meritor through
the OEM new truck and/or trailer dealer of the intended vocational

use of the vehicle into which the Meritor components have been
incorporated prior to the vehicle in-service date. This notification

may be accomplished by registering the vehicle through your OEM new
truck and/or trailer dealer or with Meritor directly. Failure to

notify Meritor of (1) the intended vocational use of the vehicle or (ll)

a change in vocational use from that which was originally designated,
will result in the application of a one year, unlimited mileage, parts
only warranty (1/Unl/P) from the initial in-service date.

A second Owner and each subsequent Owner must also notify Meritor
as to the intended vocational use of the vehicle. This notification can
be sent directly to Meritor or through the OEM new truck and/or trailer
dealer. The duration and mileage coverage of this warranty cannot
exceed the coverage extended to the first Owner after his or her initial
designation of vocational use.

Coverage under Meritor's warranty requires that the application of
products be properly approved pursuant to OEM and Meritor
approvals. Refer to TP-9441 for axles, SP-8320 for trailer axles,
TP-12126 for drivelines, and/or contact Meritor regarding specific
application approval questions on any product line.

(3) What is the Cost of this Warranty?
There is no charge to the Owner for this warranty.

(4) What is not Covered by this Warranty?
This warranty does not cover normal wear and tear; nor does it cover
a component that fails, malfunctions or is damaged as a result of (I)
improper installation, adjustment, repair or modification (including
the use of unauthorized attachments or changes or modification in
the vehicle’s configuration, usage, or vocation from that which was
originally approved by Meritor), (1) accident, natural disaster, abuse,
or improper use (including loading beyond the specified maximum
vehicle weight or altering engine power settings to exceed the
axle and/or driveline capacity), or (lll) improper or insufficient
maintenance (including deviation from approved lubricants, change
intervals, or lube levels). This warranty does not cover any component
or part that is not branded by Meritor. For vehicles that operate full
or part time outside of the United States and Canada, a one year,
unlimited mileage, parts only warranty (1/Unl/P) will apply.

(5) Remedy.
The exclusive remedy under this warranty shall be the repair or
replacement of the defective component at Meritor’s option. Meritor
reserves the right to require that all applicable failed materials are
available and/or returned to Meritor for review and evaluation.

(6) Disclaimer of Warranty.
THIS WARRANTY IS EXPRESSLY IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES
OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESSED, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY INCLUDING
ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR
PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

(7) Limitation of Remedies.
In no event shall Meritor be liable for special, incidental, indirect,
or consequential damages of any kind or under any legal theory,
including, but not limited to, towing, downtime, lost productivity,
cargo damage, taxes, or any other losses or costs resulting from a
defective covered component.

(8) To Obtain Service.
If the Owner discovers within the applicable coverage period a defect
in material or workmanship, the Owner must promptly give notice to
either Meritor or the dealer from which the vehicle was purchased. To
obtain service, the vehicle must be taken to any participating OEM
new truck and/or trailer dealer or authorized Meritor service location.
The dealer will inspect the vehicle and contact Meritor for an evalu-
ation of the claim. When authorized by Meritor, the dealer will repair
or replace during the term of this warranty any defective Meritor
component covered by this warranty.

(9) Entire Agreement.
This is the entire agreement between Meritor and the Owner about
warranty and no Meritor employee or dealer is authorized to make any
additional warranty on behalf of Meritor. This agreement allocates the
responsibilities for component failure between Meritor and the Owner.

Product models, brands, names and trademarks depicted herein are the property of their respective owners and, except where otherwise indicated, are not in any way associated with
Meritor Heavy Vehicle Systems, LLC, or any parent or affiliate, thereof.

2% MERITOR

2135 West Maple Road
Troy, Michigan 48084 USA

Meritor Heavy Vehicle Systems, LLC For more information: ©2018 Meritor, Inc.

call Ontrac at 866-668-7221  Litho in USA, SP-95155
. : Revised 1-19 (47865/11900)
or visit meritor.com



Vehicle and Apparatus Lifespan

Engine Truck
Agencies Frontline Reserve Frontline Reserve

Belmont Fire Department 12 5 15 5
Brisbane Fire Department 15 5 n/a n/a
CAL Fire 10 n/a 12 n/a
Central County Fire Department 10 4 13 13
Daly City Fire Department 15 5 10 5
Foster City Fire Department 15 10 15 10
Menlo Park Fire Protection District 10 10 10 10
Millbrae Fire Department 15 5 n/a n/a
Pacifica Fire Department 15 5 n/a n/a
Redwood City Fire Department 12 8 10 10
San Bruno Fire Department 15 5 15 15
San Carlos Fire Department 12 8 n/a n/a
San Mateo Fire Department 12 8 15 10
Woodside Fire Department 10 10 n/a n/a

Average Apparatus Replacement 13 7 13 10
*CCFD Recommendation 12 5 13 10

2/20/16



	Agenda Jan 25 Special Mtg
	Agenda Packet Board Mtg. 2021 0125
	Staff Report - Aerial Truck Purchase
	Resolution 21-01 Aerial Truck Purchase
	Central County Ladder Truck Proposal Package - 23 Dec 20
	1 - 100% PREPAY - 23 dec 20
	PROPOSAL PREPARED FOR:
	Submitted Date:
	Proposal Number:
	January 31, 2021
	Sales Consultant:

	PROPOSAL SUMMARY
	PRODUCT COMPLETION
	DELIVERY LOCATION
	ACCEPTING THIS PROPOSAL
	In the event Customer wishes to purchase the Product described in this Proposal and the attached specifications, then, prior to the expiration date listed on page 2 of this Proposal, Customer shall sign and return this Proposal. Thereafter, GSFA and C...
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	The following Terms and Conditions are hereby made part of this Proposal:

	2 - 105' HDL Arrow XT Aerial As Proposed 12-22-20
	GENERAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION
	QUALITY AND WORKMANSHIP
	DELIVERY
	MANUAL AND SERVICE INFORMATION
	SAFETY VIDEO
	PERFORMANCE TESTS
	SERVICE AND WARRANTY SUPPORT
	LIABILITY
	INSURANCE PROVIDED BY BIDDER
	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE
	COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE
	UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY INSURANCE
	INSURANCE PROVIDED BY MANUFACTURER
	PRODUCT LIABILITY INSURANCE
	UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY INSURANCE
	SINGLE SOURCE MANUFACTURER
	NFPA 2016 STANDARDS
	NFPA COMPLIANCY
	VEHICLE INSPECTION PROGRAM CERTIFICATION
	INSPECTION CERTIFICATE
	GENERATOR TEST
	BREATHING AIR TEST
	PRE-CONSTRUCTION, FACTORY TRIP
	FINAL INSPECTION FACTORY TRIP
	MIDPOINT, FACTORY TRIP
	PRODUCT CHANGES AND IMPROVEMENTS
	AFTERMARKET SUPPORT WEBSITE
	BID BOND NOT REQUESTED
	PERFORMANCE BOND
	APPROVAL DRAWING
	ELECTRICAL WIRING DIAGRAMS
	ARROW XT CHASSIS
	MAXIMUM OVERALL HEIGHT
	WHEELBASE
	GVW RATING
	FRAME
	FRAME REINFORCEMENT
	FRONT NON DRIVE AXLE
	FRONT SUSPENSION
	FRONT SHOCK ABSORBERS
	FRONT OIL SEALS
	FRONT TIRES
	REAR AXLE
	TOP SPEED OF VEHICLE
	SUSPENSION, REAR
	REAR OIL SEALS
	REAR TIRES
	TIRE BALANCE
	TIRE PRESSURE MANAGEMENT
	FRONT HUB COVERS
	REAR HUB COVERS
	WHEEL CHOCKS
	Wheel Chock Brackets

	ANTI-LOCK BRAKE SYSTEM
	BRAKES
	BRAKE SYSTEM AIR COMPRESSOR
	BRAKE SYSTEM
	BRAKE SYSTEM AIR DRYER
	BRAKE LINES
	AIR INLET
	AIR OUTLET
	ALL WHEEL LOCK-UP
	LABEL, AIR TANKS
	COMPRESSION FITTINGS
	ENGINE
	REMOTE MOUNTED ENGINE FILTERS
	HIGH IDLE
	ENGINE BRAKE
	CLUTCH FAN
	ENGINE AIR INTAKE
	EXHAUST SYSTEM
	RADIATOR
	COOLANT LINES
	FUEL TANK
	DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID TANK
	FUEL SHUTOFF
	FUEL COOLER
	FUEL FILL DOOR
	FUEL DOOR LABEL
	FUEL SEPARATOR
	TRANSMISSION
	TRANSMISSION SHIFTER
	TRANSMISSION COOLER
	DOWNSHIFT MODE (w/engine brake)
	TRANSMISSION FLUID
	DRIVELINE
	STEERING
	STEERING WHEEL
	LOGO AND CUSTOMER DESIGNATION ON HORN BUTTON
	BUMPER
	Gravel Pan

	LIFT AND TOW MOUNTS
	TOW EYES
	CAB
	CAB ROOF DRIP RAIL
	INTERIOR CAB INSULATION
	FENDER LINERS
	WINDSHIELD
	WINDSHIELD WIPERS
	GLOVE BOX
	ENGINE TUNNEL
	CAB REAR WALL EXTERIOR COVERING
	CAB LIFT
	Cab Lift Interlock

	GRILLE
	SCUFFPLATE
	DOOR JAMB SCUFFPLATES
	MIRRORS
	DOORS
	Door Panels

	MANUAL CAB DOOR WINDOWS
	CAB STEPS
	CAB EXTERIOR HANDRAILS
	STEP LIGHTS
	FENDER CROWNS
	HANDRAILS BELOW CAB WINDSHIELD
	CREW CAB WINDOWS
	WINDOW PROTECTOR BARS, CREW CAB DOORS
	STORAGE COMPARTMENT
	EXTERIOR ACCESS LIGHTING

	FASTENERS
	SPECIAL TAG
	SCREW INSERTS ON CAB DOORS
	MOUNTING PLATE ON ENGINE TUNNEL
	CAB INTERIOR
	CAB INTERIOR UPHOLSTERY
	CAB INTERIOR PAINT
	CAB FLOOR
	CAB DEFROSTER
	CAB/CREW CAB HEATER
	AIR CONDITIONING
	GRAVITY DRAIN TUBES
	SUN VISORS
	GRAB HANDLE
	ENGINE COMPARTMENT LIGHTS
	ACCESS TO ENGINE DIPSTICKS
	SEATING CAPACITY
	DRIVER SEAT
	OFFICER SEAT
	REAR FACING LEFT SIDE CABINET
	Cabinet Light

	REAR FACING RIGHT SIDE CABINET
	Cabinet Light

	FORWARD FACING DRIVER SIDE OUTBOARD SEAT
	FORWARD FACING CENTER CABINET
	Cabinet Light

	FORWARD FACING PASSENGER SIDE OUTBOARD SEAT
	SEAT UPHOLSTERY
	SEAT BELTS
	SHOULDER HARNESS HEIGHT ADJUSTMENT
	HELMET STORAGE PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
	CAB DOME LIGHTS
	MAP LIGHT
	HAND HELD LIGHT
	CAB INSTRUMENTATION
	Cab Interior
	Gauges
	Indicator Lamps
	Alarms
	Indicator Lamp and Alarm Prove-Out
	Control Switches
	Custom Switch Panels
	Diagnostic Panel
	Cab LCD Display

	AIR RESTRICTION INDICATOR
	"DO NOT MOVE APPARATUS" INDICATOR
	DO NOT MOVE TRUCK MESSAGES
	SWITCH PANELS
	WIPER CONTROL
	HOURMETER - AERIAL DEVICE
	AERIAL MASTER
	AERIAL PTO SWITCH
	SPARE CIRCUIT
	STEREO RADIO
	RADIO ENCLOSURE
	INFORMATION CENTER
	General Screen Design
	Home/Transit Screen
	On Scene Screen
	Virtual Buttons
	Page Screen

	VEHICLE DATA RECORDER
	Seat Belt Monitoring System

	INTERCOM SYSTEM
	RADIO / INTERCOM INTERFACE INCLUDED
	UNDER THE HELMET HEADSET
	HEADSET HANGERS
	GPS / MULTIMODE ANTENNA INSTALLATION
	RADIO ANTENNA MOUNT
	VEHICLE CAMERA SYSTEM
	VEHICLE CAMERA GUARD
	ELECTRICAL POWER CONTROL SYSTEM
	SOLID-STATE CONTROL SYSTEM
	CIRCUIT PROTECTION AND CONTROL DIAGRAM
	ON-BOARD ADVANCED/VISUAL ELECTRICAL SYSTEM DIAGNOSTICS
	TECH MODULE WITH WIFI
	PROGNOSTICS
	ADVANCED DIAGNOSTICS

	INDICATOR LIGHT AND ALARM PROVE-OUT SYSTEM
	VOLTAGE MONITOR SYSTEM
	DEDICATED RADIO EQUIPMENT CONNECTION POINTS
	ENHANCED SOFTWARE
	EMI/RFI PROTECTION
	ELECTRICAL
	BATTERY SYSTEM
	BATTERY SYSTEM
	MASTER BATTERY SWITCH
	BATTERY COMPARTMENTS
	JUMPER STUDS
	BATTERY CHARGER
	SHORELINE INLET
	BATTERY CHARGER COVER
	ALTERNATOR
	ELECTRONIC LOAD MANAGER
	SEQUENCER
	HEADLIGHTS
	DIRECTIONAL LIGHTS
	INTERMEDIATE LIGHT
	CAB CLEARANCE/MARKER/ID LIGHTS
	FRONT CAB SIDE DIRECTIONAL/MARKER LIGHTS
	REAR CLEARANCE/MARKER/ID LIGHTING
	MARKER LIGHTS
	REAR FMVSS LIGHTING
	LICENSE PLATE BRACKET
	LIGHTING BEZEL
	BACK-UP ALARM
	CAB PERIMETER SCENE LIGHTS
	BODY PERIMETER SCENE LIGHTS
	ADDITIONAL PERIMETER LIGHTS
	STEP LIGHTS
	12 VOLT LIGHTING
	12 VOLT DC SCENE LIGHTS
	12 VOLT DC SCENE LIGHTS
	12 VOLT LIGHTING
	12 VOLT LIGHTING
	12 VOLT LIGHTING
	WALKING SURFACE LIGHT
	CARGO AREA
	CARGO AREA COVER
	TURNTABLE STEPS
	STEP LIGHTS
	SMOOTH ALUMINUM REAR WALL
	TOW EYES
	COMPARTMENTATION
	AGGRESSIVE WALKING SURFACE
	LOUVERS
	COMPARTMENT IN PLACE OF PUMP
	LEFT SIDE COMPARTMENTATION
	RIGHT SIDE COMPARTMENTATION
	SIDE COMPARTMENT DOORS
	BODY MODIFICATION FROM STANDARD
	REAR BUMPER
	DOOR GUARD
	COMPARTMENT LIGHTING
	MOUNTING TRACKS
	ADJUSTABLE SHELVES
	SLIDE-OUT ADJUSTABLE HEIGHT TRAY
	TWO (2) WAY SLIDE-OUT UTILITY TRAY
	SLIDE-OUT/TILT-DOWN TRAY
	THREE QUARTER DEPTH SLIDE-OUT TOOLBOARD
	STORAGE COMPARTMENT(S)
	TRANSVERSE COMPARTMENT OVER TORQUE BOX
	OIL DRY HOPPER
	ADDITIONAL COMPARTMENT LOUVERS
	PARTITION IN TRANSVERSE COMPARTMENT
	PEGBOARD
	AIR BAG STORAGE
	FLOOR EXTENSION
	RUB RAIL
	BODY FENDER CROWNS
	FOUR AIR BOTTLE STORAGE COMPARTMENT
	AIR BOTTLE COMPARTMENT STRAP
	SINGLE AIR BOTTLE STORAGE COMPARTMENT
	AIR BOTTLE STORAGE (Single)
	AIR BOTTLE COMPARTMENT STRAP
	EXTENSION LADDER
	ADDED EXTENSION LADDER
	ROOF LADDER
	ADDED ROOF LADDER
	ADDED ROOF LADDER
	AERIAL ATTIC EXTENSION LADDERS PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
	AERIAL FOLDING LADDER
	GROUND LADDER STORAGE
	LADDER STORAGE LIGHTING
	PIKE POLES
	10' PIKE POLE(S)
	ADDITIONAL PIKE POLE(S)
	PIKE POLE STORAGE IN TORQUE BOX/LADDER STORAGE
	PIKE POLE STORAGE
	BELL
	AIR HORN SYSTEM
	Air Horn Location

	AIR HORN CONTROL
	ELECTRONIC SIREN
	ELECTRIC SIREN, LOCATION,
	SIREN CONTROL
	SPEAKER
	AUXILIARY MECHANICAL SIREN
	SWITCHES, MECHANICAL SIREN
	FRONT ZONE UPPER WARNING LIGHTS
	CAB FACE WARNING LIGHTS
	HEADLIGHT FLASHER
	SIDE ZONE LOWER LIGHTING
	INTERIOR CAB DOOR WARNING LIGHTS
	REAR ZONE LOWER LIGHTING
	WARNING LIGHTS (Rear)
	REAR OF HOSEBED WARNING LIGHTS
	TRAFFIC DIRECTING LIGHT
	ELECTRICAL SYSTEM GENERAL DESIGN for ALTERNATING CURRENT
	General
	Grounding
	Operation
	Overcurrent protection
	Wiring Methods
	Wiring Identification
	Wet Locations
	Dry Locations
	Listing
	Electrical System Testing
	Operational Test per Current NFPA 1901 Standard

	GENERATOR
	GENERATOR LOCATION
	GENERATOR START
	GENERATOR REMOTE FIELD SWITCH
	CIRCUIT BREAKER PANEL
	ELECTRIC CORD REEL
	CORD
	120 VOLT RECEPTACLE
	FOUR (4)-SECTION 105 FOOT AERIAL LADDER
	CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS
	LADDER CONSTRUCTION
	VERTICAL HEIGHT
	HORIZONTAL REACH
	TURNTABLE
	ELEVATION SYSTEM
	EXTENSION/RETRACTION SYSTEM
	ROTATION SYSTEM
	ROTATION INTERLOCK
	LADDER CRADLE INTERLOCK SYSTEM
	TORQUE BOX
	LOAD CAPACITIES
	50 MPH WIND CONDITIONS/WATERWAY DRY
	50 MPH WIND CONDITIONS/WATERWAY CHARGED
	BOOM SUPPORT
	AERIAL BOOM SUPPORT LIGHT
	AERIAL BOOM PANEL
	EXTENSION INDICATOR
	FOLDING STEPS
	AERIAL DEVICE RUNG COVERS
	LADDER STORAGE MOUNTING BRACKETS
	TEMPORARY SCABBARD AT END OF AERIAL
	PIKE POLE MOUNTING BRACKETS
	RUBBISH HOOK MOUNTING BRACKET
	LIGHTS FOR TURNTABLE WALKWAY
	ROTATION BEARING COVER
	EYELETS FOR ROPE TIE OFF POINTS
	INFORMATION CENTER
	OPERATION
	GENERAL SCREEN DESIGN
	PAGE SCREENS
	MENU SCREENS
	LOWER CONTROL STATION
	TURNTABLE CONTROL STATION
	TURNTABLE WORK LIGHTS
	HIGH IDLE
	REMOTE AERIAL CONTROL
	STABILIZERS
	STABILIZER PADS
	AUXILIARY STABILIZER PADS
	STABILIZER CONTROLS
	CRADLE INTERLOCK SYSTEM
	STABILIZER PAN AND TRIM MATERIAL
	STABILIZER PINS
	STABILIZER CONTROL BOX ALUMINUM DOOR
	HYDRAULIC SYSTEM
	HYDRAULIC CYLINDERS
	HYDRAULIC PUMP
	EMERGENCY PUMP
	AERIAL CONTROL VALVE
	OIL RESERVOIR
	HIGH PRESSURE FILTER
	RETURN FILTER
	HYDRAULIC SWIVEL
	ELECTRIC SWIVEL
	12-BIT ABSOLUTE ENCODER
	ELECTRICAL SYSTEM
	Control System Modules

	SPOTLIGHTS
	LIGHTING ON AERIAL LADDER
	STABILIZER WARNING LIGHTS
	STABILIZER BEAM WARNING LIGHTS
	STABILIZER SCENE LIGHTS
	DC POWER CABLE to TIP
	COMMUNICATION SYSTEM
	RAISED AERIAL PEDESTAL
	RESCUE LIFTING SYSTEM
	ROPE TIE BAR AT BASE SECTION, RESCUE LIFTING SYSTEM
	LIFTING EYE ASSEMBLY - ROPE RESCUE ATTACHMENT
	HITCH, WINCH MOUNT
	AERIAL TURNTABLE CHAIN
	WATER SYSTEM
	WATERWAY SEALS
	AERIAL MONITOR
	AERIAL WATERWAY FLOW METER
	REAR INLET
	WATERWAY LOCKING SYSTEM
	MANUALS
	INITIAL INSTRUCTION
	LOOSE EQUIPMENT
	NFPA REQUIRED LOOSE EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
	DRY CHEMICAL EXTINGUISHER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
	WATER EXTINGUISHER PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
	FLATHEAD AXE PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
	PICKHEAD AXES PROVIDED BY FIRE DEPARTMENT
	PAINT
	PAINT - ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

	PAINT CHASSIS FRAME ASSEMBLY
	AXLE HUB PAINT
	COMPARTMENT INTERIOR PAINT
	AERIAL DEVICE PAINT COLOR
	REFLECTIVE STRIPES
	REAR CHEVRON STRIPING
	REFLECTIVE STRIPE ON STABILIZERS
	CAB DOOR REFLECTIVE STRIPE
	LETTERING
	LETTERING
	FIRE APPARATUS PARTS CD MANUAL
	SERVICE PARTS INTERNET SITE

	CHASSIS SERVICE MANUALS
	CHASSIS OPERATION CD MANUALS
	ONE (1) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP
	ENGINE WARRANTY
	STEERING GEAR WARRANTY
	FIFTY (50) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY
	FRONT AXLE THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY
	TDM REAR AXLE FIVE (5) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY
	ABS BRAKE SYSTEM THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY
	TEN (10) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY
	TEN (10) YEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION
	FIVE (5) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP
	CAMERA SYSTEM WARRANTY
	COMPARTMENT LIGHT WARRANTY
	TRANSMISSION WARRANTY
	TRANSMISSION COOLER WARRANTY
	TEN (10) YEAR STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY
	ROLL UP DOOR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY
	TWENTY (20) YEAR AERIAL DEVICE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY WARRANTY
	AERIAL SWIVEL WARRANTY
	HYDRAULIC SYSTEM COMPONENTS WARRANTY
	HYDRAULIC SEAL WARRANTY
	AERIAL WATERWAY WARRANTY
	FOUR (4) YEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION
	SIX (6) YEAR GENERATOR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY
	TEN (10) YEAR PRO-RATED PAINT AND CORROSION
	THREE (3) YEAR MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP
	FIVE (5) YEAR EXTENDED
	FIVE (5) YEAR EXTENDED
	VEHICLE STABILITY CERTIFICATION
	ENGINE INSTALLATION CERTIFICATION
	POWER STEERING CERTIFICATION
	CAB INTEGRITY CERTIFICATION
	CAB DOOR DURABILITY CERTIFICATION
	WINDSHIELD WIPER DURABILITY CERTIFICATION
	SEAT BELT ANCHOR STRENGTH
	SEAT MOUNTING STRENGTH
	CAB DEFROSTER CERTIFICATION
	CAB HEATER CERTIFICATION
	AMP DRAW REPORT

	3 - ProposalMediaOptions_12_23_2020 2_00_49 PM

	Vehicle Apparatus Lifespan
	Vehicle & Apparatus Lifespan



